
 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  Contact: Jane Creer 

Committee Secretary 
Wednesday, 24 February 2016 at 10.00 am  Direct : 020-8379-4093 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Silver Street, 
Enfield, EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
 Ext: 4093 
 E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
Councillors : Chris Bond (Chair), George Savva MBE and Glynis Vince 
 
 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 
 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or 

non pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda. 
 

3. NEW HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE LIMITED, 236 HERTFORD ROAD, 
ENFIELD, EN3 5BL   (REPORT NO. 189)  (Pages 1 - 196) 

 
 Seeking approval for a Transfer application. 

 
4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 197 - 210) 
 
 To receive and agree the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 3 

February 2016. 
 

5. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
(There is no part 2 agenda) 
 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2015116 REPORT NO.

COMMITTEE :

Licensing Sub-Committee
24 February 2016

REPORT OF :

Principal Licensing Officer

LEGISLATION :

Licensing Act 2003

1 LICENSING HISTORY & CURRENT POSITION:

1.1 A new premises licence (LN/200600789) was issued to Mr Sefer Govtepe, as
both the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and Designated Premises Supervisor
(DPS) on22nd February 2OOT.

1.2 A new premises licence application was made in June 2008 as the premises had
extended the licensable area. The premises licence (LN/200800470) was issued
again to Mr Sefer Govtepe, as both the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) on 13th August 2008.

1.3 The premises licence (LN/200S00470) was revoked on 13th July 2011 following
a review application (relating to the sale of non-duty paid alcohol) submitted by
Trading Standards.

1.4 Premises licence (LN/200600789) was surrendered at the review hearing on the
same date as the plan was no longer accurate.

1.5 A new premises licence (LN/201100396) was issued on 6th September 2011
naming the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor
(DPS) as Mr Suleyman Erdogan.

1 .6 A review application of premises licence (LN/201 100396) was soug.ht by the
Licensing Authority on 10 March 2015 on the grounds of prevention of crime.

1.7 At the review hearing on 13 May 2015, the Licensing Sub-Committee revoked
the licence. This decision was appealed but was subsequently withdrawn.

1.8 On 6 August 2015, a new premises licence application was submitted, naming
Mr Deniz Altun as both the Premises Licence Holder and DPS. This application
was subject to representations from the Licensing Authority but an agreement
was made between this Responsible Authority and the applicant, and premises
licence (LN/201 50051 7) was granted.

Agenda - Part Item
SUBJEGT :

Transfer Application

PREMISES :

New Hertford Food Store Limited, 236
Hertford Road, ENFIELD, EN3 5BL.

WARD:
Enfield Highway

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



1.9 On 14 January 2016, Mr Deniz Altun surrendered his premises licence
(LN/201500s17).

1.10 On 20 January 2016, a vary DPS application was submitted, naming Mr Necip
Karagoz as the DPS. This application was not subject to any representations.

1.11 The current Premises Licence permits:

Hours the premises are open to the public: From 08:00 to 01:00 daily.

Supply of alcohol (off supplies only): From 08:00 to 00:00 (midnight) daity.

1.7 A copy of a location map of the premises is attached as Annex 1.

1.8 A copy of the current prernises licence (LN/201100396) is attached in Annex 3,
Exhibit CP)V10.

2 THIS APPLICATION:

2.1 On 20 January 2016, a transfer applicatioñ was submitted by Enfield Food Store
Limited. section 50 (1) (b) of the Licensing Act 2003 (1403)þermits the
reinstatement of a licence on a transfer application when a premises licence
lapses by virtue of Section 28 of the L403, namely surrender.

2.2 A consent form signed by Mr Deniz Altun required for the transfer was later
received.

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

The transfer application had immediate effect.

The Police were consulted in respect of the application.

A copy of the transfer application is attached as Annex 2

3 RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS:

Metropolitan Police: Notice was given (under S.42(6)) that grant of the transfer
application would undermine the crime prevention objective. The a'uthority states
that it is appropriate, for the promotion of the licensing objectives, to object to the
transfer of Premises Licence (LN/201500517). The representation is supported
by the Licensing Authority who have provided witness statements.

3.2 A copy of the representation and exhibits are attached as Annex 3

Page 2



4 RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLIGIES:

4.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either :

4.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 ('Act'); or

4.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of
March 2015 ('Guid'); or

4.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield's Licensing Policy Statement of January
2015 ('Pol').

4.2 General Principles :

4.2.1 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a
view to promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)].

4.2.2 The licensing objectives are :

4.2.3 the prevention of crime and disorder;

4.2.4 public safety;

4.2.5 the prevention of public nuisance; &

4.2.6 the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)].

4.3 ln carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to :

4.3.1 the Council's licensing policy statement; &

4.3.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State tAct s.a(3)1.

4.4 Transfers of premises Iicences - General

4.4.1 Section 43 of the 2003 Act provides a mechanism which allows th'e transfer to

come into immediate interim effect as soon as the licensing authority receives it,

until it is formally determined or withdrawn. This is to ensure that there should be

no interruption to normal business at the premises. lf the police raise no

objection about the application, the licensing authority must transfer the licence

in accordance with the application, amend the licence accordingly and return it to
the new holder. (Guid 8.93)

4.4.21n exceptional circumstances where the chief officer of police believes the

transfer may undermine the crime prevention objective, the police may object to

the transfer. Such objections are expected to be rare and arise because the

police have evidence that the business or individuals seeking to hold the licence

Page 3



or business or individuals linked to such persons are involved in crime (or

disorder). (Guid 8.94)

4.4.3 Such objections (and therefore such hqarings) should only arise in truly

exceptional circumstances. lf the licensing authority believes that the police are

using this mechanism to vet transfer applicants routinely and to seek hearings as

a fishing expedition to inquire into applicants' backgrounds, it is expected that it

would raise the matter immediately with the chief officer of police. (Guid I 95)

4.4.4In its consideration of applications where representations have been received,

where relevant, particular regard will be given to the factors shown under Special

Factors for Consideration. Particular regard will be given to evidence identifying

any history or pattern of practice which impacts upon the Licensing Objectives.

(Pol 10.1)

4.4.5 Special Factors for Consideration: Methods to discourage the handling and

distribution of stolen, counterfeit goods or other illegal goods. (Pol 12.1.9)

4.5 Transfer Applications - Reinstatement Following Surrender of Premises
Licence

4.5.1 Section 50 of LA03 states that:

(5)Where such an application is made, the premises licence is reinstated from the time
the application is received by the relevant licensing authority.

(6)But the licence lapses again if, and when-

(a)the applicant is notified of the rejection of the application, or

(b)the application is withdrawn.

4.5.2 Section 50 (7) states that only one application for transfer of the premises

licence may be made in reliance on this section.

4.6 Decision:

4.6.1 Having heard all of the representations (from both parties) the Licensing Sub-
Committee must decide whether to:

Grant the application; or

Reject the application.

o

Page 4



füen eny fdentffled wlthln the

Gontret OflÏccr :

on 020 Et79 8649

Page 5



(o
5ol

äRþco : c\¡
@-F

c;

ãËrãØa

-ô¿
àø

@

o
ro
(ft
z
IJJ

ci
IIJ
trz
l¡J

Et!
o
É.
tt
o

o
(o
c'lt
$t
EoË
.E
J
o
o
|t,
t,
o
o
lJ.
E
o
Ëo

ìoz

ì
r¡¡

(@

Q-
d irJ

,&|üu)

Er
I>clJu -fØXÊ
O,,io j

ãËäå
zuoE
83d EZ=tr 3
e6ñ 3

49 50

a3 56

J

æz

ð

g¿ ,i

95

199 to 49

L

6 z

181

1â7

183

b¿ @z

þt

IÈ

11S

0t t

ì
à
6

Ê

o

È
È

67

z

,z¿ øod
gta ,lz ztz

o

Ëó 1

2

OUOJIUSH E

ovou otolrtfH

E

ovou

{
3

a
E

x
CV

C
C
C

P
age 6



tr)nneyLVø, 2324¡
Þ\Be '501 saõ,Ð:

Application to transfer premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We Enfield Food Store Limited
(Insert name of applicant)
apply to transfer the premises licence described below under section 42 of the Licensing Act
2003 for the premises described in Part I below

Premises licence number LN/201500517

Part 1 - Premises details

Please give a brief description of the premises
Supermarket & Offlicence

Name of current premises licence holder
Mr Deniz Altun

Part 2 - Applicant details
In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence to be transferred to you?

a) an individual or individualsx

b) a person other than an individual *
i. as a limited company

ii. as a partnership èrst-/ì r

Please tick M yes

¡ please complete section (A)

X please complete section (B)

n please complete section (B)

n please complete section (B)

l

Postal address of premises
236 Hertford Road

or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Post town ENFIELD Post code EN3 sBL

Telephone number at premises (if any)

2 0 JAN 2010

LONDON EO ROUGH OF ENFIEI-D
associatiofi õIEIVED

ENVI RONM FN'I. &
STHEET NESCF:

l1l. as an

2<¡\( \r'

Page 7



f) a health service body n please complete section (B)

g) an individual who is registered under Part 2 of the
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

tr please complete section (B)

ga) a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part
I of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within the
meaning of that Part) in respect of an independent
hospital in England

tr please complete section (B)

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in
England and Wales

n please complete section (B)

*If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm:

Please tick Ø yes

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use
of the premises for licensable activities; or

iv. other (for example a statutory corporation)

c) a recognised club

d) a charity

e) the proprietor of an educational establishment

! please complete section (B)

tr please complete section (B)

n please complete section (B)

fl please complete section (B)

Other title
(for example, Rev)

Please tick El yes

n

a

a I am making the application pursuant to a

o statutory function or
o a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

n
n

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

MrnMrsnMissnMsn

Surname First names

I am 18 years old or over

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Page 8



Post town Post code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (frll in as applicable)

MrnMrsnMisslMsn Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

I am 18 years old or over
Please tick EI yes

n
Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLTCANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give any
registered number. In the case ofa partnership or otherjoint venture (other than a body corporate),
please give the name and address ofeach parly concerned.

Name
Enfield Food Store Limited

Page 9



Address
Unit 5 25-27 T\e burroughs, London, United Kingdom, NW4 4AR

Registered number (where applicable)
09960522

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)
Limited Company

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Part 3

Are you the holder of the prernises licence under an interim authority notice?

Do you wish the transfer to have immediate effect?

If not when would you like the transfer to take effect?
Month Year

Please tick M yes

I have enclosed the consent form signed by the existing premises licence holder n

If you have not enclosed the consent form referred to above please give the reasons why not. What
steps have you taken to try and obtain the consent?
Consent form is not provided with this application.

Enfield Food Store Limited has fulI control of the premise as of 20th January 2016.

Please tick M yes

If this application is granted I would be in a position to use the premises during the X

Please tick EIyes

x
X

Page 10



application period for the licensable activity or activities authorised by the licence (see
section 43 of the Licensing Act 2003)

I have enclosed the premises licence

Please tick M yes

X
If you have not enclosed premises licence referred to above please give the reasons why not.

o I have made or enclosed payment of the fee Xo I have enclosed the consent form signed by the existing premises licence holder or
my statement as to why it is not enclosed Xo I have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation Xo I have sent a copy of this application to the chief officer of police today X

o I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application X
will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE , UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2OO3 TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 4 - Signatures (please read guidance note 2)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (See guidance
note 3). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature

Date 20th January 2016

Capacity LicensingAgent

For joint applicants signature of second applicant, second applicant's solicitor or other
authorised agent þlease read guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the appticant please
state in what capacity.

Signature

Page 11



Date

Capacity

Notes for Guidance

l. Describe the premises. For example the type of premises it is, its general situation and
layout and any other information which would be relevant to the licensing objectives.

2. The application form must be signed.
3. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided

that they have actual authority to do so.
4. Where there is more than one applicant, both applicants or their respective agents must

sign the application form.
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)
Mr. Cohan Zedek
121 Stoke Newington Road

Post town
London

Post Code
N16 8BT

Telephone number (if any) 07852 105 778
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)
coha nzedek@hotmail. co. uk

Page 12



Gonsent of premises licence holder to tranefer

l/we

the premises licence holder of premises licence number LftI /Zo1roos7 7
[ìnseft premises licence number]

relating to

[inseft premíses lícence

to

e*G¡e¿.a laoo s LìmtTê
name of

,ê¿t2 Lwtz_4/qa7s F_+

hereby give my consent for the transfer of premises licence number

LN / z-çtçaa

exi
signed

name
(please print)

dated

1

Page 13



METROPOLITAN

POLIC E

ânne>< b
TERRITORIAL POLICING

Workingtogøthrforasafurl¡ndon ¡ ll
b-¡ London
CRIMESTOPPERS

Unltlng agalnrt cdrne

Civic Centre
Silver Street
Enfield
EN1 3XA

METROPOLITAN POLICE SERVICE
Licensing Team
Enfield Borough Police
462 Fore Street
Edmonton
Middlesex

Date 01 .02.16
Office : 0208 345 4565
Mobile :

Facsimile :

Dear Sir or Madam

ln relation to the Transfer of Premises Licence application WK 215073809 to Enfield Food Stores Ltd at 236
Hertford Road EN3 5BL. The Police would like to object on the grounds of the prevention of crime.

It is the opinion of the Police that this application to transfer be rejected. The Police acknowledge the
guidance at 8.94 of the Section 182 Guidance contained within the Licensing Act 2003 and believe that the
circumstances are exceptional and that the crime prevention objective will be seriously undermined if
granted.
I have been provided with two detailed statements from Charlotte Palmer and Victor Ktorakis both Local
Authority Enforcement officers. They are exhibited as GM/1 and GM/2 respectively and provide the evidence
which has led to the Police objection.

On the 21st December Trading Standards officers attended Zilan food Store, 236 Hertford Road EN3 for an
inspection.
During the course of that visit they discovered over 4500 packets of non duty paid cigarettes hidden in a false
ceiling and a store room on the side of the neighbouring premtses.

This is not the first time this crime has been discovered at this venue. There have been two previous reviews
where this same crime has been discovered and it has resulted in the premises licences being revoked each
time.

The premises lease is owned by Mr Sefer Govtepe and he has held a Premises Licence (PLF{) and been
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) at this premises. Mr Govtepe was the PLH and DPS the first time
that non duty paid goods were found on premises.
A new licence was acquired and again during an inspection more non paid goods were found. A licence
review again revoked the licence. The goods were stored in the same way and Mr Govtepe was always close
to the business being the business partner of that PLH and DPS Mr Erdogan. This appeared to have been a
front with Mr Govtepe remaining in control of the business.
Another licence was sought and this time the local authority believed that this could well be another front and
sought reassurance by adding a condition to the licence namely,

24. Neither Mr Sefer Govtepe or Mr Suleyman Erdogan or their immediate family shall be invotved in
any way in the operation and / or management of the busrness or be permitted to work in the business in any
capacity.

This is now the Fifth time (three times under the current licence and twice under previous licences) that non
duty paid goods have been found on the premises. lt is my understanding that the Local Authority were
preparing to launch a review to revoke thp premises licence when they received an email from the current
DPS and PLH Mr Deniz Altun surrendering the licence on the 14th January 2016. This is after only 3 months
of having the licence granted and a long list of licence breaches.

Page 14



The licence itself was never actually surrendered but in emails to the Principal Licensing Officer Ellie Green
he made clear that this was his intention. This would essentially stop all review proceedings as there would
be no licence to review.

Ellie Green sent an email to Mr Deniz Altun to inform him that by surrendering the licence would mean that
no alcohol could be sold and should be removed from Éhelves, fridges and any other public displays offering
for sale.
On Monday the 18th January 20161visited Zilan Food Stores in company with Ellie Green. I exhibit GM/3
which shows alcohol clearly offered for sale with no attempts to remove. I issued a S.19 Closure Notice and
warned of the offences committed serving upon Mr Govtepe, who was on scene,, having been contacted by a
member of staff.

On the 20th January a transfer of premises licence application was received. This reinstates the previous
licence immediately.

Lícensing Enforcement Officer for Enfield Council Charlotte Palmer has brought to my attention a companies
house check on the proposed business name that this request to transfer is for.

Enfield Food Store Ltd's Director is shown as Ebru Govtepe. This is believed to be Mr Sefer Govtepe's wife.

I believe that this is an attempt to circumvent the review process and furthermore to approve the transfer of
the licence to Enfield Food Store Ltd would automatically put the licence in breach. Breaching licence
conditions is a criminal offence and would therefore put the licence holder at risk of prosecution.

I believe that Mr Govtepe has been in control at all times and that he has shown a disregard to the law and
the Licensing Authority. When found committing offences and licences have been revoked he appears just to
replace the licence with a new one and finding others willing to act for him as licence holders/DPS's. The
goods are always hidden away showing an attempt to deceive the authorities and acknowledging the crime
committed in doing so. I believe that this is yet another attempt to run the business by Mr Govteþe and in
running the venue will continue to commit crime in the same way.

A criminal investigation is also currently underway with a view to prosecute for the offences detailed in
Charlotte Palmer and Victor Ktorakis' statements.

Should a hearing be required a full exhibits list will be provided and I reserve the right to add to this
representation.

Yours Sincerely

Gary Marsh
PC 475Y8
Police Licensing Team
Edmonton Police Station
0208 34s 3322

Page 15



eru ll
WITNESS STATEMENT OF CHARLOTTE PALMER

l, Charlotte Palmer of the Licensing Enforcement Team, Business Regulation,

London Borough of Enfield, B Block North, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1

3HX, believe that the facts of this witness statement are true and understand that it

may be placed before the Court.

lnsofar as the content of this witness statement is within my personal knowledge, it is

true and insofar as it is not within my personal knowledge, it is true to the best of my

knowledge, information and belief.

IWILL SAY AS FOLLOWS:

Dated the 29th day of January 2016

1. My name is Charlotte PALMER, I am a Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer and

hãve worked in the London Borough of Enfield Licensing Team since January

2005. I hold the National Certificate of Higher Education in Licensing Law. I

have access to all the Department's documentation, and other computerised

records, regarding all premises and persons licensed under the Licensing Act

2003 and am duly authorised to enforce all legislation relating to the Licensing

Act 2003. I also work on the Council's Out of Hours Licensing Enforcement

Team.

2.. Enfield Council records show the following information in relatíon to 236 Hertford

Road, Enfield, EN3 sBL,

3. On 22nd February 2OO7 Mr Sefer GOWEPE was granted a premises licence for

Hertford Food and wine, 236 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 sBL (LN/200600249)

The licence named him as both the premises licence holder and thé designated

premises supervisor and gave his home address as 43 Merlin House, 2 Napier

Road, Enfield, Middlesex, EN3 4QJ. I produce a copy of this licence as cpX/01

4. On 13th August 2008 Mr Sefer GOWEPE was granted a new premises licence

for Hertford Food and Wine, 236 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 5BL

(LN/200800470). The licence named him as both the premíses licence holder

1of 8

Page 16



and the designated premises supervisor and gave his home address as 43 Merlin

House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, Middlesex, EN3 4QJ. I produce a copy of this

licence as cPV02. This new licence was applied for as the premises area had

been extended. The original licence could have been surrendered at this point as

it was no longer valid but this was not done.

5. On 1Oth May 2011, Ellie GREEN, then Principal Trading Standards Officer -
Licensing Enforcement submitted two premises licence review applications in

relation to Hertford Food and Wine. One to revoke the original redundant licence

which I now produce as GPX/03 and the other to revoke the new licence following

the discovery that the premises was selling non-duty paid alcohol. I produce a

copy oi this application as CPX/04.

6. On 13th July 2011 both reviews hearing were heard. I now produce the Lícensing

Sub Committee decision notice as CPX/05. The orijinal redundant licence was

surrendered and the new licence was revoked. The decisíon to revoke the

licence was appealed but as the appellant failed to attend the court hearing the

appeal was dismissed on 29th Septembe¡ 2011.

7. on 6ü september 2o11 a new premises licence was íssued to Mr suleyman

ERDOGAN for Hertford Food Centre, 23G Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 SBL

(LN/201100396). The lícence named him as both the premises licence holder

and the designated premises supervisor. I produce a copy of this licence as

cPx/06.

8. On lOrh March 2015 I submitted a licênce review application in relation to Hèrtford

Food Centre to revoke the licence following the dÍscovery that the premises was

selling non-duty paid alcohol and tobacco. I produce a copy of this application as

CPX/07. lncluded in the review application is information showing that Mr Sefer

GOWEPE and Mr Suleyman ERDOGAN were business paftners.

9, On 13ü May 2015 the review hearing took ptace. The licence was revoked. I now

produce the Licensing Sub Committee decision notice as CPX/08. The decision

to revoke the licence was appealed but the appellant withdrew the appeal and

agreed to pay the respondents costs. I now produce as copy ofthat consent

Order as CPX/09.

10. On 18th September 2015 a new premises licence was issued to Mr Deniz ALTUN

forzilan Food centre, 236 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 sBL (LN/201s00s17).

2of8

Page 17



The licence named him as both the premises licence holder and the designated

premises supervisor. He offered the following condition in the application:

'Neither Mr. Sefer Govtepe or Mr. Suleyman Erdogan or their immediate family

are to have any financial ínterest or control over the day to day running of the

business'. The finalwording was agreed as: Condition 24'Neither Mr Sefer

Govtepe or Mr Suleyman Erdogan'or their immediate family shall be involved in

any way in the operation and / or management of the business or be permitted to

work in the business in any capacity.' I produce a copy of this licence as CP)ü10

1 1. On 3'd September 2015 I visited the premises along with Filippina MARZIANO,

Senior Fair Trading Officer and Mr HARRIS a dog handler from Operation

Wagtail and search dogs to check for counterfeit or non-duty paid products. Only

the main shop was checked and nothing was found. I now produce a copy of the

lnspectíon report, which both I and Mr ALTUN signed, as GP)UI l.

12. On 6th September 2015 the Trading Standards team were forwarded a cornplaint

from the Crimestoppers organisatíon. The complaínant alleged that staff at the

premises were selling Romanian and Polish cigarettes. The complainant went on

to say that the premises name and owner had changed but that Sefer GOWEPE

was still selling illegal cigarettes and alcohol. The complainant said that the

cigarettes were stored under the chopping desk in the butcher's section and that

the premises also employed five staff who were not entitled to work in the UK.

13. On 2nd October 2015 I was working on the Out of Hours Licensing Enforcement

Tearn with Claire TOMASO, Senior Environmental Health Officer and Mr

MISTRY, lmmigration Officer. We entered Zilan Food Centre at 18:25 and I

carried out a full licence inspection with Mr Deniz ALTUN. The following

conditions were being breached:

Condition 4 All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every

three months) relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and

conditions of the premises licence.

Conditions 5 Alltraining relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions

of the premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the

premises. These records shall be made available to the Police andior

Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year.

Condition 6 A'Think 25' proof of age scheme shall be operated and relevant

material shall be displayed at the premises.

3ofB

Page 18



Conditions 7 Awritten record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and

completed when necessary. This record shall contain the date and

time of the refusal, a description of the customer,,the name of the staff

member who refused the sale, and the reason the sale was refused.

This record shall be made available to Police and/or the Local

Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year from the
date of the last entry.

Condition I The Designated Premises Supervisor shall regularly check the

refusals book to ensure it is being consistenfly used by all staff.

Condition 10 Prominent, clearand legible notices shall be displayed at allpublic
exits from the premises requesting custorners respect the surrounding

area and dispose of litter in a responsible manner. These notices shall

be positÍoned at eye level and in a location where those leaving the
premises can read them.

Gonditíoñ 15 All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be

stored in a container clearly marked 'tobacco stock,. This contaíner

shall be kept within the store room or behind the sales counter.

Condition 17 Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be dÍsplayed on all alcohol

fridges and at all other alcohol display areas advising customers of the
permitted sale of alcoholtimes.

Condition 18 All cans of beer, lager and cider must be indelibly marked to show the

trading name of the shop to address the problem of street drinking and

associated crime and anti-social behaviour.

Condition 20 A stock control system will be introduced, so that the licensee can

quickly,identify where and when alcoholic goods have been purchased

Condition 21 An ultra-violet light shall be available at the premises for the purpose

of checking the UK Duty Stamp on spirit stock.

condition 26 Appropriate signage will be displayed, in a prominent position,

informing customers they are being recorded on CCTV.

Condition 27 CCTV covering areas inside and outside of,the premises should be

installed and maintained to police recommendations with properly

maintained log arrangements. All images will be stored for a minimum

of 31 days.

Part B of the licence was not on display.

Failing to comply with any condition attached io a Premises Licence is a

criminal offence, which on conviction is punishable by a fine of up to Ê20,000,

up to six months imprisonment or both. A Part B search notice was signed by

4ofB

Page 19



Mr Deniz ALTUN. whilst I carried out the inspection the other officers

checked the butchers area for any sign on non-duty paid tobacco and found

9x 509 packets of Golden Virginia hand rolling tobacco and 40 packets of

Marlboro Gold cigarettes in a draw under the butchers chopping table. All

had foreign labelling and did not bear the 'uK DUTY pAlD' labelling. The

Tobacco (Manufacture, Presentation and sale) (safety) Regulations 2002

which requires English warnings were contravened, amounting to an criminal

offence under the consumer Protection Act 1987. when I told him what the

officers had found Mr ALTUN said that he did not know that the tobacco was

there and that it must have been left behind by the previous licènce holder

and that he Was aware that the previous people had lost their licence for that

reason. The immigration officer made a note of'the contact details of those

people working . one male claimed not to work there despite being seen

stocking the shelves on our arrival. Mr ALTUN signed the inspection report,

Part B search notice and seizure notice and was given a copies of them. I

noúv produce a copy of these documents as cPXl2-14. we left the premises

at 19:30.

14. On 13th October 2015 the Trading Standards team were fonruarded a further

complaint via Crimestoppers stating that Sefer GOVTEPE oÍ 236 Hertford Road,

Enfield was selling illegaltobacco, employing illegal immigrants and that he has

registered his shop in somebody else's name.

15. On 20rh October 2015 at17:20I hand delivered a warning tetter to Zilan Food

Centre in relation to the tobacco found on 2nd October 2015. The letter included

a voluntary declaration form for Mr ALTUN to sign confirmíng that he had since

checked the whole of the premises to ensure that there were no further non duty

paid products there. I now produce a copy of the letter as CPX/15. Whilst at the

premises I attempted to carry out a licence re-inspection but rìo one there was

able to assist. I also left an inspection repoft asking for the owner to contact me

to arrange an alternative time and date to visit. I now produce a copy of the

inspection report as CPX16.

16. on 29th october 2o15 t received an emailfrom Mr ALTUN'S Licensing Agent,

Ada Group. Attached to the emailwas the signed declaration dates 26/10/15

now produce the email and signed declaration as CpX/12.

5 of I

Page 20



17. on 6th November 20151 reûisited Zilan Food centre at 20:35 to check the
outstanding licence conditions. The following conditions were still being

breached: Condition 4 - two staff on site were not mentioned in the training

book, Condilion 21- The UV light was not working. I gave a further seven days

to email evidence of compliance, I left the premises at 20:50. I now produce a

copy of the inspection report as CpXl B.

18' On 1Orh November 2015 officers from the Trading Standards Team visited the
prernises as part of a joint operation with offïcers from Her Majesty,s Revenue

and customs (HMRC) looking for non-duty paid products. The followíng items

were found:

71x Kasapreko Alomo Bitter - 200 ml botfles

3x Kasapreko Alomo Bitter - 750ml botfles.

The items were seized by HMRC. I now produce their inspection report and
. Part B search notice as GpXl g - 20.

19. On 21't December 2015 I visited the premises along with Ellie GREEN, principal

Licensing Officer, Victor KTORAKIS, Senior Environmental Health Officer and Mr
HARRIS a dog handler from operation wagtair and search dogs to check for
counterfeit or non-duty paid products. A full accoúnt of that visit is given in the
statement of Victor KTORAKIS.

20. On 12th January 2016 Environmental Crime officers visited the premises and

noted that the trading name had changed to New Heñford Food Centre Limited

21' On 14th January 2016 Mr Denzi ALTUN surrendered the premises licence for

Zilan Food Centre - LN/201500517.

22. on 2oth January 2016, Transfer and vary Designated premises supervisor
applications were submitted. lf a transfer is submitted within 28 days of a licence

being surrendered the licence is reinstated until such time as an objection is
raised by the police and a decision made by the Licensing Sub Committee. The

' applicant in this case is a limited company - Enfield Food Stores Limited. The
proposed DPS is Mr Necip KARAGOZ

23. on 22nd January 20161 checked the company detail on companies House. The

director of the company is Erbu GowEpE who is believed to be sefer

6of8

Page 21



GowEPE's wife. I now produce a copy of the report from companies House as

cPxt21.

24. on 28th January 20161checked companies House website to see who the

director of New Hertford Food Centre Limited is. lt showed that Sefer GOWEPE
has been the director of the company since 19th October 2015 and that prior to

that the director was Deniz ALTUN. This demonstrates a breach of condition 24

of the licence. I now produce a copy of the report from Gompanies House as

cPxt22.

25. I can confirm that had the licence not been surrendered, the Licensing Authority

would have submitted a review application to revoke the licence following the

discovery of further non-duty paid tobacco on 21't December 2015. DCMS

Guidance (11.26) states that there are certain criminal activities that may arise in

connection with licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers should

be treated particularly seriously. The list includes the sale of smuggled tobacco

and alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products). DCMS guidance (11.27) goes on to

say that it is e¡visaged that responsibility authorities will use the review

procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise

and the licensing authority determines that the crime preventíon objective is being

undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that

revocation of the licence - even in the first instance - should be seriously

considered.

26. To grant the transfer would be to grant a licence that cannot legally be used as to

do so would be an automatic breach of conditions 24 of the licence: 'Neither Mr

sefer Govtepe or Mr suleyman Erdogan or their immediate family shall be

involved in any way in the operation and / or management of the business or be

permitted to work in the business in any capacity'. No variation application to

remove this condition has been submitted and if such an application were to be

submitted the Licensing Authority would submit a representation objecting to it.

27.The electoral register shows that Erbu GOWEPE and Sefer GOWEPE both live

at 50 Parsonage Lane, Enfield, EN2 OAH. The register was last updated on 1st

December 2015.

28.4 prosecution investigation relating to the offences discovered on 21't December

2015 is underway.

7 otB

Page 22



29' In addition Council records show that Mr Sefer GOWEPE has a personal licence

, (LN/2006000f 7), Tl¡e licence was issued by the London Borough of Enfield on

11h April 2006 and his address is risted as 43 Merlin House, 2 Napierr Road,

Enfield, ENg 4QJ. To date the Licensing Authority has not received any iequest
to amend this home address. Under the Licensing Act 2003, personal licence
holders hâve a legal responsibility to give written notifi'catlon to the issuing
Licensing Authority, of any changes to information stated on their personal

Licence.

30. ln conclusion, the LicensÍng Authority supports the police objection to this licence

fransfer appiícation.

Signed:

Dated the 29th day of January 2016

SofB

Page 23



Mr Samuel Lewis
Positive
Licensing Department
90 Green Lanes
Newington Green
London
NI6 gEJ

Please reply to

Tet

Fax

Minicom
Email

My ref
Your Ref

Date

CfXlot

EN FIELD
Council

Environment, Street Scene & parks
Mark Galvayne
Licensing Unit
PO Box 57, Civic Centre
Silver Street, Enfield, Middx. EN1 3XH
020 8379 3578
020 8379 5120
020 8379 4419
licensing@enfield. gov. uk
LN/200600789
EN3 sBL
22nd February 2007

Dear Mr Samuel Lewis

Licensinq Act 2003
Premises : Hertford Food & wine, 236 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 sBL

This letter concerns the application for a New Premises Licerice under the Licensing
Act 2003.

Please find the licence enclosed. Please check the details on the licence carefully,
the Licensing Author:ity is prepared to correct any clerical errors within Zg days ói
the licence being issued.

Please be advised that the licence does not override any restrictions on trading
hours etc. that may apply to the premises in respect of planning permission and/or
Sunday trading & etc.

The terms, conditions and restrictions of the licence must be complied with
whenever the premises is used for licensable activities. Failure to comply with 1¡re
licence is a criminal offence with, on conviction, a maximum fine of EZO,O-OO and/or
up to 6 months imprisonment.

The licence, or a certified copy of it, must be kept on the premises at all times and
must be produced on request to any authorised officer. The summary of the licence
must be prominently displayed within the premises.

Should you wish to change the operation of the premises in the future'by adding
new licensable activities or by changing the hours or removing condition. if'"n yoü
will need to apply for a variation of the licerce. Please contact us for further advióe.

You must notify the licensing authority of any change in the name and/or address of
either the premises licence holder or the designated premises supervisor.

Page 24



The licence is subject to an annual fee, payable on each anniversary of the licence
first being granted.

lf you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Mark Galvayne
Licensing Officer

Page 25



Licensinq Act 2003

PART A - PREIVIISES LICENCE

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : LN/200600789

Part I - Prernises Details

Postal address of premises:
Premises name: Hertford Food &

Not provided

236 Hertford Road Enfield EN3 5BL

Telephone number:

Address

Where the Iicence is time-limited, the
dates :

Not time limited

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those
activities :

(1)

(21

Sunday:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday :

Thursday:
Friday:

Saturday:

08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 0l:00
08:00 - 01:00

Open to the Public - Whole Premises

Supply of Alcohol - Off supplies
Sunday:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday :

Thursday:
Friday:

Saturday:

08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 0l:00
08:00 - 01.:00

Page 26



Part 2

Name and (registere
Name :

address of holder of ises licence :

Telephone number:

e-mail

Address

Registered number of holder (where
applicable) :

Name and (reg
applicable) :

Not applicable

Name :

Telephone number:

Address

Name and address of designated premises supervisor (where the licence

istered) address of second holder of premises licence (where

Not applicable

authorises the supp
Name :

lssuing Authority :

of alcoho

Telephone number:

e-mail :

Address :

Perso¡al licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply oi
alcohol) :

Personal Licence Number : LN/200600017

London Borou h of Enfield

Premises Licence LN/200600789 was first granted on 22 February 2007.

Signed Date:22nd February 20OT
for and on behalf of the
London Borough of Enfield
Licensing Unit, Givic Gentre, Silver Street, Middx. ENl 3XH
Telephone : 020 8379 3578

Mr Sefer Govtepe

Not provided

Not provided

43 Merlin House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, Middx, EN3
4QJ

Mr Sefer Govtepe

Not provided

Not provided

43 Merlin House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, Middx, EN3
4QJ

Page 27



Annex I - Mandatory conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:(a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect
of the premises licence, or
(b) At a time whèn the designated premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a.person who holds a personal licence.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

3. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to coRcern in respect of
children.

4. clear and legible notices shall be displayed within the premises
reminding customers to leave the premises quiefly.

5. A register of refused-sales shall be maintained at the premises.

6. A Closed Gircuit Television (CCTV) system shall be installed, operated
and maintained at the premises. The CCTV system shall conform to the
following points : (a) lf the GCTV equipment is inoperative or not working to
the satisfaction of the Polic'e and Licensing Authoiity, the premises shalf dot
be used for licensable activities unless with prior agreement from the Police;
(b) Gameras must be sited to observe the entrance door, the bar and till area
and eating areas; (c) Be capable of visually confirming the nature of the crime
committed; (d) Be capable of identifying the suspected criminal(s) visuatly for
purposes of evidence and connect them yvith the crime; (e) Provide evidence-
supporting detail relating to the circumstances; (f) Provide a linked record of
the date, time and place of any image; (g) Provide good quality colour images;
(h) Gapture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders of all people exiting
the premises from both entry and exit routes; (i) Have the capability to record
a full-length view of a person 1.92m tall, to occupy at least 60% of the image
height, in at least one of the captured images; (j) Operate under existing light
levels within the premises; (k) Have the recording device located in a secure
area or locked cabinet; (l) Have a monitor to review images and recorded
picture quality; (m) Recoid images as near to reat tirne ãs possible and where
practical, personal attack buttons should be connected via the GCTV system,
to change any time-lapse recording to real time; (n) Be regularly maintained to
ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (o) comply with
the Data Protection Act (DPA) and any applicable British Security lndustry
Association (BSIA) codes of practice; (p) Have signage displayed in the
customer area to advise that GGTV is in operation; (q) Be operated by the
correct procedures, to ensure an evidence trail is recorded and can be
retrieved for evidehtial purposes; (r) lf the system is analogue, a library of 31
video tapes are required for storage and rotation; (s) Ghecks should be
frequently undertaken to ensure that the equipment performs properly and
that all the cameras are operational and a log kept; (t) lf tapes are used it
should be ensured that they are good quality and in good condition and in
any case must be changed every l2 months; (u) The medium on which the

Page 28



images are captured should be cleaned so that images are not recorded on
lop o! the images recorded previously; (v) The medium on which the images
have been recorded'should not be used when it has become apparent ttrãt ttre
quality of the images has deteriorated; (w) Access to recorded images should
.be restricted to those staff that need to have access in order to achleve the
purposes of using the equipment; (x) All access to the medium on which the
images are recorded should be documented; (y) Police will have access to
images at any reasonable time; (z) Disclosure of the recorded images to third
parties should only be made in limited and prescribed circumstances, law
enforcement agencies, Prosecution agencies, relevant legal representatives
and people whose images have been recorded and retained.

7. The premises must be fitted with a monitored atarm system to EU50l3l
and have a panic button facility at the counter area.

8. The premises must operate the current local authority or similar'proof
of age' scheme and display the relevant Iiterature. only photo driving
licences, passports and PASS logo ID cards must be accepted.

9. Unaccompanied children under 14 shall not be allowed to enter or
remain on the premises after 21=00.

10. There shall be displayed on the exit doors a sign stating, "you are
entering a drinking control area and no open alcoholic drinks are to be taken
off the premises".

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

Not applicable

Page 29



Annex 4 - Plans

t lc pqwnt

¿^
L{-

GARDEN

¿

LEGEXD

I wcARÊÂ

FRIOGES

WNE S}ELF

íÏiiì:I: LIC¡UOR SHELF

E A[€rT OF (CeNSEO
pREüts€s

>< sAFEry LtGHrs

tr siloKEo€rEcroR

^ 
cARðON otOXtDE F|RE
EXTINGUISÉER

6 súr. wATERFTRE
ÉxftÞlcutSHER

sæ FTREESCAPËKÊEP
CTEAR

FAINTERMILY ILLUMII\|AIED

-FIRE 
ESCAPÊ SIGI{

(BS s2s6l

@| FIRE eLAxxET

P ERE¡$G¡¡ss n¡¡uei

#
ÀIÁR¡I CAII.POINT

FEE AI¡RM'BELT
F|RE OOOn

puuic p¡ffiqn

frldga

I
I

E

n

I

EI

I

HERÎFORD
SUPERTART(ET

236 HERTFORD RD
ENFIELÐ
EN3 58L

PROPOSEO

GRqJND FLOOR

SCAIE f,10o{tA4 OATE il8r0lr07

REF- NO | 160121t07'l¡3

Postrn/Ë
ùßÚd¡{*yh¡q

fl) GG€n Lánes LONOON
N16 9E'

Tel : O20 f241 3836(4lins)
#

tv'liw,erizoo3.ffi

Page 30



Licensinq Act 2003

PART B - PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : LN/200600789

Part I - Premises Details

Postal address of premises :
.Premises name:

Telephone number:

Address :

Where the licence is time-limited, the
dates :

Hertford ood & Wine

Not provided

236 Hertford Road Enfield EN3 sBL

Not time Iimited

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence and the times the Iicence authorises the carrying out of those
activities :

(r)

(2t

Sunday:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday:

Thursday:
Friday:

Saturday:

08¡00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 .00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 0l:00
08:00 - 01:00

Open to the Public - Whole Premises

Supp Iv Alcoho off su pplies
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 0l:00

Sunday:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday :

Thursday:
Friday:

Saturday:

Page 31



Pa¡t 2

Name and (registere
Name :

address of holder of ises Iicence :

Name and (registered) address of 'second holder of premises licence (where
applicable):

Name : Not applicable

Address :

Registered number of holder (where
applicable) :

Address

Name of designated premises
supervisor (where the licence
authorises the supply of alcohol) :

State whether access to the premises
by children is restricted/prohibited :

Not applicable

Mr Sefer Govtepe

Restricted

Premises Licence LN/200600789 was first granted on 22 February 2oo7.

Date : 22nd February 2OO7

London Borough of Enfield
Licensing Unit, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Middx. ENl 3XH
Telephone : 020 8379 3578

EN

43 Merlin House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, Middx, EN3
4QJ

Mr Sefer Govtepe

Page 32



. -:,. i-;"*! r*r;Þnt+.1¡sj4

llr Stevens Allen
NARTS
Licenting D,ept
507 Green L¡ne¡
Palmers Grcen
London
Nl3 4BS

Pfease reply to

Tel
Far

Minrcorn :

Erndl:
Itdy ref ;

Your Ref:
Daþ;

Ca N lç;-

EN FIELD
Council

Environmont Stn€t Sccne t prrft¡
Mark Galvayne
Lbensing Unit
PO 8ox 57, Civic Centre
Silver Street, Enfietd, Middx. ENi 3XH
020 8379 3578
02a &379 5120
020 8379 ¡1419
licensing@enfield, gov" uk
1NP00800470
NOT PROVIOED
13th August 2008

Dear Mr Stevens Allen

Licensiño Act 2003
PÞmbes : Herüord Food & wine, 236 Herford Roed, Enfield, EN3 sBL

This þtter concems 
_the application for a New Application premises Lícence underthe Licensing Act 2003.

Pbase find the licence enclosed. Pþase check the details on the licence carefully,the Licensing Authority is prepared to conect any chrical enors within 2g days ofthe lícence being issued.

Please be advised that the licence does not override any restricrtions on tradinghours etc- that rnay apply to the premises in respect of planning permission and/orSunday trading & etc.

The terms, conditions and restrictions of the licence must be complier1 withwhenever the premises is used for licensable activities. Failure to compfy with thelicence is a criminal.offence with, on conviction, a rnaximum fine of €20,000 and/or
up to 6 months imprisonment.

The licence, or a certified copy of it, must bë kept on the premises at all times andmust be produced on request to any authorised officer. Thä summ"rll J t¡à lícence
must be prominentþ displayed within the premises.

Should you wish to.change the operatíon of the premises in the future by addingnew licensable activíties o.r I y changing the hours or removins 
"ãnã;t¡*Jir,"n 

yo,
will need to apply for a variation of ttrL l¡cence. Pfease contact us for further advice.

Y.ou must notifo the.lícensing authority ol any change in ttre name andlar address ofeithe'the premises licence holder or ihe desþnateã premises ,up**nã, --

Page 33



The b ¡n annual fre, peyabtc m cæfi. ennlnrsary of üÌó liccnca
firrt

lf you rËqr¡¡lc any furürer ¡nbflneüon, pblcc do not hæ{eta b contB€[ rflc.

Your¡ $nær€ly

Marft Gelvayne
Prhcþd LiconElrq Ofñcsr

r'!-

¡JC*

t:,..,t

{r

'i.ri

ri

ì
¡
{

I

I

i

Page 34



Licensinq Act 2003

PART A - PREMISES LICENCE

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : LN/2008fit470

Part I - Premises Details

Pogt¡l ¡ddrpsc of
Prpmisec name: Hertford Food & Wine

020 8804 9554

236 Herfford Ro¡d Enfield EN3 5BL

Telephone number:

Address:

Wherc the licence l¡ timeJimibd, the
d¡te¡ :

ilot time li

The opening hourr of the prcmiees, the licenc¡ble acüviüe¡ ¡uttrorÍred by the
licence end the time¡ the licence ¡ufüori¡er füe carrylng out of üros; 

-
acüvitie¡;

(1) Open b the Pubth - Whole Prembe¡
Sunday:
f,ondey:

Tueaday:
Wcdnesdey:

Thurrday:
Fridey:

Saturdey:

00:00 - 00:00
ül:00 - 00:fl1
fil:fil - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:(þ

(21 SupPly of Alcohol otr Suppliet
Sunday:
llonday :

Tuerday:
UYednecday:

Thurrday:
Friday:

Saturday :

fil:00 - 00:fi1
fll:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:ül
oo:ôb - 00:fi)
00:ül - 00:0O
00:00 - ül:00
ü):00 - 00:ül

Page 35



Hr Sefer Govtepe

020 8804 r296

l{ot provided

EN3 4QJÍ43 terlin House 2Na

Pa¡i2

Name and (reg ¡ddre¡e of oî

Name end (regittered) addregc of second holder of premires licence (where

Name :

Telephone numbor:

email :

Addrccs :

Registered number of holder (where
applicable):

applicablef :

Name :

Telephone number:

Add¡ec¡ r

lsruing AuthoriÇ:

licence

Not applicable

Not provided

N¡me and ¡ddre¡s of derignated premires ruperyisor (where tñe licence
¡utñori¡es the ru of ¡lcoho

H¡me:

Telephone number:

e-m¡il :

AddÞrs :

Peconal licence number and isluing auttrority of penonal licence held by
deeþnaÞd premiser rupervlror (nûrere tñe licence ¡utlrorise¡ the eupply of
rlcohol):
Personal Llcence Number : LN/200600017

London of Enfield

Premices Licence Lìl/2008 ñrut granted on l3 August 2008.

Signed Dab : 13th Augu¡t 2008
for and on behalf of the
London Borough of Enlield
Licensing Unit, Givic Centre, Silver Stree! Enlleld ENI 3XH
Telephone : 020 E379 357E

Hr Seûer Govtepe

020 E804 1296

Not provided

EN3 ¿fQJRoad43 terlin Hou¡e 2

Page 36



Anner I - lland¡ûory Gondiüon¡

1. may be made under üre prember licence:(¡) b no derignabd prcmiråt rupervlcor in retpect
of thc
(b) At ¡ üme when tñe derignebd premires rupolisor does not hold ¡
perronal llcence o¡ hi¡ perronel licence is rurpended.

2. , Every rupply of ¡lcohol under üre premiseg licence murt ba m¡de or
autñorired by e peruon nfio hold¡ a penon¡l licence.

Annex 2 - Gondltionr conli¡tentwitñ the operating schedule

3. Theru rh¡ll be no rdult entortllnment or ¡eryicec, rctívitie¡ or mattep
encillary to the u¡e of ttre promlres thet may give rire to concern in retpect of
childrpn.

fn eJam r¡tebm, to BSENSOí3r, ch¡il be installod, operrted end
m¡intrined et the premiree.

?".. A dlgltrl ccw muct be inct¡iled in tñe promiræ complylng wlth tñe
following crtbrllr : (1) Camenr mu¡t be ¡ibd io obqewe Croeirt¡nce ¡nd exit
doo¡¡ botñ ln¡ide ¡nd out¡ide, the rlcohol dirphya rnd lloor rnar; (2)

re full fr¡me ¡hot¡ of the hc¡dt rnd
cepable of ldentffic¡üon; (3)
ot lec¡ then 50% of rcreen;

ould be wide eqgled to give en
le of vl¡u¡lly conllrmlng üre n¡ü¡rc of '

imrger ¡nd rucorded picürm qu¡lity; (rrl Be reguhrly maintrined to enrurp
conünuour quelity of imege cepturc ¡nd lpbntíon. liinrn¡nce conf¡ct¡
murt bc mrde rvrllrble þ polbe on Þguc¡q (r2l H¡ve rþnege dbphyed in
tlre cu¡tomer ¡no¡ b ¡dvi¡e ür¡t ccrv ù in oiaáüon; (t3j D¡ã¡t"l irireiec
mu¡t be kept for 3l_daye; (r{) porice will h¡ve acce¡s ûo imegËr et rny
rpacon¡ble ürne; (f 5) The equipment
CDTDVD wrlter to th¡tfüe police cen
requlru. Thi! d¡tr ¡hould be ln the naü

turcr should tupply the rcplay
c¡n be repleyed by the police on

a ¡tandard computer. Copier mu¡t be m¡de ¡v¡it¡ble to Þolicó on requect

6. A R¡¡d control ryrtem muct be lnst¡lled in the premirer complying
with tñe following críteri¡ : (1) A üme delay ¡¡fe i¡ t¡ttbd under ne ioúntsr;
(2) A æpar¡to coveÉ rerl üme crmera b fittpd ¡bove ttre fiont door

m); {3) A ¡moke nob rytûem ir
ed a¡ to Re¡d Control¡ ure rnd a
t" Thi¡ mu¡t be made aveil¡bh to
) Carh must be minimised in the tiil

Page 37



7. Suitable rtepe ¡hall be provided at the promiree úo allow the rear firu
exit to be uted safely in ¡n emerg€ncy.

8. At leact 2 membs¡r of ¡trff chall b€ prurent on the ehop-lloor of the
premises between 22:00 and 06:00.

9. The premises must operate the Local AuttrorÍty or ¡imitar proof of age
1c.h9me ¡nd dbplay tñe rrlevant materiat. onry passÉoG phobjraphic
driving licences or lD with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof oi Age'Stan¿ãr¿i Scheme)
shall be accepted.

10" ProminenÇ cl notice¡ s ublic
exits from the prem custome ocal
residents ¡nd leave nd area q all be
porltioned at eye level and in a location n'hetu they can be ¡ead by ttrose
leaving tlre premises,

11. A written rccord of refused ¡abs mu¡t be kept on tñe premirec and
completed when necotaary. lt muct be made ¡v¡il¡-ble to Poiice andlor tfie
Local Auüority upon requeeL

12- All stafi must receive induction ¡nd refrerher training, rrplating to the
¡ale of alcohol.

13. All tr¡ining rolating to tñe ¡¡le of alcohol ¡hall be documenbd and
records kept This record mu¡t be m¡de available to the Police ¡nd/or Local
Aulhority upon requert

14. Ghildren under the age of t4 ¡hall not be permitbd on the premiser
alter 2l:00 unlec¡ accomp.nied by an adult

15. signr ¡hall be prominenüy dirpleyed on the exit doon¡ advlring
cu¡tometl that tñe promirec i¡ in e 'Drinking Control AÞ¡'¡nd th¡t aftohol
should not be con¡umed in the ¡trcet. Thecã notice¡ ¡hall be po¡itioned ¡t
eye level and in a location where they can be read by thore beïlng the
premises,

16. Deliveries will not be made to the prcmires between the hours ol22:0O
and 06:00

17. Deliveriec ¡hall not cause a noice nuisance to local tp¡idents"

Annex 3 - conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing AuthoriÇ

Not applicable

Page 38



¡
3x
à
I
!
5¡I

Í P
rl
ii

l
Þ<{X X

)< 4ll

¡
I

áa¿
D'al?.{){

t

t
l¡I

ir
ffi
¡f

'llË'

¡í
t

I

7-

¡
I

I

I

I
I

it
tl

P
age 39



Licensinq Act 2003

PART B - PREMISES LICENCE SUTi/|ARY

Where üre licence i¡ time-limited, the
d¡te¡:

E

Not time limibd

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : LN/2008ü)470

Part I - Premises Details

Po¡t¡l addre¡¡ of
Premises name:

Telephone number:

Addrecs :

(r)

The opening hourr of tfie premiret, füe licen¡¡bþ ¡ctivfüec authoriled by ttre
llcence and the fmes the íicence autftorise¡ üre carrying out of ttro¡e
activitie¡ :

Open to tñe Public - ole Promicer
00:00 - 00:00
ül:fll - ül:ül
ül:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:ül - 00:(þ
00:00 - 00:fl1
ül:00 - (Xl:ü)

Sundry:
llonday:
Tuetdty:

Wednecday;
Thurrday:

Fnday:
Saturday:

t2t

236 Hertford Road Enfield EN3 5BL

Hertford Food & Wine

020 8804 9554

Supply of | - Ofr Suppliea
Sunday:
Honday:

Tuesday :

Wednerday:
Thunday:

Friday:
Seturday:

00:00 .00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:üÌ- 00:fXl
00:00 - 00100
00:00 .00:00
00:00 - ül:00
00:ü) - 00:fX)

Page 40



Pa¡t2

l{¡rnc rnd rdd¡¡r¡ ol ol lbcnce:

Reglrbrrrl number of holder (when
epplicrblc):

Nol

t.q: Tjl (regrbrcdl rddncc of ¡econd holdor of prembe¡ ltcence (wtrenrpplicrblel:
J{¡me: ilot provlded

Ir Sof¡r Govbpe

Reltlcbd

Pnmbe¡ Llc¡ncc LNr2o0to0470 wr¡ llnt gnnbd on 13 Augrnt 2@g.

D¡b : l3tlr Au¡urt 2OOB

, Sllvor SÛrot, Enfield Eilf 3XH

l{rme :

Addmro:

Addrco¡ :

Nrme of detþnebd prcmber
rupclbor (whcrr ttro llcmcc
¡uürorbcl tfio rupply of elcohol) :

Strf wlreürer tcc¡eû. b üc prmbæ
öy chlldnn b nctricbdprotrUttO :

Ir
ß EN32

Govûpc

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Application for the review of a premises licence or ctub premises certificate CPX I CZ
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

pletíng this form please read the guidance notes at the end of
lf you are completing this form by hand please write Iegibly in block capitals. ln all
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use
additional sheets if necessa ry
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records
I Ellie Green, Princi p¡_tfr¡ding Standards Officer - Licensi r-9_ Enforcement

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing
Act 2003 for the premises described in part I below

Part I - Premises or club premises details

Hertford Food Centre

Name of premises li
known)

cence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if

Mr Sefer Govtepe, 43 Merlin House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, EN3 4eJ

Number of premises I icence or club premises certificate (if known

LN/200600789

Paft2 - Applicant details
lam

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

Please tick yes

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises n
c) a person involved in busíness in the vicinity of the premises tr
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the Ipremises

2) a responsible authority (please comptete (C) below) X
3) a member of the cluþ to which this application.relates (please complete (A) !

Before com the form.

1 F LIC 1A

none, ordnance survey map reference orPostal address of
description

premises or, if

236 Hertford Road

Post town
Enfield

Post code (if known)
EN3 sBL.

Page 43



below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicabte)

Please tick
Mr n Mrs I Miss tr Ms n other tite

(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick yes
!I am l8 years old or oyer

Gurrent posta!
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mailaddress
(optional)

Post Gode

(B) DETATLS OF OTHER APPLTCANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

2 F LIC 1A

Page 44



Enfield Trading Standards (Weights and Measures)
London Borough of Enfield
PO Box 57
Civic Centre
Silver Street
EN1 3XH

Name and address

Ellie Green

ne number: 020 8379 8543Telepho

E-mail address: ellie. td .ukreen

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuidance
4) the protection of children from harm

Please tick one or more boxes
x

(please read guidance note 1)

ib seeking to review this unds
substantially different to nce.
he premises a new licen ed for

and granted for the same address (LN/2OOSOO47O) ust
2008 wíth the extension included on the plan. However, the original licenee has not
been surrendeied. The premises licence holder has been paying the annualfee for
two licences unnecessarily. Due to the new layout tne originál liðence can no longer
legally be used.

This review is based on the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective.

This review application is to revoke this premises licence. Trading Standards
ar9 also reviewing the new premises licence (LN/200800470) witñ a view to
revocation.

Fa,ckqround Information :

A new premises licence (LN/200600789) was issued to Mr Sefer Govtepe, 43
{9¡in House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, EN3 4QJ as both the Premises Licence Holder
(PLH) and Designated Premises supervisor (Dps) on 22t2t2007.

Please provide as much information es possible to support the application
(please read guidance note 2)

Not applicable.

3 F LIC 1A

Page 45



Trading Standards (Weights and Measures) reserve the right to give evidence on any
further incidents relating to breaches of the licensing objec-tives rinich may take place
at' 

9f. 
in the vicinity of the premises, between the submiésion of this repreéentation

and the hearing or during the time allowed for any appeal proceedings. Additionally,
Trading Standards reserve the right to present detaiis of the outcomé of any Court
hearings between the submission of thís representation and the hearing.

Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before E ruo

lf yes please state the date of that application
Da Month Year

. I have sent copies of this form and encrosures to the ,"roon.,J,l"ase 
tick yes

authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate

' I understand that if I do not comply wíth the above requirements !
my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2OO3
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION

Part 3 - Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

S-ignature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(See guidance note 4). lf signing on behalf of the applicant please state in-what
capacity.

-;-

4

N

Y

Suspension of Licence:

Revocation of Licence:

suspension {riì,ìx 3 r¡ì-rrl}is):Recommended period of

Ïhis premises licence cannot legally be used as the plan is incorrect. A new licence
showing the correct plans has already been issued and this licence is therefore of no
value.

Reasons for

rf you have made representati ons before relating to th ls prem rses please state
what they were and when you made them

Signature

F LIC 1A

Page 46



Date

Capacity

1Oth May 2011

!.rinciPal rrading standards officer - Licensing Enforcement
Trading Standards (Weights and Measureò)

Go namentact not revt(where tven ap nd dressadously g ) forpostal
co ncerresponde associated thwith ts lease read uidanceapplication (p noteg s)

Post Gode

Telephone number (if any)
lf you would prefer us
mail address (optiona

to correspond with you using
r)

an e-mailaddress your e-

Notes for Guidance

1 The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.2- Please list any additional information or details for example daies óf problems
which are included in the grounds for review if avairabre3 The application form must be signed.

4' An appiicant's agent (for exampie solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf
provided that they have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this
application.

5 F LIC 1A

Page 47



Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises cert¡t¡caf 
2Ã i c'¡

under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWNG INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
lf you are completing this form by hand pleasé write legibly in btock capitals. tn all
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.I Ellie Green, Prinç¡prt'rr¡-dir!g Standards Officer - Licensi

n_9_ Enforcement

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 5l of the Licensing
Act 2003 for the premises described in part I below

Part I - Premises or club premises details

Hertford Food Centre

Name of prem
known)

ises licence holder or club holdi ng club premises certificate (if

Mr sefer Govtepe, 43 Merlin House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, EN3 4eJ

Number of prem tses licence or c ub premises certificate ( ¡f known
LN/2008004 70

Parl2 - Applicant detaits
lam

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

Please tick yes

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A)
below)

tr

X

n

7

none, ordnance survey map reference orPostaladdress
description

of premises or, if

236 Hertford Road

Post town
Enfield

Post code (if known)
EN3 sBL.

F LIC 1A

Page 48



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLTCANT (fiil in as appticabte)

Please tick
Mrn Mrs ! Míss n Ms Other title

(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

I am l8 years old or over
Please tick yes

!
Gurrent postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mailaddress
(optional)

(B) DETATLS OF OTHER APPI|CANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

I F L¡C 1A

Page 49



Enfield Trading Standards (Weights and Measures)
London Borough of Enfield
PO Box 57
Civic Centre
Silver Street
EN1 3XH

Name and address

Ellie Green

number: 020 8379 BS43Telephone

E-mail address: ellie .uktd

(c) DETATLS OF RESPONSTBLE AUTHOR|TY AppLtcANT

This application to review relates to the following ticensing objective(s)

1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protectíon of children from harm

Please tick one or more boxes
X
X

x

(please read guidance note 1)

Enfield Trading Standa.rds is-seeking a review of the premises licence on the grounds
that the premises has been found tõ be se lling non duty paíd alcohol. inËli"riret
also.has a history of offences breaching the LicensingÄct 2003, namely breachíngconditions. - \

This review is primarily based on the prevention of crime and disorder licensing
objective, but also supports the protection of children from harm anO freuåntion of
public nuisance licensing objectives.

The review application is to revoke the premises licence.

BacksrounC lnformation :

A new premises licence (LN/200600789) was issued to Mr Sefer Govtepe, 43
Merlin House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, EN3 4QJ as both the Premises Licence Holder
(PLH) and Designated Premises supervisor (Dps) on 22t212007.

A further new premíses licence application was made in June 2008 as the premíses
had extended the licensable area. The premises licence (LN/2OO8OO47O) wås issued
again to Mr sefer Govtepe, 43 tvlerlin House, 2 Napier hoad, Enfield, Êug ¿e¡ 

"sboth thè Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and Designäted Premises Supervisor (DpS)
on 13/08/2008.

To date LN/200600789 has not been surrendered although it cannot be used as the
plan is no longer accurate. Trading Standards are also seãking to revoke this licence
in a separate application.

3 F LIC 1A

Page 50



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application
(please read guidance note 2)

Historv of Premises

The history of the premises will lnclude information under the LN/200600789 as it is
exactly the same person named on the licence, and therefore relevant to this
applicatíon.

914108 - Complaínt alleging noise disturbance from deliveries being made late at
night uótil early morning to the premises' storage at number 232 Hertford Road. The
Enviro Crime Officer advised Mr Sefer Govtepe with assistance from an employee
Besime Koker, as Mr Govtepe was unable to fuily understand English. Mr
Govtepe denied these allegations.

9/6/08 - 'Complaint received alleging shop sells out of date food and alcohol to
underage children. Food officers visited and identified food displayed for sale beyond
the use by dates. Advice was given.

1118108 - LBE became aware that the Fire Service had served a Fire lmprovement
Notice on the premises.

7111108 - Food officers checked for counterfeit vodka, none found.

12112108 - Licensing Enforcement officers visited premises to carry out a full
compliance inspection, and spoke to Mr Govtepe. The following conditions were
found to be in breach: 6 - lnsufficient raid control and training; 10 - Leave quietly sign
not next to exit; 1 1 - No refusals book; 13 - Training records need to be kept for ãil
staff; 15 - Drinking control signs required.2l days were given to bring breaches into
compliance, and an inspection report with advice was issued

O2l01lÙg - Revisit carried out to check outstanding lícence, however Mr Govtepe was
not on the premises and staff requested a re-visit when manager there as they do not
know where records are kept. Officers noted out of date meaiin the fridge anC traO ¡t
removed from sale.

10101l1g - Revisit carried out to check outstanding licence conditions. The following
conditions were found to be in breach: 6- raid control not in place but officers told it
was on order; 13 - no training records; 11 - refusals book on site but not been used.

19101109 - Complaint received that the premises stays open all night, and thqt they
also use 232 Hertrord Road as storage. The storage doors are continuously opened
and closed using shutters, which are very noisy and caused the complainañt to lose
sleep.

OSlO2lOg - As part of the Trading Standards Tobacco project, cigarettes were tested
for authenticity - no problems found. Checked outstanding licensing conditions, the
following were found to be in breach: 13 - training records unavailable; 1 1 - refusals
book available but no entry since 1Ol1l}g.

06/03/09 - Checked outstanding licensing conditions, 1 1 and 13 still found to be in
breach. A warning letter was sent to the premrses.

4 F LIC 1A

Page 51



22106109 - Complaint received that raw meat from the premises is disposed of intothe commercial waste bin, and creating unpleasant smells. Officers visiteö and
established this was a problem, and advicé was given.

06/08/09 - Complaint alleging that the disposal of raw meat continues to be aproblem' Officers visited and saw that the raw meat was still disposed of into the
commercialwaste bin, and the premises was given a verbalwarning.

24108109 - The LBE alcoholtraining materialwas sent to the premises.

28108109 - Complaint alleging noise disturbance from deliveries to the premises, very
early iir the morning.

16110109 - Police received information that the staff at the premises give out fake Ê1
coins in change and sell fake packets of rizzla. Trading Standaids visited and
advised. A selection of Rizla papers were purchased in order to be tested, and
results showed they were genuine.

18112109 - Food officers visited the premises to check for counterfeit spirits. 5 x 70cl
suspect counterfeit Glen's vodka found on shelf behind serving couni"r, and were
seized under the Trade Marks Act. A formal sample was taken from one bot¡e and
the owner of the business, Mr Sefer Govtepe, wai served with a seizure notice. He
said th-at he bought the Gten's from Dhamecha in'Crown Road about a month ago.
The officer informed him that he would be asked to produce invoice.

18105110 - Full compliance check carried out. The outstandíng conditions were: 11 -' no refusals book; J9 -no 
training records; 15 - no drinking cóntrol sÍgn. Ail relevant

material issued to Mr Govtepe.

03106110 - An attempted _test purchase of alcohol using an underage Trading
Standards volunteer was refused.

11lO8l1O - An attempted 
-test purchase of alcohol using an underage Trading

Standards volunteer was refused.

2611 
.1110 - Complaint retating to overflowing bins at premises, and leaving òverflow

of rubbish which attracts rats. The waste coñtract was cancelled due to noñ payment
of fees, and council officers identified the premises rubbish in residential bins. Advice
given to Mr Govtepe.

24101111 - lnformation received from Enviro Crime Officer who suspected possible
duty free cigarettes were being sold from under the counter in the premises. The
officer witnessed the cashier serve a customer items from under the counter making
sure they were in a black bag, which was closed

9y p?l! - Trading Standards, the Police and Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs
(HMRC) carried out joint visits to premises in the borough to see if non duty paid
alcohol or tobacco were being sold. The visits were oni-y made to premiseé *¡tn ef.l
postcodes as the HMRC team that was involved in the óperation only cover those
addresses in the borough, The list was compiled using intelligence from both
T¡ading Standards and HMRC. HMRC identified the foäowing-products as being non
duty paid in Hertford Food Centre: 33.75 litres of assorted wiñes and 3g.45 litres of
assorted spirits were seized. These products were seized by HMRC. The revenue
on these goods seized is Ê449.60.

5 F LIC 1A

Page 52



Additionally, the premises next door but one, lnternet Service, 232 Herlford Road,
Enfield, EN3 sBL and its storage was also checked, as it is owned by Mr Govtepe.
235.2litresof Vodka, 121.5litresof variouswines, 1O9.2litresof Brandy and41.7
litres of other sprits were seized as they were also identified as non duty paid. The
revenue due on the goods seized at lnternet Service is Ê5,401.40.

No receipts were produced for the goods at the time the goods were seized. The
owners were given 28 days to produce the receipts for the goods seized to prove that
they were bought at a wholesaler and that the duty had been paid. That period has
now expired and the receipts have not been provided.

11t02111 - As a result of the recent ."i.rr"., a full licence inspection was attempted
at the premises, however, the only person present at the premises could not
understand the officers, so the inspection did not take place.

14102111 - Further information from the same Enviro Crime Officer: that the premises
and internet cafe continues to sell tax free cigarettes. The owners at these two
premises are also linked to Hertford Discount Store on the same parade, and that
there are more storage units at the rear of all these premises.

18102111 - Officers visited premises to carry out the licence inspection, and met with
Mr Mehmet Govtepe, employee, however on the officers' arrival, he indicated that he
was Mr Sefer Govtepe, the PLH and DPS. Conditions found to be in breach were: 5 -
CCTV clock was 50 minutes later than correct time; No CCTV sign displayed;
Monitor had error message 'No HDD Connected'. Mr Mehmet Govtepe could not
operate the system so officers were unable to establish whether the CCTV was
recording or compliant; 6 - No raid control;'11 - No refusals book; 12 - No training
evident; 13 - No training records available. Mr Mehmet Govtepe stated that Mr Sefer
Govtepe was on the premises daily. 14 days were given to address the non
compliances, and an inspection report with advice was signed by and left with Mr
Mehmet Govtepe. Further verbal advice relating to raid control'was given by Martyn
Fisher, Police Licensing Officer following this visit.

2310212011 Revisit to premises carried out as part of joint operation with HMRC,
Tradíng Standards, and the Police. HMRC officers seized 13.6kg of shisha tobacco,
and 3.15 litres of various spirits, as they were found to be non duty paid. No receipts
were produced for the goods at the time the goods were seized. The owners were
gíven 28 days to produce the receipts for the goods seized to prove that they were
bought at a wholesaler and that the duty had been paid. That period has now
expired and the receipts have not been provided. The goods seized amounted to
totalduty evaded of 11503.44.

Paul Cumberland from HMRC has produced two statements relating to the said
seizures - see Appendíx A and B.

11103111 - Officers carried out licensing revisit inspection with Mr Sefer Govtepe.
The following conditíons were still found io be in breach: 6 - Raid Control system not
in place fully; 12 - No training carried out; 13 - Training records not completed. An
inspection report was left advising a further 21 days to bring the outstandìng issues
into complience.

Ogl04l2o11 - Officers carried out licensing revisit. Checked outstanding conditions.
Training carried out and records seen. Raid control seems to have been installed -
smoke notes seen, there was a box near the door that the owner claimed was a
camera but the officers were not lO0o/o convinced, matter referred to police licensing
officer.

6 F LIC 1A

Page 53



13104111 - Trading Standards attempted a test purchase of cigarettes with child E
The child was asked his age and the sale was refused.

Additional I nformation :

D_CMS Guidance (11.26) states that there are certain criminal activities that may
arise in connection with licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers
should be treated particularly seriously. The list includes the sále of smuggled
tobacco and alcohol (ie non duty paid products).

DCIVIS guidance (11.27) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsibility
authoríties will use the review procedures etfectively to ðeter such activities ånd
crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime
prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further
crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence - even in the firsiinstance -
shouid be seriously considered.

ll ttt! licensing committee is not minded to revoke the premises licence completely,
Trading Standards (Weights and Measures) asks that consideràtion be given [o
suspend the licence until such time that a vary Designated Premises Suþervisor
application has been submitted and issued and the Licensing Enforcement Team are
confident that all licence conditions are being complied with. Trading Standards do
not believe that the current DPS is a suitable person to be named as the DpS, given
that non duty paid goods were found on the second visít, after such a short timefiame
in between visits, and the history of non compliant conditions. lf the licence is not
revoked Trading Standards (Weights and Measures) also recommend modifying the
times and conditions of the licence, as detailed below, to help to prevent crime and
disorder associated with the sale of counterfeit and non-duty paid items on the
premises in the future.

1

Activity Current Times Proposed Times
Opening 24 hours daily 07:00 - 23:00 daily
Alcohol 24 hours daily 0:00 - 23:00 daily

No. Current Condition TS
Agree

Amended to read

3 There shall be no adult
entertainment or services,
activities or matters ancillary to the
use of the premises that may give
rise to concern in respect of
children.

Y

4 An alarm system, to BSENSOI31,
shall be installed, operated and
maintained at the rses

Y

5 A d ig ital CCTV must be nsta n
the premises complying with the
following criteria: (1) Cameras
must be sited to observe the
entrance and exit doors both
inside and outside, the alcohol
displays and floor areas; (2)
Cameras on the entrances must
capture full frame shots of the
heads and shoulders of all

N A digital CCTV system must be
installed in the premises complying
with the following criteria: (1) Cameras
must,be sited to observe the entrance
and exit doors both inside and
outside, the alcohol displays, and floor
areas; (2) Cameras on the entrances
must capture full frame shots of the
heads and shoulders of all people
entering the premises i.e. capable of

F LIC 1A

Page 54



entering the premises i.e. capable
of identification; (3) Cameras
viewing till'areas must capture
frames not less then 50% of
screen; (4) Cameras overlooking
floor areas should be wide angled
to give an overview of the
premises; (5) Be capable of'
visually confirming the nature of
the crime committed; (6) Provide a
linked record of the date, time and
place of any image; (7) Provide
good quality colour images; (B)
Operate under existing light levels
within and outside the premises;
(9) Have the recording device
located in a secure area or locked
cabinet; (10) Have a monitor to
review images and recorded
picture quality; (11) Be regularly
maintained to ensure continuous
quality of image capture and
,retention. Maintenance contracts
must be made available to Police
on request; (12) Have signage
displayed in the customer area to
advise that CCTV is in operation;
(13) Dígital images must be kept
for 31 days; (14) Police wiil have
access to images at any
reasonable time; (15) The
equipment must have a suitable
export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer
so that the police can make an
evidential copy of the data they
require. This data should be in the
native file format, to ensure that no
image quality is lost when making
the copy. lf this format is non-
standard (i.e. manufâcturer
proprietary) then the manufacturer
should supply the replay software
to ensure that the video on the CD
can be replayed by the police on a
standard computer. Copiès must
be made available to Police on

identification; (3) Cameras
areas must capture frames not less
then 50% of screen; (4) Cameras
overlooking floor areas should be
wide angled to give an overview of the
premises; (5) Be capable of visually
confirming the nature of the crime
committed; (6) Provide a linked record
of the date, time, and place of any
image; (7) Provide good quality
images - colour during opening times;
(8) Operate under existing light levels
within and outside the premises; (9)
Have the recording device located in a
secure area or locked cabinet; (10)
Have a monitor to review images and
recorded picture quality; (11) Be
regularly maintained to ensure
continuous quality of image capture
and retention; (12) Have signage
displayed in the customer area to
advíse that CCTV is in operation; (13)
Digital images must be kept for 31
days; (14) Police and authorised
officers of the council will have
access to jmages at any reasonable
time; (15) The equipment must have a
suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD
writer so that the police and / or
authorised officer of the council can
make ãn evidential copy of the data
they require. This data should be in
the native file format, to ensure that
no image quality is lost when making
the copy. lf this format is non-standard
(i.e. manufacturer proprietary) then
the manufacturer should supply the
replay software to ensure that the
video on the CD can be replayed by
the police on a standard computen
Copies must be made available to
Police on request.

víewing till

Control system must be
installed in the premises
complying with the following
criteria : (1) A time delay safe is
fitted under the counter; (2) A
separate covert realtime camera
is fitted above the front door
monitoring customers exiting.
(Raid Cam); (3) A smoke note

A Raid

m is installed All staff

a F LIC 1A

Page 55



must be fully trained as to Raid
Controls use and a signed written
record of all training kept. This
must be made available to police
or council officers on request; (S)
Cash must be minimised in the till
and the safe utilised.

7 Su itable steps shall be provided at
the premises to allow the rear fire
exit to be used safely in an
emergency,

Y

I At least 2 members of staff shall
be present on the shop-floor of the
premises between 22:00 and
06:00.

N At least 2 members of staff shall be
present on the shop floor of the
premises at all times the premises are
open for licensable activities. t

9 The premises must operate the
Local Authority or similar proof of
age scheme and display the
relevant material. Only passport,
photographic driving licences or lD
with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of
Age Standards Scheme) shall be

N The Local Authority or similar proof of
age scheme shall be operated and
relevant material shall be displayed at
the premises. Only passport,
photographic driving licences or lD
with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of Age
Standards Scheme) may be accepted.

10 Prominent, clear and legible
notices shall be displayed at all
public exits from the premises
requesting customers respect the
needs of local residents and leave
the premises and area quiefly.
These notices shall be poqitioned
at eye level and in a location
where they can be read by those

the

Y

11 A written record of refused sales
must be kept on the premises and
completed when necessary. lt
must be made available to police
and/or the Local Authority upon
request.

N A written record of refused sales shall
be kept on the premises and
completed when necessary. This
record shall be made available to
Police and/or the Local Authority upon
request and shall be kept for at least
one year from the date of the last

12 All staff must receive induction and
refreshêr training, relating to the
sale of alcohol.

N All staff shall receive induction and
refresher training (at least every three
months) relating to the sale of alcohol,
and the times and conditions of the

ises li
13 Ail training relating to the sale of

alcohol shall be documented and
records kept. This record must be,
made available to the Police
and/or Local Authority upon
request.

N Alr training relating to the sale of
alcohol and times and conditions of
the licence shall be documented and
records kept at the premises. These
records shall be made available to the
Police and/or LocalAuthority upon
request and shall be kept foi ai least
one year.

9 F LIC 1A

Page 56



14 Children under the age of 14 shall
not be permitted on the premises
afler 21:00 unless accompanied
by an adult.

N Children under 14 years, not
accompanied by an adult, are not
permitted to remain at or enter the
premises after 21:00 hours.

15 Signs shall be prominently
displayed on the exit doors
advising customers that the
premises is in a'Drinking Control
Area' and that alcohol should not
be consumed in the street. These
notices shall be positioned at eye
level and in a location where they
can be read by those leaving the

ises.

Y

16 Deliveries will not be made to the
prernises between the hours of
22:00 and 06:00.

N Deliveries will not be made to the
premises between the hours of 21:00
and 07:00.

17 Deliveries shall not cause a noise
nuisance to local residents.

N Remove - covered by other legislation

Annex 3 Proposed Gonditions -
additional

Agreed
by
Applicant

The premises licence holder and
any other persons responsible for
the purchase of stock shall not
purchase any goods from door-to-
door sellers unless they are from a

tona fide company.
The premises licence holder shall
ensure that all receipts for goods
bought are kept together in a file
or folder as evidence that they
have been brought into the UK
though legal channels. These
records shall be made available to
the Police and/or Local Authority
upon request and shall be kept for
at least one year.include.
Receipts shall show the following
details:
i) Seller's name and address
ii) Seller's company details, if
applicable
iii) Seller's VAT details, if
applicable
iv) Seller's vehicle details, if
applicable.
Copies of these documents shall
be retained on the premises and
made available to police or
authorised officers of the council
on request within one week of the

10 F LIC 1A

Page 57



An ultra violet light will be used at
the store to check the authenticity
of all stock purchased which bears
a sta
The premises licence holder shall
ensure that the pavement from the
building line to the kerb edge
immediately outside the premises,
including the gutter/channel at its
junction with the kerb edge, is kept
clean and free from litter at all
material times to the satisfaction of
the Autho
Waste collections shall not be
made from the premises between
the hours of 21:OO and 07:00
A personal licence holder is to
be present on the premises and
supervise the sale of alcohol,
throughout the permitted hours
for the sale of alcohol.

The posters, training materia!, training'records and refusals book are all available
from Trading Standards.

Trading Standards (Weights and MeasureS) reserve the right to give evidence on any
further incidents relating to breaches of the licensing objeJtives ñnicn may take ptace
at' gL in the vicinity of the prèmises, between the submiésion of this repreðentation
and the hearing or during the time allowed for any appeal proceedings. Additionally,
Trading Standards reserve the right to present oéta¡ls of the outcomé of any Courf
hearings between the submission of this representation and the hearing.

Suspension of Licence:

Revocation of Licence:

N

Y

period of suspension { max 3 mornths}:Recommended

A significantly large quantity of non duty paid products has been sized from this
premises following numerous complaints alleging that the premises sells illegal
tobacco and alcohol. After two seizures within oñe month, the revenue due õn tne
goods seized totals atET,354.44.

The Secretary of State believes that the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol
should be treated particularly seriously and that wneie licence review are submitted
and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective is beíng
undermined revocation of the licence, even in the first instance should be seriousìy
considered

tsThere a contínu hed isto ilof at the rses. Adviry lega ce comtoactivity prem lancepl
been onhas the benum ofrgrven andoccasions th ts al nticodespite uedneg actívity

ïradi Standards have on ñng confidence the abil theof PLH/DPS toity themanage
m ises rn accordance thewith rce andnce Tradiother rdsStanda na Hd MRC

sReason rfo

11_ F LIC 1A

Page 58



requirements.

Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before E po

lf yes please state the date of that application
Da Month Year

Please tick yes
' I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsibre n

authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate

' I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements n
my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2OO3
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION

Part 3 - Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

S_ignature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(See guidance note 4). lf signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what
capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

1Oth May 2011

Principal Trading Standards Officer - Licensing Enforcement
Trading Standards (Weights and Measures)

rf you have made representatio ns before relating to th s prem tses please state
what they were and when you made them

5)

nameContact not sou nda ad ressd(where forgiven)ly postalprev
atedassocl thiswith ncatiocorrespondence read idanceu notepap (please g

Post Çode

Telephone number (if any)
lf you would prefer us to
mail address (optional)

correspond us n a e-mailn address ru e-you yo

L2 F LIC 1A

Page 59



Notes for Guidance

1 The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates óf problems

which are included in the grounds for review if available.
3. The application form must be signed.
4. An applicant's agent (for exàmple solicitor) may sign the form on theír behalf

provided that they have actual authority to do so.
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this

application.

13 F LIC 1A

Page 60



(Gr Acr ie€7, s"e; Mc act,sllg:åìl?,fll?g,i:i,3JÏbl, .r,, cp Rures pa,tz7.1)
.:

Statement of: Paui Terenç€ Cun'llrerlend

Âge if under 18 (If over 18 i.lge¡t'ov€r 18,) Occupation: H M Revenue and Customs

WITNESS T

I ¿im.an officer of H M Revenue & customs based in Have,n Housg, Ipsrryich, suffolk, Ip4 lDN. Infrä*ffiiätrHî#il?dffi:î#J Jn*ei"s -

I !+v9 examin{ the reporb conceming the visit and can confirm that on the Ls February ofEcers
seized a total of 3J..7 5 litres of assorted wine and 3 9 .45 Lites of assorted gpirits, from the owner of

'the'shop Mr, Sefer Govt€pe as liable to forfeíture by virtue of,the Cu$tom; & Excise Acts, They 
-

were satisfied that due to produce invoices or receipts to prove duty
payment, th¿f United Kin ïeen paid on said goods--

The goods were seized as liable to forfeiture under customs & Exoise Acts.

No notice of claim against the forfeitrne was received within the statutory time limit therefore the
Spirits antl Wine are coqdemned as forfeited in accord¿lnce with PP-5 of jchedule 3 to CEMA

Thls statement of my knowledge and belief and I
make ¡t have wilfully stated in ít anything
which t know

Signature: Date: 4th April 2011

'The Reve,nue on the goo{s seized is f,449.60

I have êxamined tho reports concerning the visit and can confirm that on ths23d February Ofûcers
seized a total of 13.60 kg Shisha flavoured toliacco and 3.15 litres of various spirits. -

The revenue due on the seized goôds is Ê1503.44I

I

*ñr*3

2ou
Slgnature:

(sigrnature w¡tness)

Signature:

(signature w¡tnessed

STATEMENT OF WTNESS: ENGLAND AND WALES ONLY

Page I of1

ENF681A 121200s

Page 61



ENGLAND AND WALES ONLY
(CJ Act 1962, s,9; MC Acr 1980, ss,SA(3[a) and 5B: MC Rules f g8:t, ¡.27, Cp Rules part 27.f )

Statement ofr Pêul Terence Cur¡iherla¡rrl 1

Age if under 18: (If ovq r8 insert'over 18) OccuÞation: H M Revenue and Customs

ESSWITN

Th¡s statement of ì æge(s) each signed by me is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I
make ¡t It is tendered ln evidence, I shall be liable to prcsecution if I have wilfully stated. in it anything
whlch f know or believe to be

Signature: 7 Date: 4th April 2011

i am an OfEcer of H M Revenue & Customs based in HavenHouse, Ipswip,tr, Suffolþ ip+ toU. fn
myrole as a Law Enforcement coordinatormy duties changing
infonhation with the Police and otherAgencies relatin

Ihave bee,n asked by Ellie Green, Principle Trading Standards Officer, Enfield Trading Standards, I
to supplydetails of inspections made by HM Revenue & Custo-rns OfEcers, on l'rFebn¡ary 20t.1 at

is associated to Hertford Food Cente 236
of zup¡orting an action being taken by the

The revenue due on the seüed goods is f5,401.40

Tlie goods were seized as liable to forfeiture under customs & Excise Acts.

No notice of claím against the forfeiture was received within the statutory time limit therefore the
spiritg and winE a¡e condemnd as forfeited in accordance with pP5 of s¿hedule 3 to CEMA

I

I

I

TI

Signature

(signature of witness)

SignatureÍ : _

(signature witnessed by)

STATEMENT OF WTNESS: ENêTEIO AIì¡D WALES ONLY

Page I of1

ENF6sfA

)

12t2009

Page 62



-r i\ -.¿ ) .-( 'l/ .\ J r-1:. .\ t í ,,*¿ )

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD LICENSING AUTHORITY
LICENSING ACT 2-OO3 (HEARINGS) REGULATIO¡¡S ZOOS
DECISION NOTICE

I LtcENStNG SUB-COMMTTTEE _ 13 JULY 2011

Applications were [-!"-!v TRADING STANDARDS SERVIGE for review of the premises
HgryS:!91{¡v un serÊR GOVTEPE at the premises known as and situated at
HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE, 236 HERTFORD'ROAD, EN3.

The Licensìng Sub-Committee RESOLVED that it considers the steps listed below to benecessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives :

(l) Licence Number LN/2006007gg -no step was necessary.

The Chairman made the following statement :

Number LN/200600789. The licence holder
aring that they acknowledge that the licence
ritten and verbal representations from
presentative indicated his client's

mediate effect. Therefore, the Licensing Sub-Committee has no decision to make.,'

(2) Licence Number LN/200g00470 - to revoke the licence.

The Chairman made the following statement :

OO4TO, being still in operation, having
ttee was not persuaded by the

review of the 
'cence. 

rhe panerhas resorve.ï'åili:ti:it"l;::'i:,ii"Jìl:1t.3:låî
The answers that were provided to a range of questions from all the panel members were
both inconsistent and.unconvincíng, and ian counter to the evidence of and presented byTrading standards, who, we consiãered, made its case in full.

to December 2008, Trading Standards
comply
igned off
hich was

hen bearing in mind that some of the same
d not remediated. The first hint of any desire

ard only in March 2011.

Desg-ite the fact that progress has started to be made by the licênce holder, there is
insufficient evidence to support this, and the history of the premises shows reluctance toaccept, heed, or act upon advioe.

The L icensing ùub-Committee WAS somewhat shocked that the icence holder S conti nurng
to purcha SE and sell good fro supplier they allege had them n the pa
counterfeit and non d

s
id

m a
This ts tn of ha

supplied
seized on two

st with

Page 63



occasions during F
Ê7,000.

ebruary 2011 , where the combined duty value of these goods exceeded

Furthermore, the licence holder continued to sell non duty paid goods which he claims HM
Revenue and Customs had failed to discover during ¡ts rá¡å on i Febru ary 2011, even
though by the time that such sales were made, he must have been aware that the sale of
those goods was illegal.

The licence holder, through his representatives, continually asserted that the sub-committee
needs to be presented with evidence that the duty was noi paid. However, the sub-
committee members were not actually presented with any evidence that the duty had been
paid' ln.fact the panelwas shocked that invoices were nót routinely kept and I or
demanded from the supplier.

The licence holder also failed to demonstrate what steps he took or was taking to ensure he
was only purchasing from reputable suppliers.

The Licensing Sub-Committee considered the summary point raised by the licence holde/s
representative relating to the Guidance at Section 6.7. However, the súb-committee is more
persuaded by the guidance points 11.26 and 1 1.27, and considers that the licensing
objective - the prevention of crime and disorder has been seriously undermined by'the
scale of the seizure of non duty paid goods; and that the licensing 

-object¡ves 
have been

further undemrined by persistent breãches of the ticence conditioãs. 
'

As a result, Licensing Sub-Committee reaffirms that it has resolved to revoke Licence
Number LN/200800470, and óonsiders thís decision to be both necessary and propor:tionate
for the promotíon of the licensing objectives.,,

Date Sent : l5 Ju 2011

Signed: Principal Licensing Officer

APPEAL

Under the Licensing Act 2003 you have a right of appeal against this decision within 21
!3Vq of receiving this notice. Any appeal lhould 

'be 
maãe ín writing to the Enfield

Magistrates Court. The contact details for Enfield Magístrates are as foltows:
Enfield Magistrates Court,
The Court House, Lordship Lane, Tottenham, London, N17 6RT.
Tef: 020 8808 5411 or Fax: 020 8BBS 4343

Page 64



Sirs
Licensing Department
NARTS
55 Stoke Newington High Street
London
Nl6 7XB

Please reply to

E-maíl:

Phone:
Textphone :

Fax:
My Ref :

Your Ref:
Date:

{-r:"¡ ¿i''}*

ENFIE
Council

Mark Galvayne
Licensing Unit
PO Box 57, Civic
Centre
Silver Street, Enfield,
Middx EN1 3XH
licensing@enfield.gov.uk

020 8379 3578
020 8379 441s
020 8379 2190
LN/201 1 00396
NOT PROVIDED
6th September 2011

lan Dâvis
Dir€ctor - Envi¡onment
Enfield Council
C¡v¡c Centre, Silver Street
Enfield EN1 3XY

Dear Sírs

Licensino Act 2003 .

.Premises : Hertford Food Centre, 236 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 SBL

Thís letter concerns the application for a New Application Premises l-icence under
the Licensing Act 2003.

Please find'the licence enclosed. Please check the detaíls on the licence carefully,
the Licensing Authority is prepared to conect any of our clerical errors within 28
days of the licence being issued.

Please be advised that the licence does not override any restrictions on trading
hours etc. that may apply to the premises in respect of planning permission and/or
Sunday trading & etc.

The terms, conditions and restrictions of the licence must be complied with
whenever the premise is used foi licensable acfivities. Failure to comply with the
lícence is a criminal offence with, on conviction, a maximum fine of Ê20,000 and/or
up to 6 months imprisonmént.

Phone:O2O8379 lOOO
Website: www.enñeld.gov.uk

Note - Transfers
On the grant of a transfer application, any notification or permit (under the Gambling
Act 2005) in respect of gaming machines at the premíses becomes null and void. A
new notification or permit will need to be sought by the new holder of the premises
licence (under the Licensing Act 2003) before gaming machines may be lawfully
provided at the premises.

( ! .: tt you nêed th¡s document in anôther language or format call Cerstbmer Services on O2o a3791 ooo, or emaíl enñeld.council@en6eld.gov.uk

Page 65



The licence , or a certified copy of it, must be kept on the premises at all times and
must be produced on request to any authorised officer, The summary of the licence
must be prominently displayed within the premises.

Should you wish to change the operation of the premises in the future by adding
new licensable activities or by changing the hours or removing conditions ihen you
will need to apply for a variation of the licence. Please contact us for further advice.

You must notify the licensing authority of any change in the name and/or address of
either the premises licence holder or the designated premises supervisor.

The licence is subject to an annual fee, payable on each anniversary of the licence
first being granted.

All employers have a responsibility to prevent illegal migrant working in the UK.
Failure to comply could lead to a penalty of up to Ê10,000 per illegat worker. Home
Office guidance is available at

lf you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Mark Galvayne
Principal Licensing Officer

ïhe London Fire Brigade advise as follows

The issue of capacity should be addressed in the fire risk assessment for the
premises use. This does not mean that every premises must have a capacity figure.
There should be evidence however that the responsible person has consídeieO tne
number of persons who can be safely evacuated through the available exits.

A safe capacity figure will be expected in the following circumstances:
(1) ín premises that could potentially become overcrowded; for example bars, pubs,
clubs, and other places of public assembly :

(2) where an engineered solution or BS 9999 has been used to increase capacity;
(3)where capacity Ís rísk-crítical; for example where the premises use has a higher
occupancy factor than that which the building was designed for,

Where applicable, capacity should normally be inclusive of staff a
Management should be able to demonstrate a realistic method of
Õa

nd performers.
controlling

Page 66



EN

Licensinq Act 2003

PART A - PREMISES LICENCE

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : LN/201100

Part 1- Premises Details

Postal address of premises :

Premises name:

Telephone number:

Address :

Where the licence is time-limited, the
dates:

Hertford Food Centre

020 8804 9s54

236 Hertford Road Enfield EN3 58L

Not time limited

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those
activities :

(r)

(2t

Sunday:
Monday:
Tuesday:

Wednesday:
Thursday:

Friday:
Saturday:

08:00 - 0l:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 . 0l:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 . 01:00
08:00 - 01;00

open to the Public . Whole Premises

of Alcohol - Off Supplies
Sunday:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday:

Thursday:
Friday:

Saturday:

08:00 - 01;00
08:00 - 0l:00
08:00 - 0l:00
08:00.01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 0l:00

Page 67



Not provided

Not provided

2564 Hertford Enfield EN3 sBL

Mr Suleyman Erdogan

Part2

Name and (registe

Signed

of holder of
Name:

Telephone number:

e-mail :

Address :

Not applicable

Namg and (registgred) address of second holder of premises licence (where
applicable):

Not applicable

Name and address of designated
of

premises supervisor (where the licence
authorises the s

Name :

Telephone number:

e-mail :

Address :

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply oi
alcohol):
Personal Licence Number : LN/201 100192

London Boro ofE

Premises Licence LNl2011 first granted on 6 September 2011

Registered number of holder (where
applicable) :

Name:

Telephone number:

Address :

lssuing Authority:

t¡

Date : 6th September 2011

(--l

for and on behalf of the
London Borough of Enfield
Licensing Unit, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield EN1 3XH
Telephone: 020 8379 3578

Not provided

Not provided

2564 Hertford Enfie EN3 5BL

Mr Suleyman Erdogan

Page 68



Annex I - Mandatory Conditions

premises licence : (a) At a
sor in respect of the

the designated premises supervisor
personal licence is suspended.

Fu"ry supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Annex 2 - conditions consistent with the operating schedule

3' There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rlse to concern in respect of
children.

4' Suitable steps shall be provided at the premises to allow the rear fire
exit to be used safely in an emergency.

5. - The premises must operate the Local Authority or simitar proof of age

"."¡gre^.and 
disptay the retevant materiat. onty passþoil, photojraphic

driving licences or lD with the P.A.S.S. logo (Próof oi agå'st"noãrcis Scheme)
shall be accepted.

6. .. -Prom-inent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public
exits- from the premises requesting customers respect thd needs oi lãcat
residents and leave the premises ãnd area quietly. These notices shãll O"positioned at eye level and in a location where thäy can be read Ufgròsã-
leaving the premises.

7. Children under the age ol 14 shall not be permitted on the premises
aîler 21:00 unless accompanied by an adult.

8, sígns shall be prominenfly displayed on the exit doors advising
customers that the premises is in a tDrinking Control Area'and that alcohol
should not be consumed in the street. Thesã notices shall be positioned at
eye level and in a location where they can be read by those leaïing thà
premises.

9. Deliveries will not be made to the premises between the hours of 22:0e
and 06:00.

10. Deliveries shall not cause a noise nuisance to local residents.

11. Stock control shall be lntl'oduced, so that the licensee can identify
when/where alcohot goods were purchased.

any have UK Duty Stamps that do not
othçnrise suspicious, the licensee
ndards and HMRC as soon as

Page 69



13. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying
with the following criteria : (1) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance
and exit doors both inside and outside, the alcohol displays, and floor areas;
(2) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the headç and
shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification; (3)
Cameras viewing till areas must capture frames not less then 50% of screen;
(4) Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to give an
overview of the premises; (5) Gameras must capture a minimum of 16 frames
per second; (6) Be capable of visually confirming the natuie of the crime
committed; (7) Provide a linked record of the date, time, and place of any
image; (8) Provide good quality images - colour during opening times; (9)
Operate under existing light levels within and outside the prem¡ses; (10) Have
the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet; (11) Have a
monitor to review images and recorded picture quality; (f 2) Be regularly
maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (13)
Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in
operation; (14) Digital images must be kept for 31 days; (15) Police will have
access to imagés at any reasonable time; (16) The equipment must have a
suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that the police can make an
evidential copy of the data they require. This data should be in the native file
format, to ensure that no image quality is lost when making the copy. lf this
format is non-standard (i.e, manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer
should supply the replay software to ensure that the video on the GD can be
replayed by the police on a standard computer. Gopies must be made
available to Police or authorised local authority employees on request.

14. lf the premises remain opgn after 01:00, a Raid Control system must be
installed and procedures carried out r (l) A time delay safe is fitted and
secured under the counter to ensûre cash is minimised in the t¡ll; (2) A
separate coveft real time camera is fitted above the front door (Raid Cam); (3)
A smoke note system is installed; (4) All staff must be fully trained as to its
use and a signed written record kept of all training carried out and signed and
dated by those receiving ¡t; (5) Signs must be displayed at the entrance
advertising Raid Control is fitted in the preinises.

l5; At least two members of staff shall be present on the shop-floor of the
premises between 22200 and 0l:00.

f 6. A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and
completed when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police
and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year
from the date of the last entry.

17. All itaff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every
three months) relating to the sale of alcohol, and the times and conditions of
the premises licence.

f 8. All training relating to the sale of alcohol and times and conditions of
the lÍcence shall be documented and records kept at the premises. These
records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority upon
request and shall be kept for at least one year.

Page 70



l9' . The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for thepurchase of stock shall not purchase any toods from door,to-door sellers
unlesó they are from a bona fide company.

20. The premises licence hotder shall ensure that all receipts for goods
bought are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they havã been

nels. These records shall be made
and/or HMRC upon request and shall

shall show the following details: (1)
company details, if applicable; (3)
eller's vehicle details, if applicable.
tained on the premises and made

available to police or authorised officers of the council on request within fíve
working days of the request.

21. An ultra violet light will be used at the store to check the authenticity of
all stock which bears a customs stamp as soon as practical after they have
been purchased.

Annex 3 - conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

Not applicable

Page 71



Annex 4 r Plans

,
I

t6

Í

I

ã

I

I l

I
ã

V
t
A

s¡tr
ffiv

X

v
A

V
A

I t

^

s
¡

v

å
åY

A

LEGEND

FRIDGE9

I vecgr¡glesa¡nuns

l¡ [euoRsHELvEs

El AM8¡TOFL|CENS€O
PREMISE9

X 5¡4¡=gry¡¡6¡Tg

@ suoreoerecron

< cclv

^ 
2kgcáRBOND|OXIDE
FIRÉ ÈXNNGUISHER

ZL 6kgPOWDERFIRE
EXTINGUISHER

IIERTFORO
FOOD CENIRE

ZF HEMFOro ROrc
ENFIELO. LONOON

5AL

PROPOSED

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

SCIE : lrlmeÁ3 OAE :2oltM

REE NO i O2o0sÌ8

ACT 2003
90 cræû Lanos LONOON
Nl6 9eJ

Tôl : û20 7241 38¡6(4lhe)

ww 6cú[û3.øñ

Page 72



Licensinq Act 2003

PART B. PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : LN/201100396

Part 1 - Premises Details

Postal address of rses :

Premises name : Hertford Food Centre

020 8804 9554

236 Hertford Road Enfield EN3 sBL

Telephone number:

Address :

Where the licence is time-limited, the
dates :

Not time limited

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those
activities:

(r) Open to the Public - Whole Premises
Sundayr:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday:

Thursday:
Friday:

Saturday :

08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00

(21 supply of Alcohol - Off Supplies
Sunday:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday:

Thursday:
Friday:

Saturday:

08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 0l:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00

Page 73



Part 2

Name and (registered
Name:

Address :

Registered number of holder (where
applicable):

Name of designated premises
supervisor (where the licence
authorises the supply of alcohol) :

State whether access to the premises
by children is restricted/prohibited :

address of holder of ises licence :

Not applicable

Mr Suleyman Erdogan

Restricted

Name and (registered) address of second holder of premises licence (where
applicable):

Name: Not applicable

Address

Prem.ises Licence LN/201100390 was first granted on 6 september 2011.

Date : 6th September 2011

London Borough of Enfield
Licensing Unit, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield ENl 3XH
Telephone : 020 8379 3578

Mr Suleyman Erdogan

2564 Hertford Road Enfield EN3 sBL

Page 74



*';l ,'\' i I
Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate

under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
lf you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. ln all
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.I Charlotte Palmer l=!ççttçitg Enforcement Officer

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing
Act 2003 for the premises described in part I below

Part I - Premises or club premises details

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known

LN/201 100396

Pa¡l2 - Applicant details
lam

Please tick yes
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises tr
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises ¡
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises n
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the npremises

2) a responsible authority (ptease complete (C) below) X
3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) !

below)

I

address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Hertford Food Centre, 236 Hertford Road

Post town

Enfield

.Post code (if known)

EN3 sBL

known)

Mr Suleyman Erdogan

Name of licence orholderpremises hold n c ubclub certificateg ¡fpremises

F LIC 1A

Page 75



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLTCANT (fiil in as appticabte)

Please tick
Mr! Mrs n Miss ! Msn Other title

(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

I am l8 years old or over
Please tick yes

n
Gurrent postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETATI_S OF OTHER APPLTCANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

2 F LIG 1A

Page 76



Charlotte Palmer
Licensing Authority
London Borough of Enfield
PO Box 57
Civic Centre
Silver Street
EN1 3XH

Name and address

number: 020 8379 3965Telephone

E-m ail address: charlotte ov.uk

(c) DETATLS OF RESPONSTBLE AUTHOR|TY AppLtcANT

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Please tick one or more boxesx

(please read guidance note 1)

Enfield Licensing Authority is seeking a review of the premises licence on the
grounds that the premises have been iound to be selling non duty paid alcohol anã
tobacco.

This review is primarily based on the preventíon of crime and disorder, licensing
objective. The review application is to. revoke the premises licence in its
entirety.

Backqround lnformation:

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application
(please read guidance note 2)

A new premises licence (LN/200600789) was issued to Mr Sefer Govtepe, as both
the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and Designated Premises Supervisor (OeS¡ on
22t2t2007.

A further new premises.licence ap June 200g as the premises
had extended the licens'able area. (LN/2o0goo41o) wås issued
again to Mr Sefer Govtepe, as Licence Holdei lelH¡ ano
Designated Premises Supervisor (DpS) o

LNi200800470 was revoked on 13107tt1 following a review application (relating tothe sale of non-duty paid alcohol) being submitled by Tradiiri¡ Stanoaros - See
Appendix 1 and 2

LN/200600789 was surrendered at the review hearing as it could not be used as the
plan was no longer accurate.

3 F LIC 1A

Page 77



A new premises licence application was submitted on 14107111 naming the Premises
Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor (DpS) as Mr Suleyman
Erdogan. There did not appear to be any evidence to link Mr Erdogan with the
premises under the old lícence and a new licence was granted. Trading Standards
did however make representation in relation to times and conditions - seé Appendix
3.

Many of the sàme issues that lead to the previous revocation have reoccurred at this
premises and it has become apparent that the previous Premises Licence Holder /
DPS is still the owner of this premises and has admitted buying non-duty paid
products to sell in this premises.

02112111 - 22:20 - 22:45 - Out of Hours Licensing Enforcement Officers (JF/CLB)
visited the premises to carry out a full licence inspection with pLH / DpS. 

'Severál

areas of non-compliance.
Condition 12121 - New UV light needed as one on the premises was not working
when tested.
Condition 16 - Refusals book not being used
C17118 - Training book on premises not being used, reminded to carry out refresher
training with all staff.
Whilst being on the premises officers witnessed an attempted age related sale by
three females, which was refused. When they left the officers reminded the pLH tó
place the occurrence in the refusals book. As he did not appear to know what to do
the officers showed him what to do.

13112112 - 09:20 - 09:30 (JF) Revisit inspection with pLH / Dps to check
outstanding conditions. All Compliant

15105112 - Trading Standards responded to an allegation that the premises were
selling grey import of Dove'Essential Nutrients that can cause burns. Premises were
non-compliant and 20 Dove cream cleansers were seized and signed over for
destruction.

26111113 - Trading Standards received a complaint alleging that the premises was
selling Lithuanian cigarette, alcohol and meat.

12103114 - Trading Standards & HMRC joínt vísit to check for counterfeiVduty diverted
products.
Seized counterfeit back labels on 73 botfles:
5 x Smirnoff Vodka 100c1
5 x Smirnoff Vodka 70cl
10 x Famous Grouse 70cl
15 x High Commissioner 100c1
5 x High Commissioner 70cl
10 x Bells 70cl
3 x Barcardi 100c1
14 x E&J Brandy 70cl
1 x Wyborowa 700m1
1 x Wodka Zoladkowa 700m1
1 x Gorzka 700m1
1 x Sobieski 700m1
1 x De-lux Zoladkowa 700m1
1 x Gorzka 700m1

4 F LIC 1A

Page 78



22105114 - Trading Standards received police intelligence that the premises were
selling counterfeit alcohol and cigarettes and underãged sales.

23105114 - 13:0s - 13:30 - Full licence inspection carried out.
Condition 4: Fire exit not clear & bins obsiructing exit

rried out every 3 months. Last recorded
01 3.
on premises.

n 6 - leave quietly poster to be moved to
d it.

23105114 - Trading Standards âge related sales test purchase carried out. Male
volunteer aged 16 years and 66 áays attempted to prrðhase alcohol. The sale was
refused.

29105114 - Trading Standards receíved a further allegation that the owner called
!"tq (surname not known by informant) - 

ore, 236 Hertford
. foad, Enfield EN3SBL sells imported tob informant stated thatthe cigarettes and alcohol are from polan so sells to underage

persons.

02/,06114 - Multi-agency operation involved Trading Standards, HMRC Living Wage
3n9 lU¡gration Enforcement. The premises werã compliant on matters of interestto HMRC Livíng Wage and lmmigraiion Enforcement. iradíng Standards checked
licence conditions. Condítion 21 - ultra violet líght was not ava'ílable. The premises
were provided with an lnspection Report and given 7 days to comply.

24106114 ' 22.13 - 22.23 Out of Hours Licencing Enforcement officers visited thepremises to check outstanding conditions. Condition 21 ultra violet light efuipment
not available at time of inspection.

011'.07114- Trading Standards received a complaint alleging that the premises was
selling duty diverted and counterfeit products.

22107114 - Trading Standards age related sales test purchase carried out. Female
volunteer aged 15 years 16g days cigarettes and alcohol- no sale.

1618114 - 2O:40 - Lícensing Enforcement Officer (NJ) visited the premises and
carried out a licence inspectÍon. Unable to check Coná¡tion 13: CCTV présent butnot accessible. Condition 17 and 18 - Staff training records not avaílable for
inspection and therefore no ptoof of training taking ptaó. Condition 20 _ No salesreceipts for alcohol. Several bottles checked uJing a UV device, no counterfeit
found. Two packets of non-duty paid cigarettes seizeã.

15108114- Non duty paid tobacco test purchase attempt - no sale made.

09/09/14 - A warning letter was sent to the premises licence holder in relation to the
alcohol found at the premises in March 2014. The letter stated:

'Having carefully consideréd the facts of the case, Trading Standards have decided
not to take any format action against you on this occasion.

However, you should take this letter as a warning as to your future conduct. Should
similar matters be brought to our attention again, it is uniikely that we shall adopt
such a lenient approach'.

5 F LIC 1A

Page 79



24102115 - 10:52 - 1 1:35 - A Licensing Enforcement Officer (CPX), two HM Revenue
and Customs Officers and an Officer and dog from Operation Wagtail visited the
premises to check for any counterfeit or non-duty paid tobacco or álcohol. Three
non:duty paid bottles of vodka were seized along with g3 packets of Marlboro Gold
cigarettes (20 cigarettes per packet), 1 Marlboro Red cigarettes (20 cigarette per
packet) and 7 x 509 Golden Virginia hand rolling tobacco. All of the tobacco was
found concealed in a set of drawers. The drawers appeared to contain bags of
plastic bags but the dog indicated that there was something there and once a
wooden panel (a false bottom to the drawers) was pushed bãck the tobacco was
found. There were two drawers like this. see Appendix 4 - photos when
questioned under caution a male called Sefer Govtepe claimed to own the, premises.
He said that his cousin was the licence holder. Sefer Govteþe admitted tnät ne naO
bought the tobacco and had originally borough 20 boxes of cigarettes, each
containing 10 packets of 20 (he had therefore already sold more than half of what he
had bought). He also admitted that he had built and installed the drawers containing
the cigarettes. Before leaving the Licensing Enforcement Officer advised him that á
licence review would be submitted and that this matter could lead to the licence being
revoked. The officer noted that a Think 21 poster was on display, posters advisin!
customers not to buy alcohol for children on display, Part B on disþlay, No lD no sale
qo_ter on display, 

_alcohol zone poster on display, leave quietly poster on display,
CCTV signage on display.

27102115 - A letter was hand delivered to the premises inviting the premises licence
holder in for a meeting.

03/03/15 - Licensing Enforcement Officer Charlotte Palmer and Police Licensing
Officer Martyn Fisher held a meeting with the Premíses Licence Holder - Mr
Suleyman Erdogan. Also in attendance was Mr Sefer Govtepe and Ms Umit yigit
who they had brought along as a translator. During the meeting Mr Govte[e
confirmed that he and Mr Erdogan are business partners and cousin! and that the
company they'run is called Hertford Food Centre Limited. Mr Govetepe confirmed
that he is the Director and that Mr Erdogan use to be the director of the company. Mr
Govtepe claimed that the 3 bottles of vodka were given to him but that he didn'f want
them so put them on sale. He was advised tnãt furtner visits would probably be
made to the shop and to ensure that there was nothing else on sale which shouldn't
be. He stated that it had all been taken. He went on to say that it had been a
genuine mistake but also commented that it was because 'everything was so
expensive'. Charlotte Palmer stated that they obviously knew it was wrongìthenrise
it would not have been hidden in secret drawers. The officers explained thãt a review
application would be submitted and that all of the paperwork would be addressed to
Mr Erdogan as the premises licence holder. He was strongly advised to get
independent legal advice.

04/03/15 - Company information was checked on the Companies House website.
This confírms that Mr Sefer Govtepe is the current Di4re tor and Mr Suleyman
Erdogan was the director until 20105/14. See Appendix 5.

Cumulative lmoact Policv (Clp):

These premises are located in the Enfield Highway Cumulative lmpact Policy Area.

The CIP states the core hours that should not be exceeded for each type of premises
in particular locations. These are:

sale/supply of alcohol (off supplies only): Monday - sunday 0g:00 - 24:0e

The current licensed hours for this premises are:

6 F LIC 1A

Page 80



08:00 - 01:00 Mon - Sun

Additional I nformation :

DCMS Guidance (11.26) states that there are certain criminal activities that may
arise in connection with licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers
should be treated particularly seriously. The list includes the sâle of smuggled
tobacco and alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products).

DCIUS guidance (11.27) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsibility
authorities will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities ánd
crime, Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime
prevention objective is being undermined thiough the premises being used to further
crimes, it is expected that revocation of the f icence - even in the firsiinstance -should be seriously considered.

Gonclusion:

Enfield Licensing Authority is seekíng a review of the premises licence on the
grounds that the premises have been found to be selling alcohol with counterfeit back
labels in March 2014, non-duty ZO14 and non_duty paid
alcohol and tobacco in February as already been revoked
in 2011 for similar offences. T and the current licence
holder are business partners so the previous history of the premises is relevant to
this .case, Despite already having lost one licence the same illegal activity has
continued to take place at this premises resulting in the Licensing Autñority having no
confidence in those running the premises.

The Licensing Authority therefore recommends that this licence be revoked.

Suggested additional condition:

lf the Licensing Committee does not deem it necessary to revoke the licence in its
entirety lwould recomrùend the hours be reduced in line with the Cumulative lmpact
Policy, the DPS be removed from the licence, the licence be suspended for or 3
months and the followíng conditions be attached to the premises licence:

¡ A Personal Licence holder is to be present on the premises and supervise the
sale of alcohol throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol.

Alltobacco products which are not on the tobacco dispray shall be
stored in a container clearly marked 'Tobacco stock'. This container
shall be kept within the store room or behind the sales counter.

a

o Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind
the sales counter in order to make a sale.

The Licensing Authorityr reserve the right to add any add'itional information to
support this review application.

Suspension of Licence:

Revocation of Licence:

N

Y

1 F LIC 1A

Page 81



per¡od of suspension (max 3 months):Recommended

The conditíons attached to the premises licence already include most of the
conditions that the Licensing Authority would seek for an off licence premises.

There is a significant history of illegal activity at this premises.

Having regard to allthis information, and taking into account the DCMS guidance
that, this leaves little option other than for the Licensing Authority to seeÈ total
revocation of the premises licence.

The Secretary of State believes that the sale of smuggled alcohol should be treated
particu.larly seriously and that where licence reviews-are submitted and the licensing
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined
revocation of the licence, even in the first instance should be seriously considered.

Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before yes/n

lf yes please state the date of that application Da Month Year

10 May 2011

r have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the r".oon.,J,l"ase 
tick yes

I

authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements
my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION I58 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2OO3
TO ITIAKE A FALSE STATEIUIENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION

o
O

tf you have made representations before relating to these prem lses please state
what they were and when you made them

Eleanor Green, Trading Standards, review applicatiorr submitted and licence revoked
July 2011. The prevention of crime and disorder, the prevention of public nuisance
and the protection of children from harm. The review was submitted on the ground
that the premises had been found selling non duty paid alcohol. Premises liõence
holder and DPS was Sefer Govtepe at that time.

New premises licence application submitted by Suleyman Erdogan in July 2011 and
Trading standards representation made by Eleanor Green recommended
strengthening conditions and reduced hours. Granted.

F LIC 1A

Page 82



Part 3 - Signaturcs (please read guidance note 3)

SÌgnature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(See guidance note 4). lf signing on behalf of the applicant please state in-what
capacity.

Signature:

Date: l0th March 2015

Gapacity: Licensing Enforcement Officer

Notes for Guidance

1 The ground(s) for revíew must be based on one of the licensing objectives.
2- Please list any additional information or details for example daiãs óf problems

which are included in the grounds for review if âvailable
3. The application form must be signed.
4' An appiicant's agent (for exampÏe solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf

provided that they have actual authority to do so.
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this

application.

9

not previously given) and postal address for
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note S)

Gontact name (where

Telephone number (if any)
lf you would prefer us to
mail address (optional)

with you using an e-mail address your e-correspond

F LIC 1A

Page 83



ENFIELD
Council

wr.cnlicld.¡ov.ul

LIC,ENSING AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION

ADDITIONAL INFORIUIATION

Name and address of premises: Hertford Food Centre
236 Hertford Road
Enfield
EN3 5BL

Type,of Application: Review of Premises Licence

This document includes additional information, not previously mentioned in the
review application. lt also includes all Officer Observations and lnspections
carried out since the review was submitted on l0th ilarch 2015=

20105114 - A letter was sent to the premises setting out the new updated Mandatory
Licence Conditions. At the end of the list of conditions was advice from Tradini
Standards stating:
'You. nlust buy tobacco, alcohol and any product that belongs to a registered brand
(trade mark) holder from a reputable supplier.
Furthermore, these products must be evidenced by receipts and available for
inspection to Trading standards, HMRc and the police upon request.
I must remind you that Trading Standards operate a zero tolerance policy that includes
prosecution, revocation of the licenôe and other enforcement disposals against any
individual o.r any premises found to have counterfeit alcohol, tobacco or-any other
product belonging to a registered brand holder on the premise and associated
buildings/vehicles or on your person'. See Appendix 6.

08/0¡0/15 - The Premises Licence Holder / DPS attended a meeting at his request with
his agent, Barrister and council officers. They provided officers witn travel documents
claiming that .the PLH/DPS was out of the country when the officers visited the
premises and seized.good in February 2015 however the documents showed that he
flew to lstanbul on 11m January and returned to London on 22nd February (6 week trip).
The visit by officers was made on 24th February 2015 and the PLH / Dp-S'was seen at
the premises during the visit. The Licensing Aôt 2003 does not require the DpS to be

ay but the guidance does suggest they normally,have day to
ning the premises (section 4.18). At no point during this or any
officers has the PLH/DPS claimed that he was unaware thai

.non-duty paid goods were being sold at the premises.

241U15 - 22:55 hours - Licensing Enforcement Officers (EVG/CLB) visited the
premises and carried out a full licence inspection with Mr suleyman Erdogan
(Designated Premises Supervisor) Areas of noncompliance. C13 (14) CõfV does not
hold records for 31 days. Staff advised officers that the system is new and claimed it
did not yet hold 31 days of footage. Staff were unable to ãupply invoices for the last
months alcohol purchases. The officers requested copies of these be providèd.
lnspection report completed. Given 14 days to comply.

Page 84



I
P

ì.

A copy of the warning letter sent on 09/09/14 which is referred to in the review
application is attached as Appendix 7.

Duly Authorised: Gharlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement Officer

Contact: charlotte. palmer@enfield. gov. uk

Signed: Date:2710412015

Page 85



Appvdrx (

Application for the rcview of a prcmise¡ licencc or club prcmircr ccrtificatc
under füe Licen¡ing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWNG INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

form,
ln all
Use

apply for füe review of a premirec licgnce under section 5l of ttre LicensingAct 2003 for the premises de¡cribed in pañ I below

P¡rt I - Prcmiccs or club premises details

Hertford Food Centre

Pa¡l 2 - Appticant details
lam

Please tick yec1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises D
b) a'body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises f]
c) a person invorved in business in the vicinity of the premises ¡
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the trpremises

2) a responsible authority (ptease comptete (C) betow) X
3) a member of the club to which this application relates (pfease complete (A) nbelow)

1.

description

236 Hertford Road

o7tofadd¡ors ¡fpremires ordnanccnone, rclbrsnce o?tufvey m¡P

Enfield
town

EN3 sBL.
Po¡t

Name licence holder or holding prcmireo (¡f
known)

Mr sefer Govtepe, 43 Merrin FJouse, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, EN3 4e-J.

N of premises licence o¡ club prcmises (if known
LN/2008004 70

F LIC 1A

Page 86



(A) DErÄLs oF ¡ltDrvrDuAt AppLrcANT (fiil in as appricabre)

Ple¡¡e tlck
Mr tr Mrs Miss Ms Othcr titfe

(for example, Rev)

Surn¡mc

I am 1E yeeÊ old or over

Gurnnt po$rl
addrtû¡ il
dllfirnt from
prumireo
rddtrc¡

Po¡t town

Deytimc contrèt trlcphorc nrunbcr

E-m¡il eddrrcc
(optlonal)

(B) DETATLS OF OTHER APPLTCANT

finrt namcr

Post Gode

Plc¡:c tict yec
tr

t

2

Name and address

F LIC 1A

Page 87



Ellíe Green
Enfield Trading Standards (Weights and Measures)
London Borough of Enfield
PO Box 57
Civic Centre
Silver Street
ENl 3XH

Name and address

number: 020 8379 8543

E-mail address. .uk

(c) DETATLS OF RESPONSTBLE AUTHORITY AppLtcANT

This epplication to rcview relates to the following licensing objcctive(r)
Please tick one or more boxes

X
x
x

(please read guidance note 1)

the premises ficence on the grounds
on duty paid alcohol. The premises
ensíng Acl 2003, namely breaching

This revíew is the prevention of crime and disorder liccnsingobjective, but a tection of children from harm and prevention ofpublic nuisance

Tne ieview aþpiication is ió rèvoke ttre premisés ticenðé.

Backqround lnformation:

A new premi was issued to Mr Sefer Govtepe, 43
[ç'lil House, QJ as both the premíses Licence Hotder

r (DPS) on 221212007.
(PLH) and De

made in June 2008 as the premíses
licence (LN/200800470) was issued

use, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, EN3 4eJ as
d Designated Premises Supervisor (DpS)

To date LN/200600789 has not been surrendered although it cannot be used as the
l]T]:l l?nger acct¡rate. Tradins standards are also seämnj io rã""rlìÁir-¡¡län""
rn a separate application.

3 F LIC 1A

Page 88



Please provide as much information as possible to suppoÉ the application
(please read guidance note 2)

Historv of prcmiseg

The history of the prernises will include informatíon under the LN/2006007gg as it is
exactly the same person named on the licence, and therefore relevant to t¡¡is
application.

914108 - Comptaint alleging noise dist
night until early morning to the premise
Envíro Crime Officer advised t\ir Sefer
Besime Koker, as Mr Govtepe was unable
Govtepe denied these allegåtions.

9/6{08 - Complaint received alleging shop sells out of date food and afcohol to
underage children. Food officers vis¡teì and identifíed food dísplayed for sale UeyonU
the use by dates. Advice was given.

11l8l09 - LBE became aware that the Fire Service hâd served a Fire lmprovement
Notice,,on the premíses.

7111108 - Food officers checked for counterfeit vodka, none found.

12112108 - Licensing Enforcer¡ent officers vísited premÍses to carry out a full
compliance inspectíon, and spoke to Mr Govtepe. ihe follow¡ng conâitions were
found to be ín breach: 6 - Insuificient raid control änd training; l0 --Leave quiefly sign
not next to exit; 11 3 - Training recordã need to be kept íor all
staff; '15 - Drinking days viere gíven to bring breaihes into
compliance, and an icswas issùed.

10lo1l1g - Revisit carried out to check outstañding lícence conditions. The followÍng
conditions were found to be in breach: 6- raid conirol not in place but officers told it
was on order; 13 - no training records; 1 1 - refusals book on site but not been used.

19/01/09 - Complaint received that the premises stays open all night, and that they
also use 232 Hertford.Road as storage.'the storagãtoãl. .r" conìt¡nuously opened
and closed using shutters, which are very noisy añd caused the compla¡nañt tb lose
sleep.

05lo2ljg - As part of the Trading Standards Tobacco project, cigârettes were tested
foraulhentícity - no problems found. Checked outstandiág fiteñsing cãnåitìãr.t-tn"
following were found to be in breach: 13 - training recordJunavailaÈle; 1 1 - refúsals
book available but no entry since 10/1/09.

06/03/09 - Checked outstanding licensing conditions, 11 and 13 stilt found to be in
breach. A warning letter was señt to the premises.

02lÙ1l1g - Revisit carried out to cheek outSta ñdiñ(¡ licence, hoi,vêver pe was
not on the premises and staff requested a re-vísit when manager there as they do not
know where records are kept. Officers noted out of date meat in the fridge and had it
removed from sale

4 F LIC 1A

Page 89



22106109 - Complaint received that raw meat from the premises is disposed of intothe commercial waste bin, and creating unpleasant åráls. officers visited andestablished this was a problem, and advicé wai given.

06/08/09 - Complaint alleging that the disposal of raw meat continues to be aproblem- officers visited año éaw that the räw meat *ar .tlloiróä; ìito tn"commercíalwaste bin, and the premíses was given a verbarwarning.

24108109 - The LBE arcohor training materiarwas sent to the premises.

28108109 - Complaint alleging noise disturbance from deliveries to the premises, veryearly in the morning.

16110109 - Police received information that the staff at the premises þíve out fake €1coins in change and sell. fake packets of rizzla rraoirig StandJrds visiteJ andadvised. A selection of Rizla papers rirere purchased in ärder to be testJd, andresults showed they were genuine.

es to check for counterfeit spirits. S x 70cl
n shelf behind seruing counter, and were
al sarhple was taken from one botfle and
pe, was served with a seizure notice. He
cha in Crown Road about a month ago.
ked to produce invoice.

18to5t1} - Full compliance check canied out. The outstanding conditions r,r"r"' ,, -no refusals book; 13 -_no training records; 15 - no Orini¡ng cóntrol sign. All relevantmâteríal issued to Mr Govtepe.

03/06/10 - An attempted,test.purchase of alcohol using anìunderage TradingStandards volunteer was refused

11108110 - An attempted test purchase of alcohol using an underage TradingStandards vofunteer was refused.'

eaving overflow
to non payment
tial bins. Advice

24101111 - lnformation receíved from Enviro Críme OffTcer who suspected possÍble
duty free cigarettes were.being sold from under the counter in the premises. Theofficer witnessed the cashier se-rve a customer items from under the counter makingsure they were in a black bag, which was closed

01102111 - Trading Standards,
(HMRC) carried out joint visits
alcohol or tobacco were being
postcodes as the HMRC team
addresses in the borough. The list was lligence from both
Trading standards and HMRC. HMRO id gþroducts as being nonduty paid in Hertford Food centre: 33.7s lit Íäes and 39.4s litres ofassorted spírits were seized. These products were seized by HMRC. The revenue
on these goods seízed is Ê44g.60.

5 F LIC 1A

Page 90



Additionally the premises next door but one,,lnternet Service, 232 Hertford Road,
Enfield, EN3 sBL and its storage was also checked, as it is owned by Mr Govtepe.
235.2 litres of Vodka, 121.5 litres of various wines, iOg.Z litres of Brándy anld ai.¡
litres of other sprits were seized as they were also identified as non duty paid. The
revenue due on the goods seized at lnternet service is Ê5,401,40.

No receipts were produced for the goods at the time the goods were seized. The
owners were given 28 days to produce the receípts for thã goods seized to prôve that
they were bought at a wholesaier and that the duty had beeî paid. That period has
now expired and the receípts have not been provided.

11102111 - As a result of the recent seízures, a full ficence inspection was attemptedat the premises, however, the onry person present at the premises coulJ not
understand the officers, so the inspection did not take prace.

14102111 - Further information from the same Enviro Grime Officer: that the premises
and internet cafe continues to sell tax free cigarettes. The owners at these twopremises are also línked to Hertford Discount Store on the same parade, and that
there are more storage units at the rear of all these premises.

18102111 - Officers visited premises to carry out the licence inspection, and met wíth
Mr M-ehmet Govtepe, employee, hÒwevei on tne officers' arrívai, he ináicated that he
was Mr Sefer Govtepe, the PLH and DPS. Conditions found to be in breach were: S -
g_cTV clock was s0 minutes fater than correct tíme; No ccrv sigÀ oËóiaveo;
Monitor had error message 'No HDD Connected'. Mr Mehmet GovtJpe boutO'not
operate the system so officers were unable to eitablish ûhether ttrå CctV was
recording orcompliant; 6 - No raid control;11 - No refusals book; 12 - Nô training
evident; 13 - No training records available. Mr Mehmet Govtepe stated that Mr Sefer
Govtepe was on the þremises daily. i4 days were given to address the non
compliances, and an inspection report with advice was ligned by and left with Mr
$ll"lggú1q". Fur'ther verbal aávice relating to raid conirot wa-s given by Martyn
Ftsner, pot¡ce Licensing Officer following thís visit.

23102120"11 Revisít to premÍses carríed out as part of joint operation with HMRC,
Tradtng Standards, and the Pofíce. HMRC officers seized 13.6kg of shisha tobacco,
and 3.15 litres õf various sþirits, as they r¡irere found to be non Où1y paio, NO'¡;¿àìpiJ
were produced for the goods at the time the goods were seizeo.'ine owners were
gíven, 28 days to produãe the receipts for the gqods seized to prove that they were
bought at a wholesafer and that the duty haã been paid. ihat period hai now
expired and the receipts have not been provided. Thè goods seízed amounted to
total duty evaded of €1503.44

Paul Cumberland from HMRC has produced two statements relating to the said
seizures - see Appendix A and B.

11103111 - Officers carried out licensing revisit inspection with Mr Sefer Govtepe.
The following conditions were still foundio be in breach: 6 - Raid Control systernnot
in place tully;12 - No training carried out; 13 - Traíning records not comitet"á. nn
inspection report was lêft adVìsing a further 21 days to-bring the outstandjng i;ues
into compliance.

0810412011 - Officers carried out licensing revisit. Checked outstanding conditions.
Training carried out and records seen. Raid control seems to have Oeeñ instalÈà -
smoke notes seen, there was a box near the door that the owner claimed was a
camera but the officers were not 10Qo/o convinced, matter referred to police licensingofficer. I

6 F LIC 1A

Page 91



!?1041.1..1.- Trading Standards attempted a test purchase of cigarettes with child E
The child was asked his age and the sale was refused.

Additional lnformation:

are certain criminal activities that may
, which the Secretary of State considers
e fist íncludes the sale of smuggled
ucts).

DCrls guidance (11.27) goes on to say that it is envisaged that respongibitity
authoríties will use the review proceduies effectively to ãeter such activities and
crime' Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime
prevention objective is being undermined thiough the premises tieing used to further
crimes, it is expected that revocation of the fíceñce - even,in the firsiinstance -should be seriously consídered.

lf the lice¡sing committee ís not minded to revoke the premises licence completely,
Trading Standards (Weights and Measures) asks thât consideration be given to
suspend the licence until such time that e vary Designated Premises Su-pervísor
application has been submitted and issued and the Líceãsing Enforcement Team are
confident that all licence conditions are being complÍed withl Trading Stånoaiás do
not believe that the current DPS is a suitablJpersoh to be named asitre DpS, liventhat non duty paid goods were found on the second visit, after such a short tímefiame
in betwe nditions. lf the licence is notrevoked lso recommend modifying the
times andisorder lil-"JiJ'JiiJ",¿',"i H îil:
premises in the future.

Activity Current Times Proposed Times
_Qpening 24 hours daily 07:00 - 23:00 daily
Alcohol 24 hours daily 0:00 - 23:00 daily

túo. Gurrent Cond¡t¡on TS
Agree

3 There shall be no ult
entertainnient or services,
activities or matters ancillary to the
use of the premises that mày give
rise to concern in respect of
chíldren.

Y

4 An alarm system,
shall be installêd,
maintained at the

to 31,
operated and

Y

5 A digital CCTV must be installed in
the premÍses complying with the
following criteria : (1) Cameras
must be sited to observe thè
entrance and exit doors both
insíde and outside, the alcohot
displays and floor areas; (2)
Cameras on the entrances must
capture full frame shots of the
heads and shoulders of all peopfe

N A digital system must be
installed in the premises complying
with the followihg crÍteria: (1) Cameras
must be sited to observe the entrance
and exit doors both inside and
outside, the alcohol displays, and floor
areas; (2) Cameras on the entrances
must capture full frame shots of the
heads and shoulders of all people
enteri the t.e le of

1 F LIC 1A

Page 92



screen; (4) Cameras overlookino
floor areas should be wíde ànglãO
to give an overview of the

review images and recorded
picture.quality; (1 l) Be regutarly
maintained to ensure continuoús
quality of image capture and
retention. Maintenance contracts
must be mãde available to police

theentering premises e capable
of identification; (3 Cameras

tiil areas mviewíng ust capture
notframes less then of50%

export method, cD/DVDe.g writer
so that the police make ancan
evide ntial of datathecopy they
require. This dâta beshoütd tn thè
native file toformat, ensure that no
rm isa9e lostqualíty when making
the tf this focopy rmat ts non-
standard ê man(i. rerufactu

thenproprietary) mthe anufactgrer
should thesupply softwarereplay
to ensure thethat video on the CD
can .be thereplayed by aonpolice
standard computer Copies must
be made avaÍlable to Po lice on

continuous quality of image capture
and 

.retentio n; (12) Have ãignaie 
-

displayed ín the customer arca1o
advise that CCTV is in operation; (13)
Digitat images must be kept for it' -'
days; (14) Police ¡nd ¡uttrori¡ed
oflicsr¡ of ürc councilwill have

identification; (3) Cameras
ereas must ca framespture lessnot
then 50o/o screenof 4( ) Cameras

floor areasoverlooking should be
wide antoangled overview9rve of the

Bepremises; (s) ofcapabfe vfsua vrmconfi the oftng thenature cnme
mittedcom aProvide(6) linked record

theof date, time, and place anof v
tm Provideage; (7) good quality

colo urrmages oduring timespening
underOperate(8) existing light lsleve

within and outside the premlses; (e)
theHave devicerecording lnlocated a

0)
and

6

customers exiting.
); (3) A smoke note

Allstaffrs

counter;

A Raíd Control mustsystem be
insta lled thetn premlses

mco with theplying followÍng
criteria 1 A time( ) issafedelay
fítted unde ther A(2)
sepârate reacovert meti camera
IS fitted above the front door
monÍtoring
(Raid Cam

B F LIC 1A

Page 93



must be lly trained as to RaÍd
Controls use and a signed written
record of all training kept. This
must be made available to police
or council officers on request; (5)
Cash must be minimised in the tiil
and safe utilised

7 uitable steps shall be provided at
the premisês to a llow the reat fire
exit to be used safely in an
emergency.

Y

la At least 2 members of staff shall
be present on the shop-floor of the
premises between 22:00 and
06:00.

N At least 2 mernbers of shall be
present on the shop floor of the
premises at alltimes the premises are
open for licensable activities.I The premises must operate the

LocalAuthority or similar proof of
age scheme and display the
relevant material. Only passport,
photographic driving lícencæs or lD
with the P.A.S.S. togo (proof of
Age Standards Scheme) shail be

N The Local or si proof of
age scheme shall be operated and
relevant material shall be displayed at
the premises. Only passport,
photographic driving liceqces or lD
with the P.A S.S. logo (proof of Age
Standards Scheme) may be acceþted.

10 Prominent, clear and legible
notices shalt be displayed at all
public exits from the premises
requesting cu5tomers respect the
needs of local residents and leave
the premises and area quiefly.
These notices shall be positioned
at eye leveland in a location
where they ean be read by those

the

Y

11 A written record of sales
mu,st-þe kept on the premises and
completed when necessary, lt
must be made avaílable to police
and/or the Local Authority upon
request.

N A written record of refused sales shall
be kept on the prem¡ses and
completed when necessary. This
record shall be flade available to
Police and/or the Local Authority upon
request and shall be kept for at feast
one year from the date of the last

12 Ail must receive induction and
refresher training, relating to the
sale of alcohol.

N staff shall receive and
refresher training (at least every three
months) relqting to the sale of alcohol,
and the times and conditions of the

ficence
Alltraining relating to the sale
alcohol and times and conditions of
the licence shall be documented and
records kept at the premises. These
records shall be madê available to the
Police andlor Local Authority upon
request and shall be kept for at least
one year.

13 Ail training relating to sele of
alcohol shall be documented and
records kept. This record must be
made available to the police
and/or Local Authority upon
request.

N

o F LIC 1A

Page 94



14 underChildren the 1of 4 shala9e
not be rmitted ope n the espremis

2after 001 unless íednaccompa
an adult.by

N

accompanied by an adult, are not
permitted to remain at or enter the
premises after 21:00 hours.

under 14 years, notch

15

advising customers that the
remtsesp tnrs a Control'Drinking

Area' and that alcohol should not
be consumed in the Thesestreet.
notices beshall atpositioned eye

andlevel atn location where they
nca readbe thoseby theleaving

16
premises between the hours of
22:00 and 06:00.

will benot made to the N

premises between the hours of 21:00
and 07:00.

Deliveries willnot be made to the

1

nursance to local residents
Deliveries shall not cause a noíse N Remove by other

Anner Propored
addlüonal by

any other per,sons responsible for
the purchase of stock shall not

The premises licence older and

rchasepu from dany goods oor-to-
door sellers unless fromare athey
bona fide

ensu odsboug file
or folhave I
though legal channeis. These
records shall be made available to
the Police and/or LocalAuthority
upon reguest and shall be kept for
at least. one year.include.
Receípts shall show the following
details:
i) Seller's name and address
ii) Seller's company details, íf
applicable
iii) Seller's VAT detaits, if
applicabte
iv) Seller's vehicle details, if
applicable.
Copies of these documents shall
be retaíned on the premises and
made available to police or
authorised officers of the councif
on request within one week of the

The premises licence holder shalt

10 F LIC 1A

Page 95



An ultra viofet light willbe used at
the store to check the authenticity
of all stock purchased
a customs stamo.

which bears

The premises licence holder shall
ensure that the pavement from the
building line to the kerb edge
immediately outside the, prem ises,
including the gutter/channel at its
junction with the kerb edge, is kept
clean and free from útterãt att
materialtimes to the satisfaction of
the Licens¡ng Authority.

not be
made frôm the premises between
the hours ol21:00 and 07:00.
A personal licence holder is to
be present on the prem¡ses and
superv¡se the sale of alcohol,
throughout the permitted hours
for the sale of alcohol.

The posters, training material, training records and refusals book are all avaifable
from Trading Standards.

reserve the right to give evidence on any
censing objectives which may take place
the submission of this representation
any appeal proceedings. Additionally,
detaíls of the outcome of any Court

presentation and the hearing_

Revocation of Licence:

N

Y

of Licence:

mended per¡od of suspension { max 3 months}:Recom

A sígnifícanfl rrom thispremises foll
tobacco and lls illegal

goods seized totals at 87,354,44 due on the

The Secretary of State belíeves that the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol
qno,llU be treated particularly seriousty and tha submitted
and the.licensing authority determines that tfre is being
undermined reyocation of the licence, even in t seriously
considered.

Reasons for Revocation

There ars nuedconti of athistory the Adviceillega activity to copremises ncemplia
has been onn numthe bergfve of occasions and sthídespite continactivityillegal ued.

Standards haveTrading no enceconfid nI athe bít of the toPLH/DPSíty themanage
tn thewith lice n andce other Standards and RCHM

11 F LIC 1A

Page 96



req

Please tick yes
Have you made an applicatíon for review relating to this premises before n ruã

lf yes please state the date of that applícation
Da M nth Year

¡
ple¡se

I have.sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements
my application will be rejected

tick yec
n

l-Tl9lI{ 9FFENGE, LTABLE oN coNvtcfloN To A F|NE Up ro LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECÎION I58 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2OO3
TO TAKE A FALSE STATETENT IN OR IN CONNECflOil UYITH THIS
APPLICATTON

Part 3 - Signaturcs (please read guidance noté 3)

Signature of applícant or applicant'r solicitor or
(See guidance note 4). lf signing on behatf of the

other duly authorisod agent
applicant please ¡tab in what

l

's

p

4

capqcity

a='

Signeture

Date

Capacity

1Oth May 201t

Principal rreding Standards officer - ticensing Enforcement
Trading Standards (Weights and Measures)

r you have madè rcprcsentati ons relating to prcmises state
what they wene and when you made them

name not ut andprcvio foraddress)grven
associatedcorrospondence thiswith readapplication (please noteguídance 5)

Post town

number (if anT

ng an e-mail address your e-lf ryou us to withcorrespond you
mail address (optional)

72 F LIC 1A

Page 97



Nob¡ for Guid¡ncc
sing objectives.
dates of problems

or) may sign the fi¡rm on their behalf
to do so.

application. se to conespond with you about this

13 F LIC 1A

Page 98



Hpp<drX n "

(cJ Acr'rs67, s.s; ¡ìrc n..rellg$Ë?Ji'Ï?#-,1'l=S,,9ìbL, r27, cp Ruht pattz7.1l

Statement of : pa u ¡ f r.'t.enc(ì Cu n] ll erle r1(.1

Age if under 1g: (If over 18 lnsGrt 'ovrr 1e,) Occupatlon: H M Revenuê and Customs

Thls steGlrnenÈ
make ¡t
which I know

Signature:

of I pæc(s)
tf fs tendercd ln

or do not bclieve

-/{-

knowlcdgc and belief and t
wilfully sfated in it anything

Datc: 4th Aprll 2O11

I ¿ino'm Ofificer of H
myrole n""r"*ri ' In

informatio4 with the

Standards Officer. Environmental protection &
dcails of inspections made byHM Rcvque &

2011 ¿tHerrford Food Carfre,236 Hertfod
ng an action beingl¿ço6y'ü" Li.ør"ing

f
were satisñod that rlugjg the proprietorg inabiþ tã þroduce invoices o1 receipts ûo prove duty
pal¿E ent' that unitd Kingdom Éicise Duty haðnotieen paid on said goods.'

The Rer¡enue on thc goods seizcd is f .$49.ó0

I have examined the repo and can at on the 23d February Officersseizd a toþl of 13.60 kg co and 3 iy*¡o*-rpi".*.''*
The revenue due on the seizod goóds is Ê1503,44

The goods werc seized as liable to forfeiture under customs & Excise Acts.

itue was received within the statutory time rimit therefore the
forfcited iu accordnrce with ppS of schodule S to ôEMAfã

/,.
lLTv 2ouDate:

Signafure:

(signature wltncss)

Slgnature:

(signature witnessed

STATETIENT OF WTNESS: ENGLAND AND WALES ONLY

Page 1 of1

Et{FC8IA
124í¿OOS

Page 99



Êe p<d,..x ß

:j

I

¡

!
i
I

' ' (cr&r rgõ7, s,e 
".^*t#3$?11*?rg,H1t#iblr ,í2'.,cpRur.spùr2z.i)

Statem€nt of; par¡l Tereitce Cumtrer.lanri r r

Age í under lB: (lf o\,ir lE lnsert'ovcr fù) OccuÞatíon: H M Revenuc and Custmrs

wTirEss

This stcüsment
makc lt
srtìich I knoü

Slgnaturu:

of I . page(s) each slgn d by me is tru€ to the best of my knowledgc and bellef and IIt ls
or

I shall be liable to procêcution if I. hav€ wltfully shted.ln lt anything

Datp: 4th April 2011

I am an Oücer o
myrolc as a Larü ' kl
infolmation with

Ttading Standards,
lsFebryary 201.1 at
d Cc¡ite 236

of s!¡ppofting an action bcing takæn by úe .

o" orrú-.ütd Slfcr Covüpc, frc oumer of
2011 rlù.n Otrccn ¡cizc¡l,¿total of 2352

,t1.7 Ljt€s of oúaryiriþ
Theyyrcresúiddúât

or receipts to FÐvc ûrty pcJm€at thd Unit€d

Ihé revenue duc on"the icitoal goods is f5,401.40

Tlic goods wcre seizod as liable to forfeitufc urider cr¡stons & Excise Acts.

No notice :-iL LL -,,spiritsand ï,jåffn**I

I

I

I

,ri

oaæ=-fu fut--
Slgnature

Íl

of wttness)

s¡gnatur€: _ _

(signature witnes¡ed by)

STAÎEÍEilÎOF W|ÌTTGGST EitGLAltD AilD WALES Ot{Ly

Pagn I ofl
Et{Ft8tA

)

12t2009

Page 100



Property lndex number: <UKEyr

ENFIE
Council

rnrnllcH.gov.r*

This review application
of Weights & Measures rs

Safetyãuthority, ine en &

I confirm I am authorised to speak at any. hearing. on behalf of the Health & safetyauthoritv, the Environmental Héa[h authoiity, tne ðn¡ù Èióiãct¡on Board and Enfietd,sTrading standards service linspectors'ði w"ignt- & Measures).

Name and addrcss of premises: Hertford Food Centre,
236 Hertford Road,
Enfietd,
EN3 sBL.

Type of Application:

The Reviery Aoolication

Review of Lícence (Trading Standards)

I am confident that you have read the report that has been provided to you in relation tothis Trading Standards review applicatiãn.

I woi¡ld like to take this opportunity to summarise and emphasíse the main areas ofconcêrn which has led uè'rtet" toáal ioi tt'" revocation of Hertford Food centrepremises licence.

The report shows that Mr Govtepe, the premises licence holder and DpS has been
which indicates that Mr Govtgpe has had plenty

invofved with the premises sínce 2007,
of experience in runnlng an off licence.

However, a number of alleged non compliances have been highlighted in the report.

bl'eached 7 of the¡r ricene= conditions on 7 occasions since
espite advice and warnings being issued, a totar of 23 breaches ofis an alarmingly frequent figure. 

-

one previous seizure of counteÈeÍt alcohol at this premises was carried out by LBE, in

More.recently, two allegations that tax free cigarettes were beíng sold from thepremíses, which were actuaily observed oy añ lee envüo òr¡mé officer.

Additionally, the premises next door but one, lnternet service, 232 Herrford Road,Enfield, EN3 sBL and its storage *"t ãi"o checked, as it is also owned by Mr Govtepe.235'2lítresof vodka,.121.5 litrésotuaiiãuswínes, l09.2litresof Brandyand4l.Ttitres

F KO1t37

Page 101



Property lndex number: <<UKEy¡r

oJ other sprits were seized as they were also identified as non duty paid. The revenue
due on the goods seized at lnternet Service is Ê5,401.40.

Despite all these seízures on l.tFebruary ied out at HertfordFood Centre as a contin_uqlion of the joint s seized 13.6kg ofshísha tobacco, and 3.1S litres of uaríous nd to be non dutypaid. The goods seized amounted to total d

Paul Cumberland from HMRC has produc
- see Appendix A and B. However to sum

has now expired and the receiptç have not

The totál revenue due on goods for sale by Mr Govtepe is 87,3s4.44 - an extortionateamount! lt raises even further concerns that Mr Govtäpe persisted in sÀrring Àon outypaid goods, even after the first large seizure, when he was fully aware of theîaw-

Conditions offered:

1. No alcoholic goods witt ever be purchased from sellers calling to the shop.

2' lnvoíces (or copíe\) f91all alcoholic goods on the premises will be kept at the shop
and p4de- avajlaþte lg.officqrçfrom.theôoun.cil, p-oJice,grHMRÇ_ 1,¡p.9n rqg4eS.t 

-

3'.A stock.control system wíll be íntroduced, sothatthe ticensee can quickly identífywhere and when alcoholic goods have been purchased.

1..1! ultr?-.violet light wílt be avaítable at the premíses for the purpose of checking theuK Duty stamp on spirÌts as soon as practicai after tney iaie been purchased.

5. lf any spfds bought Þy the company h ot fluoresce
unde1. ultra-viotet tight, or are otherwise identify thesupplier to Trading Sfandards Deparlment

6' Any alcohol and tobacco purchases witl be kept ín the stock room and wiil be
gne-c\e! by the premises licen'ce holder or DPS tor comptànce of conditions numtþer 2,3,4&Sstatedabove.

on 10h June 2011, licensing enforcement officers were tasked to carry out a check ofthe current licence and to ðnecr whether the votuntary 
-onditions 

aitually nåã oeenimpbsed. The officers spoke to Mr Mehmet Govtepe, part owner, and were abre to

F K01t37

Page 102



Property lndex number: <UKEyr

ffered had been implemented. No other

on the shelf and again, no probìems found.

Should the committee be minded io amend conditíons, please bear in mind that theÏrading Standards 
-review applicatíon initially propo.ãJ 

" condition relatíng todeliveries. ' ln light of the elanning representa[ion; irading Standards now seek toamend this proposed condition to biing it into rine wiin etanning:

Deliveries ¡nd collcctions to and from__the prcmises shall only take placebetween the hours of 0800hrs to 1900h s rlondåy to Saturoay and none at all onSundays o¡ Bank Holidayr.

The report dÍrects us to the Home Office Guidance (11.26) which states that there are
in connection with licensed premises, which
be treated particularly seriously. The list
nd alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products).

y that it is envisaged that responsible
ctively to deter such activities and crime.

rity determines that the crime prevention
mises being used to further crimes, it is

con'idered n the first instance - should be seriously

Conclusion:

products has þeen seized from Hertford
e but twíce. There have also been
ven after plenty of officer advice. Therefore

ntion objective is being seriously

that such activities wiil cease. 
current management of the premises

Trading Standards therefore believe that it is necessary to revoke the premises licencein its entírety in order to fully support the prevention of ôrime and disorder ricensinl
objective.

F KO1t37

Page 103



Propcrty lndcx numbcr: etJl(Eyr

Olcl Ucmee

|r1s.is a simplc rcvocetion application o iccncp ic out of date inthet the ptrn docs not m¡tch tire tayout, ;îi;;;.:'' 
vI w'rr

F K4il37

Page 104



/\p4ru|rx of .

LOiIDOII BOROUGTI OF ENFIELD LICENSING AUT}IORITY
LrcEilStirc AcT 2003 (HEAR|NGS) RECULATTONS 2005
DEC|S|ON NOI|CE

LICENSING SUB.COT¡IITIEE - 13 JULY2OIf

Applications werà made by TRADING STANDARDS SERVICE for review of the Premises
Licencps held by fUlR SEFER GOVTEPE at the premises known as and situated at
HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE, 236 HERTFORD ROAD, EfìI3.

The Licensing Sub-Committee RESOLVED that it considers the steps listed below to be
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objedives :

(1) Llconcr Number LN/?006002E9 - no rtrp wes n crût¡try.

The Chalrman made the following statement :

"ln the first instânce, we will dealwith Licence Number L1.t/2006ô0789. The licpncè holder'
and his representative lndlcated during the hearing that they acknowledge that the licence
no longer carries weight, and, as in both the written and vèrbal representations frgm
Trading Standards, is unlawful. As such, the representative indicated his client's
preparedness to sungnderthis licehce with immediate dect. Therefore, the Licensing Sub-
Committee has no decision to make."

(2) Licrnoc Humber Lt{/200000420 - to rwdrc thc.liconco.

The Chairmañ made the following statement :

lWith regard to the cunent Licence Number L¡¡/200800470, being still in operation, haying
rcad'and then heard allthe evidence, the suÞcommittee was not persuãded bythe
arguments given by the licence holder to the case brought by Trading Standards for the
review of the licence, The panel has resolved to revoke the licence wíth immediate efrect.

The answers that were provided to a rangg of questions from all the panel members were
both ínconsistent and unconvincing, and ran counter to the çvidence of and presented by
Trading Standards, who, we considered, made its case in full.

Over an extended period of tíme, dating back to December 2008, Trading Standards
office¡s have made numerous and, repeated attempts to assist the licence holder to comply
with the conditions of the licence. Fuli inspectíon reports were provided, and were signed off
on sÍte, and follow-up advice given orr all occaslons. The advice was not heeded, which was
of concern to the sub-committee, especially when bearing in mind that some of the same
conditions were repeatedly.being breached and not remediated. The first hint of any desire
to comply with the licence conditions came forward only in March 2011.

Despite the fact that progress has started to be made by the licence holder, there ís
inst¡ffícíent evidence to support this, and thq history of the premises shows reluctance to
accdpt, heed, or act upon advice.

The Licensing Sub-Committee was somewhat shocked that the licence holder is continuing
to purcha se and sel goods suppl ler they allege them in the past with

seized on twoco unterfeit and non d
from a

lnrs fs n of
had supplied

Page 105



2011, where the comblned duty of these goods
€7,000

sell non duty paid goods which he claims HM
during its raid on I February 2011, eve¡

e, he must have been awere that the sale of

The licence holder, throu^gh his representatives, continually asserted that the sub-committee
needs.to be presenteo wítn evídence that the düty was nóípàio. However, the sub-committee members were not aclually presented with any evidence that the ouiy'iao oeenpaid' ln.fact, the panelwas shocked t'hat invoices *"r" nót routinely kept and / órdemanded from the supplier.

The licence holder also failed to demonstrate what steps he took or was taking to ensure hewas only purchasing from reputable suppliers.

The Licensing Sub-CommÍttee considered the summary point raised bythe licence höldeÉs
íon 6.7. Howeve¡ the suÞcommittee is more
.27, and consid
has been seäo
that the licensi

he licence conditions.

ff ommittee reaffirms that ít has resolved to revoke Lícence
::: cpnsírCers this decision to bd both necessary and proportionaterer sing objectives.,

Sont: 15 2011

Prlncipel Liondng Offi cor

Datc

Signcd

APPEAL

Under the Licensing Act 2003 you have a right of appeal against this decísíon within 21
9."v: .or. receiving itt¡s nouãã,'Ãny ãppeat shoutd be made in writing to the EnfietdMagistrates Court. The contact oetäns ló enfieio ttrtagiãtraies are as follows:

Enfield Magistrates Court,
The Court House, Lordship Lane, Tottenham, London, N1Z 6RT.
Tel:020 8g0e 5411 orFax: O2O BB8S 4349

o

I

Page 106



A eprnct¡n 3

ENF EL
rrt.it ld.tov,d

TRADI I¡G STANDARDS IWEIGHTS AN D ¡IEASU RES I REPRESENTATION

This representation ís made by the Ehfield's Trading Standards Service (inspectors of
Wçights & Meaqures) and is made in consultation w¡tn anO on behalf of'the planning

19tlt94ty' the Health & Safety authoríty, the Environmental Health authority and the
Child Protection Board.

I confirm I am authorised'to speak at any hearing on behalf of the Planning authority
the Health & Safety authority, the EnvironmentalÉeafth authority, the ChibÞrotection
Board and Enfield's Trading 

-Standards 
Service (inspectors of Welghts a Ueasuresf.

Name ¡nd ¡ddrc¡¡ of prcmircr: Hertford Food Centre,
236 Hertford Road,
Enfield,
EN3 sBL.

Typc of Application: New premises Licence

I certify that I have consídered the application shown above and I wi¡h to mrke
nprrecntetions that the likely effiect of the grant of the application is dctrímentat to the
Council's Licensing Objectiveé for the followiñg reasons:

B¡ctoround Hi¡tory:

L,.. ': 1 n9y 
-fPPlication to allow the premises, which is a supermarket to be open and

self alcohol (off sales) lor 24 hours Oaíly.

nsed for these activities and for these
s revoked by the licensing committee on

ew âpplication. However, on 2nd August
al of this decision to Enfield Magistrates
n the revocation decision and the new
el that it is necessaty to refer'to their
mation - see Appendix A. The decision

¡n îtuü 2otS reh-¿r^1\yz dOcu,r¡s^$J
tn the. nery_ap_ptication, rhe premÍses r¡cenc3ToÆlp:#å"!'&.1* premises
Supervisor (DPS) are both named as Mr Suleyman Erdogan. Tradiñg'standards are
not aware of his involvement with the premises under the oi-d licence.

Sínce ßnn l, Coúncil records show no trading standards or licensing complaints in
relatíon to this premises.

The appeal period for the revocation decision expired on 5t8t11. The last date for
representations for the new application is 1118t11. Therefore there is a period when the
premises are not lawfully permitted to sell alcohol.

On Tuesday gft Ar.lgust 2011, an lt was noted that
the bfue notice was displayed cor vtepe, the person
in charge at the premises, and on behalf of Mr
Govtepe. Ms Koker stated that she has been an employee at the premises for nearly
three years, and that Mr Suleyman Erdogan is the night iime manajer at the premises,

Page 107



and has been working there approximately one year, Ms Koker stated she did not know
Mr Sefer Govtepe, the named premises licence holder and designated premises
supervisor under the revoked premises licence.

Prevention of Nuigance:

The premises is located on a commerciàl stretch of Hertford Road close to the junction
with Green Street. There are many licensed premíses in the Vicinity including:

o Co:op - alcohol (latest 23:00)
¡ Hertford Food Centre - alcohol (24 hours)
o Hare Wines - alcohol (latest 23:00)
r Hertford Discount Ê Store - alcohol (latest 23:00)
. Híghway Supermarket - alcohol (latest 23:00)
¡ TFC - alcohol (latest 23:00)
¡ Hare Wines - alcohol (latest 23:00)
o Efe Food and Wine House - alcohol (latest 01:00)
o Sirwan - alcohol (latest 23:00)
¡ Favourite Chicken and Ribs - LNR (latest 01:00)
o Speedo Piza- LNR (latest 01:00)
¡ Akar Kebab - LNR (latest 01:00)
. Mega Piza - LNR (latest 00:00)
. Sporting Green - alcohol, indoor sporting events, recorded music (tatest 01:00),

live music, facilities for making music (latest 00:30).
o The Black Horse - alcohol; films, recorded music (latest 03:00), late níght

refreshment (latest 03:30), facilities for making music, live music, indoor
sporting events (latest 01:00)

r The Offy and General Stores - alcohol (latest 01:00)

Reeident¡:

There is a mixture of residential and commercial premises in this location, with
residential streets running off l-lertford Road. There are also residential premises
above some of the shops.

ln summary lwish to make reprosentation on füe following:

¡ Prevention of Public Nuísance
¡ The Protection of Children from Harm

I have no objection to the activities applied for. However, I do object in part to the hours
applied for, end recommend the following times:

Activity Applied for Þlourc TS Suqsested Hours
Open 24 hours daily 08:00 - 01:00 daily

Alcohol '

(off ¡alcc)
24 hours daily 08:00 - 01:00 daÍly

I would also recommend the following conditions be attached to the licence to promote
the licensing objectives. These conditions amend the proposed conditions Ín Annex 2
as indicated.

,

Page 108



3
services, activities or matters ancillary.to
thé use of the premises that may give risc
to concern ín respect of children.

There be no adult entertainment or Y

4 system, to 8SEN50131, shall be
installed, operated and maintained at the
premises.

An alarm Y

premíses complying with the following
criteria : (1) Cameras must be sited to
observe thê entrance and exit doors both
inside and outside, the alcohol displays
and floor areas; (2) Cameras on the
entrances must capture fullframe shots of
the heads and shoulders of all people
entering the premises i.e" capable of
identification; (3) Cameras vievrring till
areas rñust capture frames not less then
50o/o ot screen; (4) Cameras overlooking
floor areas should be wide angled to give
an overview of the premises; (5) Be
capable of visually confirming the nature
of the crime committed; (6) Provide a
linked record of the date, tíme and place
of any image; (7) Provide good quality
colour images; (8) Operate under exísting
light levels within and outside the
premises; (9) Have the recording device
located in a s€cure aree. or locked
cabinet; (10) Have a monitor to review
images and recorded pigture quality; (li)
Be regularly maintained to ensure
continuous quality of image capture and
retention; Maintenance contracts must be
made availaþle to Police on rcquest; (12)
Have signage displayed in the customer
area to advise that CCTV is in operation;
(13) Digital images must be kept for 3t
days; (14) Police will have access to
images at any reasonablb time; (15) The
equipment must have a suitable export
method, e.g. CD/DVD wrÍter so that the
police can make an evidential copy.of the
däta they require. Ttiis data should bè in
the native file iormat, to ensure that no
image quality is lost when making the
copy. lf this format is non-standard (i.e.
manufacturer proprietary) then the
manufacturer, should supply the replay
software to ensure that the video on the

A digital CCTV must be

ona

in the

CD can

(ltl) Policc and
authorise.d officers of the
councilwill h¡vc'
.cc.!s to im¡gcc at
.ny Íìoa.onaÞle time;

section:

I

Page 109



to Police on request.
bemust

available
computer

covert realtime cemera is fitted above the
front door monitoring customers exiting.
(Raid Cam); (3) A smoke note system is
installed; (4) Att staff must be fully trained
as to Raid Controls use and a signed
written record of all training kept. This
must be made available tó police or
council officers on request; (5) Cash must
be minimised in the till and the safe
utilised.

following criteria
fitted under the counter;

RaidA Control bemustsystem
theIn lsesprem thewithngcomplyi

1 timeA de ts( ) safeey
A separate(2)

shall be provided at the
premises to allow the rear fire exit to be
used safely in an emergency.

steps Y

I
present on the shop-floor of the premises
between 22:00 and 06:00.

least 2 members of staff shall be two members of
staff shall be present on
the shop-floor of the
premises betweèn 22:OO
and 01:00-

NB. This end time
reflects the TS
recommendation forthe
reduction of hours.

At least

The premises must Localoperate
Auth or srm ofílaronty schemeproof age
and the mrelevant aterialdisplay Only
passport, orphotographic licencesdrívíng
D thewith AP sù. of(Prooflogo Age

ardsStand shall beScheme) accepted,

10
be dísplayed at all public exits from the
premises requesting customers respect
the needs of local residents and leave the
premises and area quiefly. These notices
shall be positioned at eye level and in a
focation where they can be read by those
leaving the premises.

Prom clear and legible notices shall

11

kept on the premises and completed
when necessary. lt must be made
available to PolÍce and/or the Local
Authority upon request.

A written record of sales must be A written record of
refused sales shall
kept on the premises
and completed when
necessary. This record
shall be made available
to Police and/or

be

Page 110



LocalAuthority upon
request and shall be
kept for at least one year
from the date of the last
entry.

12 All staff must receive induction and
refresher training, re¡at¡ng to the sale of
alcohol.

N Allstaff shallrecFive
induction and refresher
training (at least every
three months) relating to
the sale of alcohol, and
the times and conditions
of the premises licence.

13 training relating to sale of alcohol
shall be documented and records kept.
This record must be made available to tl¡e
Police and/or Local Authority upon
request.

N Alltraining relating to the
sale of alcohol and times
and conditions of the
licence shall be
documented and
records kept at the
premises. These records
shallbe made available
to the Police and/or
LocalAuthority upon
request and shall be
kept for at least one
year.

14 Children under the age of 14 shall not be
permitted on the premises after 2l:00
unless accompanied by an adult.

Y

15 Signs shall prom inently on
the exit doors advising customers that the
premises is in a 'Drinking Control Area'
and that alcohol should not be consumed
in the street. These notices shall be
posítioned at eye levef and in a location
where lhey can be read by those leaving
the premises.

Y

16 Deliveries will not be made to the
premises between the hours of 22:00 and
06:00.

Y

17 Deliveríes shall not cause a notse
nuisance to local residents.

Y

118 No alcohol goods
from sellers calling to

sha be pu
the shop.

N The premises licence
holder and any other
persons responsible for
the purchase of stock
shall not purchase any
goods from door-to-door
sellers unlesg they are

Page 111



from a bona fide
company.

available to Officers from the Council,
Police or HMRC upon request.

alcohol goods
be theat andPremiseskept bewíll made holder shall ensure that

all receipts for goods
bought are kept together
in a file or folder as
evidence that they have
been brought into the
UK though legal
channels. These
records shall be made
available to the Police,
LocalAuthority and/or
HMRC upon requêst
and shall be kept for at
least one year. Receipts
shall show the following
details: (l) Seller's name
and address; (2) Seller's
company details, Íf
applicable; (3) Selleds
VAT details, íf
applÍcable;-(4) Selte/s
vehícle details, if
applicable. Copies of
these documents shall
be retained on the
premises and made
available to police or
authorised officers of the
council on request within
fivg working days of the
request.

The licence

20 be introduced, so that
the licensee can identify when/where
alcohol goods were purchased.

Stock control Y

21 An ultra-violet light
the Premises for the
the UK Duty Stamp

purpose of checking
on spirits as soon as

practical after they have been purchased.

be at An ultra violet
be used at the store to
check the authentÍcity of
all stock which bears a
customs stamp as soon
as practical after they
have been purchased.

will

spirits bought by the Company
UK Duty Stamps that do not

fluoresce under ultra-violet light, or are
otherwise suspicious, the licenéee shall
identify the supplier to Trading Standards
and HMRC as soon as possíble.

lf any
have

Page 112



Trrding Sîandards rcscruc thc right to provide furthcr information to support this
reprcoentation.

lf those condltions and hours were accepted in full I woulD withdraw my
reproscntation.

Duly Authorised: Ellie Green, principal r¡ading standardE officcr - Licensing
Enforcemcnt

Signed: Date: 09/08/201'l

Tel: 0208 379 8543 I eilie.green@enfield.gov.uk

Page 113



AprnOn

Page 114



I
t

tr

I
I

g

I

ÊÐI

I

)
I

)

(

ì

t

I

¡

tl

I

Itr'¡.'
"¡

'üür
- sE
HË

it)t

<--

\

t

f

a

,J

aa''i'r,

-+.

I

a{

P
age 115



V

a
l¡
-À

t

1.','t t.

a'

7

,
t
I

a

a

l
I

a#&

!

a
I

lI

T Þ

\
'e,aa

I,-
-l!

f,ü
lil

I

r,, !

"1

Page 116



"fþ

Page 117



l,l ,r.,

tt

; ar,

,t¡

I

¡lít}.r

-

r.s;

-
È

!I
ìJ .r

t

t

/l Ía

't
I tt

I
t

t

.. 
¿.

,tl
'l i

Page 118



-

I

t

t
_t ,>-

t,t futu¡

li

--

tt

I

ì?,

ì

il
f Þ'wIt

>

cöç
!{O

iilrliill\\\

it ¿. 6

'!¿a!
-tI

t.
I' l,

l' .'t I
I .4

Í

¡C.

t
-lì

ï lf-

r11
II

]a

Page 119



frpg<d,^-t, 5

t
Companies House

Current Appointments Reoort þr:
HERTFORD FOOD CENTRÉ LIMITED

07216126

Greated : 041031201 5 I 6:08:35

Companies House is a registry of corporate ¡nbrmatlon. we carry out bas¡c chocks to make sure that dodments have
been fully completed and slgn€d, but we do not have lhs statutory power or capablligr to rærify the accutacî of lhe
inbrmation lhat corporato entltles send to i¡s. We åccept all ¡nformatlon lhal such enüties dellver to ùs in good falth and
place it on ho publli fecord. The fact thet the lnformation has beenplac€d on he publlc r€cord should not be taken to
lndlcds hat Companies House has verlfled or vdldated it ¡n any way.

Page 120



Company Register lnformation

Company llumbcr:
Cor¡prnyil.mo:
Frglrbrrd Oftlcr:

CornptnyTyfi:
Country of Origin:

St¡h¡r:
Xrü¡ro Of BuJn.t¡ (SlC):

lúumb.r ol Ch.rg..:

Previous Names
No pra/ous name lnformation has be'en recoded over the last 20 years.

Key Filing Dates

07216126 Dltr ol lncorporrt¡on:Ogi/04/2010

HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE LIMITED

236 HERTFORD ROAD

ENFIELD

EMI sBL

Private Limlted Corhpany

Unlted Kingdom

Acliw

472,f0 - Reteil sale of bread, cakes, flour confeclionery and sugar conÞctionery
in speciallsed slores .

( 0 oulstandlng / 0 part saüsfled / 0 saüsfled)

Actounüng Rctrrnca Dfü:
Lrl llc¡ount¡ llldc up To:

tcl Accountr Dur:
La¡t R¡turn hdo UpTo:
Xot ñatu¡n Ouc:

Lrt mcmb.rallat:
L.!I lullqsi.Ehold.?r Ll!t:

31/03.
91 to3t201 4 (.ÍOTAL EXEMPTTON

SMALL)

31112t2015

08io4t2014

06/05/2015

081o4t2014

l\lotavailúle

Page 121



Current Appolntments

llr¡mbr ol cun nt l9polntln.trt¡: f

DIIEGTOfr:

þpolnbdr
]|[ondlty:
fe. ef Appolnlnrntr:
l¡ldln:

Counlry/gtrb of i.df hnr

fhb i¡port tcludr rrþnlüonr

GOVTEPE, SEFER MR

..011ù1t2011

BRITISH

I
236 HERTFORD ROAD

e¡¡nELo
UNITED KINGDOM

ENg sBL

ENOI,AND

lbt¡ of lldh: 10/1 0/1973

3

Page 122



Recent Fillng History

Dooumanlt lllcd ¡lncr0107/2013

DAIE

sot10t201'4

2A06/¿;014

22105/2011

20nyãJ1+

2U06/t2014

01t11t2t13

06107t20.ts

FORT

AA

.AROl

tÃtEsTsqc
APOl

TMOl

AA

AROl

DESCRTFfÍtOx

31/0s14 TOTAL EXEMPTTON Stì{Atr
0uut14 FUtlLtsT
22/05/14 STÃTEMENT O,F CAPITAL:GEP 2OMO

DIRECTOR APPOINTED MR SEFER GOWEPE
APPOINTMENT TERMII{ATE4 DIRECTOR SULEYI/IAN ERDOGAN

3I/0Sfi3 TOTAL ÉXEMPTION SMALL

OUO4I13 FULL LIST

Thb llrportuolurbl(2) Srrr Atbtíúnt docutrrb

4

Page 123



Mr S. Erdogan
Hertford Food Centre
236 Hertford Road
Enfield
EN3 sBL

Please reply to:

Ema¡l:

My Ref:

Your Ref:

Date:

Tel

Fax

Sheila Lahey
Trading Standards
PO Box 57, Civic Centre
Silver Street, Enfield, Middx. EN1 3XH
020 8379 8527

o2o 8379 4419
Sheila. lahey@enfield.gov. uk
wKt214047247

9th September 2014

Textphone

Dear Mr Erdogan

ln March 2014, Enfield Trading Standards and HMRC visited the premises and
seized a quantíty of alcohol showing counterfeit back labels.
This is a criminal offence.

Having carefully considered the facts of the case, Trading Standards have
decided not to take any formai action against you on this occasion.

However, you should take this letter as a warning as to your future conduct.
Should símilar matters be brought to our attention again, it is unlikely that we
shall adopt such a lenient approach.

lf you have any further quer¡es. Please feel free to contact me on 020 8379
8527

Yours sincerely,

Sheila Lahey
Fair Trading Officer

lan Davis
Director- Regeneration & Environment
Enfield Council
Civic Centre, Silver Street
Enfield ENr 3XY Website: www.enfield.oov. uk

@ for. help with this document, please contact the above officer who will be able to assist in line with our accessible information policy

Page 124



Please reply to

IMPORTANT - PLEASE READ

THIS LETTER CONCERNS YOUR NEW LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND ANY
FAILURE TO ACT ON THESE MATTERS COULD LEAD TO YOUR PROSECUTION

Dear Mr Suleyman Erdogan

Re: Hertford Food Centre,23G Hertford Road, ENFIELD, EN3 SBL

I refer to your Premises Licence and/or Club Premises Certificate, under the
Licensing Act 2003, in respect of the above premises/club premises.

lf your licence/certificate authorises the sale/supply of alcohol then you must comply
with the contents of this letter. lf alcohol is nof authorised under the iicence/certificàtå
please disregard this letter.

As you are aware, you must ensure that the operation'of the premises/club
premises, complies with the conditions set out in Annexes 1, 2 and 3 of the
I icence/certificate document.

I am writing to advise that new Mandatory Conditions have been attached to your
licence/certificate by Parliament. You must ensure that the operation of the
premises/club premises, under the licence/certificate, a/so complies with the
Mandatory Conditíons, even though they are nof printed on your Iicence/certificate
document.

Failur.e to comply with the condítions of your licence/certificate and/or the Mandatory
Conditions is a criminal offence with a maximum penalty, on conviction, of 6 months
imprisonment and a f20,000 fine.

The Mandatory Conditions are set out below:

1. (1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted
pnce.
(2) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph (1) -

Mr Suleyman Erdogan
2564 Hertford Road
ENFIELD
EN3 sBL

ENFIELD
::,ii:::.

Regeneration & Environment
Licensing Team
PO Box 57
Civic Centre, Silver Street
Enfield, Middx. EN1 3XH
020 8379 3578
020 8379 2190
020 8379 4419
licensing@enfield. gov. uk
Mandatory Conditions
LN/201 100396
From 28 May 2014

Tel
Fax

Minicom

Email

My ref
Your ref

Date

Page 125



2

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcohotic Liquor Duties
Act 1979(a);
(þ) "permitted príce'r is the price found b¡¡ applying the formula p = D + (Dxv)
where -(i) P is the permitted price,

(¡¡) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as
if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or suppty of the
alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relatíon to premises in respect of which there
is in force a premises licence -(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence,
or (iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of
alcohol under such a licence;

(d)."relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there
is in force a'club premises certificate, any rnember or officer of the club
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to
prevent the supply in question; and
(e) "value added tax" rheans value added tax charged in accordance with the
Value Added Tax Act 19%(b).

(3) where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would
l.rpgrt from this paragraph) not be a whoie number of pennies, thiprice given by
that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by tñat sub-

ny.
where the permitted price given by
("the firsi d.ay") would be different from
second day") as a result of a change to

he permitted price which would apply on
of alcohol which take place before ihe

expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

(1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on
relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible
promotions in relation to the premises.
(2).ln this paragraph, an irresþonsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activíties, or substantially similar activities, carried ôn for the purpose of
encouragi!9 lhe sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a
manner which carríes a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and
disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children-

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to
require or encourage, individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of álcohol within a time limit (other than to drínk alcohol
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which
the responsible person is authorised to seil or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or
othenrise);

(b) provision of unlimíted or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed
or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particutar
characteristíc (other than any promotion or discount available tô an individual

Page 126



5

in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in section
159 of the Act);
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to
encourage or reward the purchase and consumptíon of alcohol over a period
o124 hours or less;
(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the
premises of a sporting,event, where that provision is dependent on -

(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or
(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or
flyers or, or in the vicinify of, the premises which can reasonably be
consideréd to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour 

-or 
to

refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

3. The responsÍble person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one
person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to
drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

4. The responsíble person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure
that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photggraph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

6. The responsible person shall ensure that-
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied
having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closêd
container) it is available to customers in the following measures-

(i) beer or cider: Tz pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky:25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

NB. The "responsible person" means-
(a) in relation to licensed premises-

(i) the holder of a premises licence in respect of the premises,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) under such a licence, or
(ii¡) any individual aged 18 or over who is authorised for the purposes of this
section by such a holder or supervisor,

(b) in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables him to prevent the supply in question.

Page 127



The Home Office have produced Guidance (on banning the sale of alcohol
below the cost of duty plus VAT) and a Permitted Price Calculator. These
documents may be viewed, down-toaded and printed via the following web-
link:

TRADING STANDARDS ADVIGE :

You.must buy tobacco, alcohol and any productthat belongs to a registered brand
(trade mark) holder from a reputable supplier.

Furthermore, these products must be evióenced by receipts and available for
inspection to Trading standards, HMRC and the police upon request.

I Trgt remind you that Trading Standards operate a zero tolerance policy that
includes prosecution, revocation of the licence and other enforcement disþosals
against any individual or any premises found to have counterfeit alcohol, tobacco or
any other product belonging to a registered brand holder on the premise and
associated buildings/vehicles or on your person.

Yours sincerely

t

Page 128



CÊz\ ü¡i
LOIIÞOiI BOROUGH OF ENFIELD LICEÌ{SNG AUTHORITY
LrcEÌ{stilc AcT 2003 (HEAR|NGS) REGULAT|ONS 200s
DECtStOil NOTTCE

LICENSING SUB.COTTITTEE - 13 TAY 2OI5

Application was made by the LICENSINC AUTIþRITY for a review of the premises

!g11ce_held by llR SULEYilIAì{ ERDOGAil at the premises known as and situated at
HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE, 236 HERTTORD ROÀO, ENFIELD, ET{3 sBL.

The Licensing Sub-Committee RESOLVED that it considers the step listed below to be
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives :

(¡) to rcvoke the licence

Rc¡¡on¡:

The Chairman made the following statement :

"Having considered allthe written subrnissions and listened attentively to allthe oral
submissions atthe hearing, the Licensing SutsCqnmittee (LSC) detérmined thatthe
appropriate gtep to be taken in response to the aptication to reviewthe licence, and fortfie
promotion of the licensing objectives, is to revoke the lbence.

The Council's Licensing Policy and stafutory guktanoe are cþar that in the event of crimina]
activity,._by way of counterfeit or non-dtrty paid gæds being acquired and sold, revocation
even in the first instance should be serbr.sty consËdeled

We have heard the history of these premãses, whiefi includes revocation of a previous
licenoe for the same reasons - and at a tine nften the current Premises Licence Holder /
Desþnated Premises Supervisor was invohæd es an empbyee of the business; and that Mr
lrelogal madç an application for a neryu lbence the very neit Aay. This was made in full
knowledge of the rbasons for the revocation

We further heard that a significant seizure of counterfuit goods was carried out on 12th
March 2014; and that there have been two further episodìs of a difrerent scale since that
time.

The licence holder, through his representative, admitted that each of these incidents
undermined the prevention of crime and dísordei licensing objective, as well as the former
revocation doing so.

Even if the LSC were persuaded that Mr Erdogan was ignorant of the actions of his
business partner - Mr Sefer Govtepe - he has failed to demonstrate any capability to
control those actions as they impact on his responsibilities to operate hiè licence Iäwtuty.

Alternatively, he kngw exactly what was going on with regard to the sale of non-duty paid
goods'and chose either to condone it or turñ a blind eye.

By the lícence holdeds own admission, he has more than once been out of the country for
long periods, and this further hampers his ability to assert control of the business.

When uestioned about the failure to rnvolces to the rchase of

Page 129



paid goods AS recently as ril 20 1 5 it agar n demon strated his lack of abi itv to even obtain
nvorces from h IS own accountant despite being n the knowledge he faced a review of h r8
licence

The LSC was hot satisfied by the answers given, and believed it to be an aggravating factor
to the litany of failures, and breaches of other conditions of the licence.

Therefore, the LSC finds that the applicant has made its case in full, and that revocation is
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives."

Date Notice Sent: 13 tay 2015

(

Princ Licenci Ofñcer

APPEAL

Under the Licensing Act 2003 you have a rþht of appeal against this decision within 21
days of receiving this notice. Any appeal should be made in writing to the North London
Magistrates Court at the fotlowing address :

No¡th London Magistrates Court
51 Roed N7 8JA

Page 130



c ?l l."l

IN THE ENFIELD IIAGISTRATES'COURT
BETWEEN: -

SULEYTAN ERDOGAN
(Hutford Food Gcntrc)

Appellant
v.

THE LONDON BOROUG}I OF ENFIELD
Respondent

APPEAL UNDER S.rEr & PARAGRAPH E(2) SCHEDULE s OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2OO3 AGAII{ST A DEC¡S¡OH BY lHE LICENSIÑG SUB-
COTTITTEE OF THE LOiIDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD ON 13th MAY

2015 relating to tho premises knwn æ HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE, 236
HERTFORD ROAD, E¡IF¡ELD EN3 5BL

. CONSENT ORDER

AHD UPOI{ the parties having reached agreernent to the terms set out below:

BY CONSENT IT IS ORDERED THAT:

1. The appellant withdraws his appeaÌ againstthe decbbn of the licensing
sub-committee dated 13 May 2A15.

2. The appellant pays fortrwith the respondenËs costs as described in Annex
1, appended hereto.

3. The hearing listed for 10 November 2û15 be vacated.

Signed e/4-¿- Sþnad:
London Borough of Enfield
PO Box 50, Civic Centre
Enfield,
Middx EN1 3XN
Tel: 020 8379 6420
Fax: 020 8379 6492
DX:90615 Enfþld 1

Ref: LS/C/CM/153056

Mahir as
r\¡,ARTS
53 Stoke Newington High Street,
London
N16 8EL
Tel:020 72413636
Fax:0871 661 5283
Ref:

Solicitors for the Respondent Rcprcscntativc for thc Appcllant

Page 131



ANNEX 1

IN THE ENFIELD MAGISTRATES' COURT
BETWEEN:.

SULEYTAN ERDOGAN
(Hertford Food Centre)

Appellant

THE LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD
Respondent

APPEAL UNDER S.l8l & PARAGRAPH 8(2) SCHEDULE 5 OF THE
LICENSII{G ACT 2OO3 AGAIiIST A DECISION BY THE LICENSING SU&
COMTITTEE OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF EilFIELD Oil 13th MAY

2015 relating to the premisc¡ known as HERTFORD FOOO CENTRE, 236
HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD EN3 sBL

lnvestigation costs Ê19.38

Leqal costs

Solicitofs time, charged at f85 per hour:
Paralegal's time, charged at €40 per hour:

Solicitor 11 hours 24 minutes
Paralegal 0 hours 0 minutes

Ê969.00

Total €988.38

Page 132



LIOYDS BAI{K

Mr S. Weizmann

Payment confirmed

We received your payment request at 16:01 ôn 3OtOSlZOlS.

From

Platinum (30-6+22, 2EoEse6E)

lfrw balenccl. 13,271.40 (available funds: €3,471 .4O) t4
To

ENFIELD BOROUGH COUNC lL 6o-zo.zz,E1z2a3o7)
Rdbrcnce: S ERDOGAN

Paymontemount

f988.38
Peymcnt datt

ASAP Thit payment will urually roach the recipicntr account witñin the ncxt 2 hour¡

We've ¡uccearfully proccoced your paymcnt to EI{FIELD BOROUGH COUNclLfor Ê9E8.38. Thc moncy will
ucually rcach the reclpicntir tccountwrlhin 2 hours.

ilÀ

Page 133



Mr Mahir kilic
NARTS
53 Stoke Newington Hígh Street
London
NI6 8EL

Please reply to

E-mail:

Phone :

Textphone:
Fax:

My Ref :

Your Ref:
Date:

(:p/ lrc>

ENFIEL
Council

Ellie Green
Licensing Unit
PO Box 57, Civic
Gentre
Silver Street, Enfield,
Middx EN1 3XH
licensing@enfield. gov. uk

020 8379 3578
020 8379 4419
020 8379 2190
LN/201500517
NOT PROVIDED
18th September 2015

lah Dåvis
Þ¡re€tor - Environment
Enfield Council
Civ¡c Centre, 5¡lver Street
Enñeld EN'ì 3XY

Dear Mr Mahir kilic

Licensinq Act 2003
Premises :Zilan Food Gentre, 236 Hertford Road, ENFIELD, EN3 SBL

This letter concerns the application for a New Application Premises Licence under
the Licensing Act 2003.

Please find the licence enclosed. Please check the details on the licence carefully,
the Licensing Authority is prepared to correct any of our clerical errors within 2'B
days of the licence being issued.

Please be advised that the licence does not override any restrictions on trading
hours etc. that may apply to the premises in respect of planning permission and/or
Sunday trading & etc.

The terms, conditions and restrictions of the licence must be complied with
whenever the premise is used for licensable activities. Failure to comply With the
licence is a criminal offence with, on convictíon, a maximum fine of ÊZO,OOO and/or
up to 6 months imprisonment.

Phone:O2O4379 ¡OOO
Webslte: wolw.enfi eld.gov.uk

Note - Transfers
On the grant of a transfer application, any notification or permit (under the Gambling
Act 2005) in respect of gaming machines at the. premises becomes null and vofd. Ã
new notification or permit wil need to be sought by the new holder of the p remises
licence (unde f the Licensing Act 2003) before gam ng machines may be lawfully

at the rseS.

'. ? ' ll you rìeed this doËurnÇ'nt in ànotlìer larrguage or form¿t call Cl|stc.ßì€r Selv¡çes on o2O g379 I oo0, or enrail enñekl-ccuncili4enñelcl,gov.trk

Page 134



The Licensing Enforcement Team advise as follows

ln order to support premises in meeting the conditions of their licence, the Licensing
Authority has produced material such as training guidance, leave quietly signs,
refusals book, which can be found on the Enfield website by following this link:

Please print the material relevant to the conditions and use in accordance with your
licence.

Please be advised that a premises licence lapses if the holder of the licence : dies;
becomes a person who lacks capacity (within the meaning of the Mental Capacity
Act 2005) to hold the licence; becomes insolvent; is'dissolved; or if it is a club,
ceases to be a recognised club. An individual becomes insolvent on : the approval
of a voluntary arrangement proposed by him;'being adjudged bankrupt or having his
estate sequestrated; or'entering into a der d of arrangement made for the beneiit of
his creditors or a trust deed for his creditors. A company becomes insolvent on : the
approval of a voluntary arrangement proposed by its directors; the appointment of
an administrator in respect of the company; the appointment of an administrative
receiver in respect of the company; or going into liquidation.

The licence, or a certified copy of it, must be kept on the premises at all times and
must be produced on request to any authorised officer. The summary of the licence
must be prominently displayed within the premises.

Should you wish to change the operation of the premises in the future by ádding
new licensable activities or by changing the hours or removing conditions then you
will nded to apply for a variation of the licence. Please contact us for further advice.

You must notify the licensing authority of any change in the name and/or address of
either the premises licence holder or the designated premises supervisor.

The licence is subject to an annual fee, payable on each anniversary of the licence
first being granted.

The London Fire Brigade advise as follows

The issue of capacity should be addressed in the fire risk assessment for the
premises use. This does not mean that every premises must have a capacity figure.
There should be evidence however that the responsible person has considered the
number of persons who can be safely evacuated through the available exits.

A safe capacity figure will be expected in the following circumstances:
(1) in premises that could potentially becomê overcrowded; for example bars, pubs,
clubs, and other places of public assembly :

(2) where an engineered solution or BS 9999 has been used io increase capacity;
(3) where capacity is risk-critical; for example where the premises use has a hig-her
occupancy factor than that which the building was designed for.

where applicable, capacity should normally be inclusive of staff and
fiíanagement should be able to demonstrate a realistic method of

performers.
controlling

Page 135



Please be advised that if you are playing music in your business - to staff or
customers - it is a legal requirement to obtain permission from the copyright
holders. Two organisations exist to help make sure you are correcfly licensed to
play the music you want. PPL collects royalties on behalf of performeis and record
companies. PRS for Music collects royalties on behalf of songwriters, composers
and music publishers. ln most instances, a licence from bõth organisations is
needed to ensure all copyright holders are correctly paid for the use óf their music.
lf you play music in your business, please contact PPL and PRS for Music to obtain

0800 068 4828.

All employers have a responsibility to prevent illegal migrant working in the UK.

!q!!ure to comply could lead to a penalty of up to f 1O,OÓO per illegal worker. Home
Office guidance is available at

lf you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Ellie Green
Principal Licensing Officer

Page 136



Licensinq Act 2003

PART A - PREMISES LICENCE

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : LN/201500517

Part I - Premises Details

Postal address of premises :

Premises name:

Telephone number:

Address :

Zilan Food Centre

Not provided

236 Hertford Road ENFIELD EN3 sBL

Where the licence is time-limited, the
dates : - Not time limited

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence and the times the lícence authorises the carrying out of those
activities :

(1) Open to the Public - Whole premises
Sunday: 08:00-01:00
Monday: 08:00-01:00
Tuesday: 08:00-01:00

Wednesday: 08:00-01:00
Thursday: 08:00-01:00

Friday: 08:00-01:00
Saturday : 08:00 - 01:00

(2t Supply of Alcohol - Off supplies
Sunday:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday:

Thursday:
Friday :

Saturday :

08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00

Page 137



Pa¡t 2

Name and (registe
Name:

Telephone number:

e-mail :

Address :

Registered number of holder (where
applicable):

Name:

Telephone number:

Address :

lssuing Authority :

address of lder of ises licence:

N.T-" and (registered) address of second hotder of premises licence (where
applicable):

Not applicable

Name and address of designated
of alco

premises supervisor (where the licence
authorises the s

Name :

Telephone number:

e-mail :

Address:

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal 'licence hcld by
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply oi
alcohol):
Pelsonal Licence Number : LN/201300562

London Bo h of Enfield

Premises Licence LN/201500517 was first granted on 1g September 2015

Signed:
for and on behalf of the

Date : lSth September 2015

London Borough of Enfield
Licensing Unit, Civic Gentre, Silver Street, Enfield ENl 3XH
Telephone: 020 8379 3578

Not provided

info@narts.org.uk

14 Downland House, Goat Lane,4 Holbrook Ctose,
London ENI 4UU

Deniz Altun

lUlr Deniz Altun

Not provided

info@narts.org.uk

14 Downland House, Goat Lane,4 Holbrook Close,
London ENI 4UU

ETFIEL
Coun

Page 138



Annex I - Mandatory Gonditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence : (a) At a
time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence; or (b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor
does not hold a personal licence or his personàl licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under th'e premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Annex 2 - Gonditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

3. There shall be no adult entertainment or selvices, activities or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concem in respect of
children.

4. All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every
three months) relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of
the premises licence.

5. All training relating to the sale of aliohol and the times and conditions
of the premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the
premises. These records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local
Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year.

6. A'Think 25' proof of.age scheme shall be operated and relevant
material shall be displayed at the premises.

7. A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and
completed when necessary. This record shall contain the date.and time of the
refusal, a description of the customer, the name of the staff member who
refused the sale, and the reason the sale was refused. This record shall be
made available to Police and/or the LocalAuthority upon request and shall be
kept for at least one year from the date of the last entry.

8. The Designated Premises Supervisor shall regularly check the refusals
book to ensure it is being consistently used by all staff.

9. Prominent, clear anC legible notices shall be displayed at all public
exits from the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local
residents and leave the premises and area quietly. These notices shall be
positioned at eye level and in a location where thosq leaving the premises can
read them

10. Prominent, clear an{ legible notices shall be displayed at all public
exits from the premises requesting customers respect the surrounding area
and dispose of litter iñ a responsible manner. These notices shall be
positioned at eye level and in a location where those leaving the premises can
read them.

11. The premises licence holder shall ensure that the pavement from the
building line to the kerb edge immediately outside the premises, including the

Page 139



gutter/channel at its junction with the kerb edge, is kept clean and free from
litter at all material times to the sati3faction of the Licensing Authority.

12. Alcohol and cigarette stock shall only be purchased from registered
wholesalers.

13. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor
shall purchase alcohol and cigarette stock.

14. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods
bought are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they havé been
brought into the uK through legal channels. Receipts shail show the
following details: (1) Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company details,
if applicable; (3) Seller's VAT details, if applicable. Gopies of these
documents shall be retained for no less than 12 months and shall be made
available to police or authorised officers of the council on request within five
working days of the request. The most recent three months'worth of receipts
shall be kept on the premises and made available to the police or authorised
officerc of the council on request.

15. All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be
stored in a container clearly marked 'tobacco stock'. This container shall be
kept within the store room or behind the sates counter.

16. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind
the sales counter in order to make a sate.

17. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed on all alcohol
fridges and at all other alcohol display areas advising customers of the
permitted sale of alcohol times.

18. All cans of beer, lager and cider must be indelibly marked to show the
trading name of the shop to add¡ess the problem of street drinking and
associated crime and anti-social behaviour.

19. The premises licence holder shall immediately report to Trading
Standards any instance of a caller to the shop attempting to sell alcohol.

20' A stock control system will be introduced, so that the licensee can
quickly idgntify where and when alcoholic goods have been purchased

21. An ultra-violet light shall be available at the premises for the purpose of
checking the UK Duty Stamp on spirit stock.

22. lf any spirits bought by the business have UK Duty Stamps that do not
fluoresce under ultraviolet light, or are othenryise suspicious, the premises
licence holder shall report the supplier to Trading Standards.

23. No deliveries or waste collections shall take place between 08:00 -
20:00 hous.

Page 140



24- Neither Mr Sefer Govtepe or Mr Suleyman Erdogan or their immediate
family shall be involved in any way in the operation and / or management of
the business or be permitted to work in the business in any capacity.

25. No spirits shàll be purchased in a resealed box, without thorough checks
being made to ensure it is legal to sell.

26. Appropriate signage will be displayed, in a prominent position, informing
customers they are being recorded on CGTV.

27. ccrv covering areas inside and outside of the premises should be
installed and maintained to police recommendations with properly maintained
log arrangements. All images will be stored for a minimum of 31 oays.

28. CCTV is to comply with Data Protection Act 1998 and is to be working and
recording correctly when the premises are open to the public.

29. A staff member from the premises that is conversant with the operation of
the CCTV system will be on the premises at all times that the premises aie
lPen to the public. This staff member will be able to show police recent data
footage with the minimum of delay when requested. This data or footage
reproduction should be almost instantaneous.

Annex 3 - conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

Not applicable

Page 141



I

IF"*

Annex 4 - Plans

gLOCATION PLAN

û
o
û
t-
&
o
Þ
v
5
úTql
G,
ê
o
üa
Jzü

T

-
I
c
6

=(À

äa
Lt{
a
6å
g
a
2I
d
s

û

I
e
t¡t

t¡¡

c

Í¡ì

0
IY

ôu
E
I¡
t-
o
ú,4
¡-
(¡
ú.

å
q.¡

@
o
\
F
-!l
VI
aoür
f
óú

sqlÉ ltt25û

ROAD

7)û 2ta

i
238234

HERTFORO ROAD

i ovEN i

'. 
_,_J

FAKERY
(,

{
ü
h

ü

5

MlAf
Piooucf:t

g
ù
¡
5I
(,
I

'Éû

o
ù{

õ

Ë
H

g
d
6
htú

Ërú
ä
Ë

I

H

I
il
fl

236

v

?

\è F

Ê,

G.æ

I

I

l

I

6
T
ã
c)
I
T

I

d

â
A
A
¿Ã,

A
il

iI
il

.U

(E

Þ
Â
CP

o
DIg4æ

K

ÐEEF*

æú
,z¡5ffi

Ð6@-æru
ñre
-FE
ñffi

t

_.1

2J0 ¡10 t12

"; l;' FIT€

BLOCK PtA¡¡
6CAG ltgm

GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE l¡ 10Ò

Page 142



Licensino Act 2003

PART B - PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : LN/20r500517

Part I - Premises Details

Postal address of rses:
Premises name: Zilan Food Gentre

Not provided

236 Hertford Rôad ENFIELD EN3 sBL

Telephone number:

Address :

Where the licence is time-limited, the
dates :

(2t

Not time limited

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those
activities :

(r) Open to the Fublic -
Sunday:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday:

Thursday:
Friday :

Saturday :

prcmises
08:00 - 0l:00
08:00 - 0l:00
08:00 - 0l:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00
08:00 - 01:00

Supply of Alcohol - Off supplies
Sunday:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday:

Thursday:
Friday :

Saturday:

08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 00:00

Page 143



Pa¡t 2

Name and ( address of holder of ises licence:
Name :

Address :

Registered number of holder (where
applicable):

Name and (registered) address of second holder of premises licence (where
applicable):

Name :

Address :

Name of designated premises
supervisor (where the licence
authorises the supply of alcohol) :

State whether access to the premises
by children is restricted/prohibited :

Not applicable

Mr Deniz Altun

Premises Licence LN/201500517 was first granted on 18 September 2015.

Date : 18th September 2015

London Borough of Enfield
Lice¡sing Unit, Civic Gentre, Silver Street, Enfield ENf 3XH
Telephone : 020 8379 3578

Restricted

ComciI

l4 Downland House, Goat Lane,4 Holbrook Close,

iz Altun

London ENl 4UU

Page 144



REF: WK/ LICN 1

!.ICENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

Premises Name
Premises Address

Time of Visit:

During an inspection of your premises on ...Td.. .hf"PßffÞ{,f- ,.20.!2:,......, the foilowing was checked

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of PLH & DPS on licence correct?
Conditions of licence checked?

Yes
Yes

INo
(lf incorrect, insert new details below)

No

)36 llzùford Rood, €-rþetd, €i\) 3 5ßL
Start: Finish5

No. of condition
not in compliance

U*'r þ c ne0r( -[of A:rnlû Í:er l a. trnunc l¡-d cÕcdE nghntx Ct-

.ry\c5...71 h

Any other matter(s) that need addressing

You are reguired to have the above matters attended to wíthin ........,.days of this notice. Failure to rectify the above
breaches may constitute a criminal offence and result in legal proceedings being brought against you.

LICENSING ENFORCE

Print Name Print Name & P n

Licensing Enforcement, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XH, Tel: 020 8379 1767
Police Licensing Officer, Civic Centre, Silver Sfreet, Enfield EN1 3XH Tel: 0208 379 6112

For queries relating to new applications, variations, vary DPS, Temporary Event Notices; address changes etc, please contact

the Llcenslng Team on 0208 379 3578 or licerrsirul@errfieltJ-gov.uk.

Download the appropriate application forms at hltp.l/¡ryryW__enf_Le!d_Spv.U¡linf _oQg.ga[llice¡S-i,ng_Ald__¡-e_gis_l¡3!q¡.

Material such as leave quietly signs, training guidance and refusals book is avaìlable to download and print at
þl!øl-ryW-enlje¡c!=gpV=q(downlqa!qldq wnloadl2S!9lS,oflp]i4_1çe_ dgcuments

-t_

E
l ¡odtlìg ttgEth.r fú a 6¡fer Lqrdon

RECIPIENT OF I{OTICE
sig nature of Sisnature: f\Ur_.^

Page 145



REF: WK/

J ¡ 5o 4Jo q+- LICENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

CPXi L
LtcN_1

During an inspection of your premises on ........¿,.....ì,.,.1"=.....",,.....20..1.f.:..., the following was checked;

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no, of PLH & DPS on licence correct?
Conditions of licence checked?

Yes
Yes
Yes

No
No
No

(lf incorrect, insert new details below)

Premises Name z.,t Ð
Premises Address p_3 ç .d Aet Ê=-ìrJ SdL
Time of Visit: Start: z

No. of condition
not in compliance

Evidence/Advice

d|- bi-+r^- Zl

rp. I
t: 4=",- rr.St cs----r r:zr-r¡-.r.rb be-. .J.;çÐ I J,

tJ; -

LICE ING ENFORCEMENT REC
Signature of Offi cer 6'ùr

\ /r:t
Signature: (

Print Name: -
CJür¿\oTJ€ Pftt rtÁ[.

Print Name & Positio5 
e,å,v- A-{À-^1

2.-l L/ /\A4-Ð
Licen Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, ENl 020 8379 1767

olice Licensing Officer, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XH Tel: 0208 379 6112P

For queries relating to new applications, variations, vary DPS, Temporary Event Notices, address changes etc, please contact

the Licensing Team on 0208 379 3578 or liSeryt1S@.9.tfiel4SqV.qk.

Download the appropriate application forms at hllUllwrvly-.elfidd, uk/info/200007/licen sinq and reoistration

Materialsuch as leave quietly signs, training guidance and refusals book is available to download and print at
hltp;//ww¡ru.9n[ielQ,go,v_. uf,/downlo-adsi{owgloqdlJ}1Ç1CCruALi-a¡çe*dq_c_qqrqnts-

¡^^--5.-- {: CJ^-¿LC--/,--_ C-<*--1\/ -

iÍl¡¡i:,¡
,U€IROPOLIlAN

Þot_tic E

û--r

ì/ì¡orkb¡g tog€th€r for€ s6ftr London

Page 146



ru tr ¿oPY .

C Pr, \.3
L.B. ENF'IELD TRADING STANDARDS INFORMATION TO THE OCCUPIER

Notice of the powers to search premises and the rights of occupiers Police and Ciiminal
Evidence Act 1984 Code of practice

Premises Searched Record

Address of Premises Zilan Food Centre, 236 Hertfrod Road, Enfield EN3 sBL
Type of Premises

POWER UNDER \ryHICH SEARCH MADE (TICK WHICHAPPLIES)
WARRÄNT (Officers powers are summarised overleaf)

Act_ Date gfa¡ted _ By,r_

powers under: Trade Description Act l96g / consumer protection Act t9g7-

WRITTEN CONSENT (TICK THOSE WHrCH Appl.y AND OBTATN A STGNATURE)
with the written consent of a person cntitfcd to grant entry (only applicable if not under wanant or statutory páwers¡

Stafus relative

F'OUNI)
PROCEEDINGS.

STATUTORY POWER (These powers are summarised overleaÐ

.z

I HEREtsY CONSENT TO OFFICERS OF THE L.B. ENFIELD TRADING STANDARDS
SEARCHING THE ABOVE NAMED PREMISES. I UNDERSTAND THAT ANYTHING
MAY BE USED IN COURT

wl

under

f¡¡t*

OFFICER IN CHARGE OF SEARCH

Name: Charlotte palmer

Position: Seníor Licensing Enforcement Officer

Date 02/10/15

Time start lð'35 Finish_lf -3Õ

- Home OfficeJitesh

Forced: YES / NO - If state reasons:En

- caused on search andor

Page 147



T,.8. ENFIELD TRADING STANDAR.DS INFORMATION TO THE OCCUPIER
Notice of the powers to search premises and the rights of occupiers Police and Criminal

Evidence Act 1984 Code of practice
SUMMARY OF POWERS OF SEARCH

THE OCCUPIER SHOULD KEEP THIS COMPLETED FORM IN A SAFE PLACE IN CASE IT IS NEEDED FOR
FUTURE REF'ERENCE.

THE STATUTORY POWERS TO SEARCH PREMISES AND THE RIGHTS OF OCCUPIERS VARY
DEPENDING UPON THE STATUTE BEING ENFORCED. THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE
GENERAL POlryERS, BUT FULL DETAILS OF SPECIFTC POWERS 1VILL BE SUPPLIED ON REQUEST.r An officer may for the purpose of asceftaining whether an offence has been committed, enter premises (other than

those used solely as a dwelling) and inspect goods.
¡ If there is reasonable cause to suspect that an offence has been committed, an Officer may require the production of

books or documents relating to the frade or business ar d may take copies of, or an entry in, any such doìument.o If there is reasonable cause to believe an offence has been committed, an Officer may seize and detain any goods for
the purpose of ascertaining whether an oflence has been committed.

' 4n Officer may seize and detain any goods or documents that there is reason to believe may be required as evidence
in proceedings for an offence_

¡ In cefain circumstances an Ofìficer may require any person with authority to do so to break any container or vending
machine and if that person does not comply, the Ofllcer may do so.¡ An officer may seize and detain weighing or measuring equipment if s(he) has reasonable cause to believe it may be
liable to be forfeited.

' For the purpose of ascertaining whether there has been any contravention of a safety provision, an Officer may
examine any procedure (including testing arrangements) connected with the production ôf the goods.

SEIZE AND SIF'T
t lsewhere where it is not possible to

¡ which is "inextricably linked' (such

IT Is A SEPARATE OFFENCE To oBSTiìucT AN oFFIcER IN ExERcIsING THEIR srATUToRy
POWERS.

RIGHTS OF'THE OCCUPIER
t The occupier has the right to demand the production ofthe ofhcers credentials.

' All information relating tcj manufäcturing process or tradc secrets witl be treated as confidçntial.

' No item may be seized which is subject to legal privilege unless it is inextricably linked to material seized under
'seize and sift' þowers. No item wiìl be retained if a copy of a photograph will sufhce.¡ The person who has custody of control of thè goods immediately prior to seizure will be provided on request a list or
description of the property within a reasonable time.

t lfgoods or documents ar shall inform the person from whom they were seized. That person or a
representative will be all cess to the property to examine it, phoiograph of photocopy it, unless
the officer in charge has for believing that this would prejuáiàe the-investiguìion of ány orr"*".¡ Compensation may be payable in appropriate cases for damage caused in entering or searching premises. In cêrtain
circumstances compensation may also be paid for losses incuned by virtue of seizwe, loss, damage or deterioration
of goods. Any claim should be made in writing and sent to the address below:. L.B. Enfield Trading Standards Service,

¡ P.O.Box 57, Silver Street, Enfireld, ENI 3XH

' { rou-h1ve any complaint conceming the conduct of Officers on"this visiq then details of the Enfield Council public
Complaints Procedure are available. Please contact the Group Manager, Environmental Services at the address
above or telephone 020-8379 1j67.

rvice and in main public libraries. It is also
available for you to view online at www.opsi.gov.uk. This notice is a summary only of the proviiions of the Code which
should be consulted if you require further detaili.
TRANSLATIONSYou can obtain a free translation of this notice by sending a copy of it to the above address and stating
which language you would like it translating into. ----:--

Page 148



NOTICE OF SEIZURE

Name:

Address: Ê

L

No i;]Zl ii

Trading Standards
Givic Gentre
Silver Street
Enfield
ENI 3XH"

trading.standa rds@enfield.gov.u k
Telephone: 020 8379 8S0S.
Fax: 020 8379 8506

The following items 
lra.ve leen seized by the officer named below as they may be required as evidence byvirtue of powerc contained within the following legistation:

Tçcck.'krc¿ed:.Rns. ....ftt....tic..$......çnc*...Consuhær...Pnç.Kchþâ..o.cr...t3.d:7..

.->.hssçp-.....,îp.md.....und!?r....s*lchra....cÌ:p.p.p.ti..-b-qd...s,h,.bß.ctß...

.Cts-

,,.......,...1..,..,.t..,."fuJ.. ,...,......y.fæ.ùr*r.o..

.,.. "(#"9-..,....X,,...K.a'. h. I -þ-.e.

'...r.,'...!...¡....r...,...."..........,;¡,...."......,

...................

Authorised officer:......C^.."....J.ç.rg/ñ.p...,. Date: ,.."......*..:...1..9*...:..r s .

DirectD¡at:.-?Z-o...-..8.'l:...:....S.Ç,Ç.ç..,

Pos itio n i n B us i n es"' ...&-H.../..O.fl..S...........

HAVE
MAY

ATION

IF BYOU THELEIVE E OFF CE DR D OTN R LEEASONAB G UNRO Ds FOR sEtzt NGORALL OFSOME TH E ITE LISM YOUSTED AAPPEAL THEGAINST RESEIZU F YOU
Hwts TO APPEAL PLEASE WR ITE/TE HLEP THEONE ERMANAG OF TRADIN G STAN DARDS

SU NG ETH TCONTAC FORMIN G OVE.ABIVEN

Signature:

Received by:

Page 149



APPEALS PROCEDURE

1. lf you consider that this notice or any of it's reguirements are unfair or
unlawful, you may appeal against it. \Mthin 7 days of the date of issue,
telephone , write to or e-mail the Head of Business Regu lation giving details

wish to appgal against together with

2. The Head of Business Regulation will review the notice and your objections
to it within 7 days of your appeal. They may wish to discuss the matterwith
you or visit your premises in making a decisiôn.

3. The Head of Business Regutation will confirm in writing the decision of the
appeal. lf an¡¡ changes to the requirements of the notice are agreed, these
will be notified in writing at this stage.

4. lf you are dissatisfied with the outcome of the appeal, you may within 7 days
of notification of the outcome appeal to the Assistant Directoç Planning and
Environmental Protection, who will re-examine the matter and notify you in
writing of their decision.

Page 150



tgt+- t9t8

C?nß
ENFIEL

Council

'lease reply to: Charlotte Palmer
Licensing Enforcement
B Block North, Civic Centre,
Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA

Mr Deniz Altun
Zilan Food Centre
236 Hertford Road
Enfield
EN3 sBL

E-mail : Charlotte.palmer@enfield.gov.uk

My Ref
Your Ref

Date

LN/201 50051 7

20th October 2015

Dear Mr Altun

obacco (Manufacture, Presentation and Sale) (Safety) Regu lations 2002
Gonsumer Protection Act lg87
Licenisng Act 2003

zilan Food Gentre, 236 Herfford Road, Enfield, EN3 sBL - LN/201500s12

lwrite to you as the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor for the
above business.

On 2nd Ocotber 2015 your premises was searched for counterfeit and non-duty paid alcohol
and tobacco' Nine packets of hand rolling tobacco and forty packets of cigarettes were found
in a draw under butchers chopping table.

The tobacco and cigarette packets had foreign labelling. They were not subject to UK duty
and did not bearthe'UK DUTY PAID'labeling. Rlso the required warning-label such as:

was in a foreign language. The Tobacco
) Regulations 2002 which require English
to a criminal offence under the Consumer

The Department for Cu,lture, Media and Sport (DCMS) Guidance (ii.26) states that.there are
certain criminal activities that may arise in connection with licenseà premises, which the
Secretary of State considers should be treated particularly seriously. The list lncludes the sale
of smuggled tobaeco and alcohol (i.e. non duty paid prodúcts).

DCMS guidance (11.27) goes on to say that it iS envisaged that responsibile authorities will
use the review'procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where rev¡ews arise

lan Davis
Director- Regeneration & Environment
Enfield Council
Civic CentÉe, Silver Street
Enfield ENr 3XY

:
EquAur
FRAMEWORK
FOR LOCAL
GOVERNMENT
EXCELTENT Website: www.enfield,gov.uk

Ô For help with this document, please contact the above officer who will be able to ass¡st in line with our accessible information policy

Page 151



and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being
undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation
of the licence - even in the first instance - should be seriously considered.

The Licensing Authority has considered whether to review the premises licence and whether
a prosecution investigation should take place.

Having considered all of the options available it has been decided that on this occasion you
shall be issued a formal warning in relation to these alleged offences in the form of this lêtter.

Please consider this letter to be a warning as to your future conduct. Should further
similar offences be committed at the premises, the Licensing Authority shalt take
immediate action in order to have the premises licence permanently 

-revoked, 
as

recommended by the secretary of state guidance and or prosàcute you.

As the new owner of the business it is your responsibility to comply with the law. you must
cany_ out a'thorough check of the premises to ensure that there are no illicit goods inside the
building or any vehicle associated with it. Enclosed is a form which you must sign and return
confirming that this check has been carried out. This form must be returned tó me at the
above address within 14 days of the date of this letter.

You must buy tobacco, alcohol and any other branded product from a reputable seller. These
products must be evideneed by receipts whieh must be available for inspeetion upon request.

A full licence inspection was also carried out on 2nd Ocotber 2015 and the following conditions
were being breached: condition 4, s, 6,7 , B, 10, 1s, 17, 19, 20, zj, 26, 2T . The most recent
Part B of the premises licnece was not on display.

Failing to comply with any condition attached to a Premises Licence is a criminal
offence, which on convictioh is punishable by a fine of up to â20,000, up to six months
imprisonment or both.

A licence re-inspection shall be arranged soon. Please ensure that you can demonstrate
compliance with all of the condtions attached to the premises licence.

lf you have any queries about the contents of this letter please contact me via email:
charlotte. palmer@enfield. qov. uk

Yours sincerely

Charlotte Palmer
Licensing Enforcement Officer

cc: Mr Deniz Altun, 14 Downland House, Goat Lane, 4 Holbrook close, London, EN1 4uu

Page 152



Premises:

Liðence number:

Premises Licence Holder:

Designated Premises Supervisor:

Owner:

Voluntarv Declaration

Zilan Food Centre, 236 Hertford Road, EN3 SBL

LN/201500517

Mr Deniz Altun

Mr Deniz Altun

Mr Deniz Altun

l, Mr Deniz Altun of 14 Downland House, Goat Lane, 4 Holbrook Close, London, EN1 4UU

confirm that on ...(inseft date) I thoroughly

checked the above named premises and all vehicles associated with it for illicit goods.

I accept that as the PLH / DPS / owñer of Zilan'Food Centre, 236 Hertford Road, Enfield,

EN3 sBL all items within the premises and within all vehicles associated with the premises

belong to me and I will be held responsible if any non-duty paid or counterfeit products are

found in the premises or within any vehicles associated it in future.

Date

Sign

Page 153



REF: Wl<idrSO {:3cç1
LtcENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

('FÀ 1t
LICN 1

mPre aN em

-c,39 1<"rrþarcJ fuctct €¡fteþt, €.f-ts 6gL_
Premises Address

Time of Visit: Start: Finish:

During an inspection of your premises on .,åelt.tl...G}.ôg-- , 20..19..:..,,, the following was checked:

NoI
No fl (tf incorrect, insert new detaits below)
Non

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of pLH & DpS on licence correct?
Conditions of licence checked?

Yes fl
Yes
Yes

No. of condition
not in

-l lnp'c^r 1e

Any other matter(s) that need addressing: .

You are required to have the above matters attended to within ...1.þ..orv= of this notice. Failure to rectifybreaches may const¡tute a criminal offence and resutt in regat proÉ""J¡ng";;õ üäught against you.
the above

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT RECIPIENT OF NOTICE
Signature of Officer on

cù,/,
" tJ(

Print Name: Chrlo¿le , Print me & Position:

Licensing Enforcement, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XH, Tel: 020 g3lg 1767
Police Licensing officer, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XH Tel: 020g g7g 6112

For queries relating to new applications, variations, vary DPS, Temporary Event Notices, address changes etc, please contact
the Licensing Team on 0208 379 3S7B or [çe¡Sing@C¡fi,ql{,ggv,.qK.

Download the appropriate application forms at http://www.gnfield.gov.uk tinfolzoa}ol/licensing_and_r.egistr-ation,
Malerial such as. leave quietly signs, training guidance and refusals book is available to download and print at

http//wwr4v,q¡figtd,ggr¿.gJVdownlqa_-ds/_d_oyv-nLS"an!?31-g-lçSmplianqQ_dSçUm€¡Ls-

MEIfìOPOL'TAN
P€DL !C E

tv\ôrkhg togrth-r ftr a aafs Lafldon

Page 154



Gharlotte Palmer ( Pxlt":
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

ADA Group <info@adagroup.org. uk>
29 October 2015 09:58
Charlotte Palmer
Zilan Food Centre, EN3 sBL
Document (176).pdf

Gategories Red Category

RE: Zilan Food Centre, 236 Hertford Road, Enfield EN3 5Bt

Dear Ms Palmer,

Please find attached sígned voluntary decleration form by Mr Deníz Altun.

I write in relation to your letter sent to the above propefi dated 20th october 2015

We have been approached by Mr. Altun who was concerned with the outcome of your visit to the premises in his
absence.

We have discussed the points ín your letter and have put into action all the comments mentíoned and requi'ed to
ensure that all conditions are fully complied with at all times.

i ean eonfirm that full training was given to the staff of Ziian Food centre.

There is now a Licensing Training Pack that covers areas like Challenge 25, lncident Log Book, Refusal Register and
Training Record Book and required posters that should be displayed in the premises.

lf you requíre further information please do not hesítate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Bektas UZUN

LICENSING
ACT 2003.c0M

¡ð6ROtuF

r .4t 2OT 193 83 93 r infooadagroup.org.uk
t t4 207 80ó 0g 12 I www.adagroup.org.uk

1ó7 Stoke Neurirgton Road, Londql, Nló BBp

1

Page 155



Premises:

Licence number:

Premises Licence Holder:

Designated Premises Supervisor:

Ownen

Voluntarv Decl¡ration

Zilan Food Centre, 236 Hertford Road, EN3 SBL

LN/201500517

Mr Deniz Altun

Mr Deniz AItun

Mr Deniz Altun

l, Mr Deniz Altun of 14 Downland Houge, Goat Lane,4 Holbrook Glose, London, EN1 4UU

confirm that on ..1 6...{.Q ,...L...2.\ 5 .(inæft date) I thoroughly

cñecked the above named premisee and all vehicÞs associated with ¡t br ¡tf¡cit goods.

I accept that as the PLH / DPS / oører of Zilan Food Centre, 23ô Hedford Rûad, Enfield,

EN3 sAL a[ items within the premises and within allvehicþe associated with the premiees

belong to me and I will be tleùd responsble if any noßduty paid ø cor¡rËrGit plodusG are

found in the premises orwithin arry retricb a¡eoclated lt krft.ûæ.

Sign.

Date L6.,.to ,.Jo_t5 .

Page 156



REF: wK/ årSc¡t3o+r
LICENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

(?xtr
LICN 1

Premises Name

æÈ +-ter-çoç¡ Recd €rah-eid t-
Start:

Premises Address

Time of Visit:

During an inspection of your premises on .....6hn .t*S.h{læfr .,....20..L5......, the foilowing was checked

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of PLH & DpS on licence correct?
Conditions of licence checked?

(lf incorrect, insert new details below)

Yes
Yes

No

not in com Iiance
No. of condition Evidence/Advice

|^'

e L5

Any other matter(s) that need addressing: .

.RGre. s."d. % o$-
You are required to have the above matters
breaches may constitute a criminal offence

ING ENFORCEMENTL REGIPI NT OF
Signature

.€r\Þie[ol,rintP Name Oncrto IK Pcrlcn<f Print Fosition

L
Licensing Enforcement, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XH, Tel: 020 gZTg 1767
Police Licensing Officer, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3xt-i Tet: 020g 3Zg 6112

For queries relating to new applications, variations, vary DPS, Temporary Event Notices; address changes etc, please contact
the Licensing Team on 02OB 379 3578 or tiçetSlnS@en-fjeld.SSUU!.

Download the appropriate application forms at oov 7/licensins and
Material such as leave quietly signs, training guidance and refusals book is available to download and print at

h-ttp,/1WW.W.e¡figt{.goy._u!{dSW¡l-o-Ads/dq_Wtls"adl2QlQ1sq¡np__liance documents

MFTROIìOt.ITAN
POr_¡cE

vr¡of khc togelh€r for o 6aftr lsldon

Page 157



ú t-fo ,r 7e Çd ( P;\ i "';

INSPECTION REPORT

Name: ---Zz-aà-- &-ù (¿a¡ae

- - -----Ê¿tÍ¿ez,O

ûading Standard¡ & Licensing
B Block North.
Civ¡c CGntrc
Silver Süeêt
Enlield
ENl 3XA

trad¡ng.standa rdsOenf ield.gov.uk
Contâct Centre: 020 8379 f000

20.../.S.. , the followlng areas were

Business Email:- --
Business Telephone:---'----

During an inspection of your premises on.....,,...¿.dt.
checked/examined:

ñnrr^ding n na¡tmark¡ng flaonruter safety

flrxplosives storage E *"igt o & Measures fllri.,ng ! otner (specify)

(a) The following matt€ß were found to be ¡ncorecUnon-compliant:
(b) You arc edvised tño following mattem are best practice to ensure compliance:

fuz&- &ztw¿à .6v ¿+t.ac - n2ùar^- tlYl

.77L

t'ilI?

(a) You are required to have the above matters attended to within days of this notice. Failure to
r€ctify the above breaches may constitute a criminal offence and result in legal proceedings being brought
against you.

Âuthorising Officar: -4,,/ronÞ â 'ønlå¡tt¡ODirect dial: OJAS t?? E.SÇ-2 .

A'z¿rtor?Position:

signature: -Å /h.m,a¡(- I/T

Received by Signature:

Print Name: )¿a¡t Z. Alfi t^S

ENF'ELD
Council

*v*cnlhld.govuk
Q

IN1¡ESTOR INPEOPIß

Page 158



2ISO S jT+z
L.B. ENFIELD TRADN\TG STANDARDS INFORMATION TO THE OCCUPIER

Notice of the powers to search prernises and the rights of occupiers Police and Çriminal
Evidence Act 1984 Code of Practice

1^rìY .1--\-. (r/\ ¿'-J

Serrched Record

Tlpe of PËmises_Retail Occupier M

Address

POlryER UNDER MIICH SEARCH MADE (TrCK WHTCH APPLIES)
WARRAIT (Officers powerc a¡e su¡rmarised overleaf)

ÌVRITTEN CONSENT (TTCKTHOSE WHrCH Apply AND OBTATN A STGNATURE)
With the u¡itten conssnt of a person entitled to grant entry (only applicable if not un&r warant or st¿ttutory powe¡s)

T IIEREBY CONSENT TO OFFTCERS OF TIIE L.B. ENFIELD TRADING STAI.IDARDS
SEARCHING TITE ABOVE NAMED PREMISES. I T]NDERSTÄND THAT ANYTHING FOTJNI)
MAY BE USEII IN COTJRT PROCEEDINGS.

I HEREBY CONSENT TO TT{E OFFICER MAKING USE OF EQUIPMENT ON THESE PREMISES, NAMELY
A TILL SCANNER OR OTHER SIMILAR EQUIPMENT FOR THE PLIRPOSE OF CHECKING PRICES ON
THESE PREMISES. I TJI\'DERSTA¡ID THAT A¡TY INFORMATION PRODUCED MAY BE USEI)

Sf¡hro ælq+i"o +^

STATUTORY POWER (These powen¡ ¿re summaris€d overlea0
Trt ã¿.'íe'rt a.1. Ê¿HiStåtutory

Ø powen¡

Act_ Date granted

Nanre

.M 2ozS

under

IN COURT PROCEEEDINGS.

OFFICERIN CIIARGE OF SEARCH Name_Filippina

Ma¡ziano

Position_Senior Fair Trading OfEcer rine Stårtz2i!Ël r -tnish--7.¿:!LÍ
/tSDate ¡+ãô0ffá

OF'FICERS PRESANT AT SEARCH
(Show Name & Organisation)

Marziano

Forced: YES If reafions:

- caused or search and. circumstrances:

to Secure Premises:

Extent

Search Reqister No:

Page 159



L.B. ENFIELD TRADING STANDARDS INFORTuA*TION TO THE OCCUPIER
Notice ofthe powers to search premises and the rights of occupiers Police and Crimirral

Evidence Act 1984 Code of Practice
SUMMARY OT'PO\ilERS OF SEARCH

THE OCCUPIER SIIOLLD KEEP Trrrs COMPLpTED FORM IN A SAX'E PLACE IN CASE IT IS NEEDED r.OR
T'UTUR.E REFERENCE.

TEE STATUTORY PO}VERS TO SEARCH PREMISES AIYD THE RIGHTS OF OCCIJPIDRS VARY
DEPENDING TJPON TEE STATTITE BEING ENFORCED. THE FOLLOWING IS A STJMMARY OF THE
GENERAL PO\ryARS, BUT FULL DETATLS OF SPECIFIC POWERS Wtr L BE SuppL¡ED ON REQUEST.

¡ An officer nay for the purpose gf ascertaining whether an offenoe has been committed, enter premises (other than
those used solely as a dwelling) and inspect goods.

¡ If the¡e is reasonable oause ûo suspect that an offence has been committed, an Officer may requüe the production of
bools or documents relating to the hade or business and may take côpies of, or an entry in, any such document.

' If there is reasonable cause to bclieve an offence has be€lr corrmitted, an Officer may seize and detain any goods for
the purpose of ascertaining whether an ofïence has been committed.

o An Officer may seize and detain any goods or documents that there is reason to believe may be required as eyidence
inproceedings for an offence.

¡ In certain ci¡cumstances an Officer may require any person with authority to do so to break any contaiter or vending
machine and if that person does not compl¡ the Officer may do so.

¡ An Ofñcer may seiz.e and detain weighing or measuring equipment if sfte) has reasonable cause to believe it may be
liable to be forfeited.

o For the purpose of ascertaining whether there has been any contravention of a safety provision, an Officer may
examine anyprocedrre (including.testiîg arrangements) connected with the production of the goods.

SEIZE AÀIII SIFT
. Ar Officer may remove matetial from premises so that they can examine it elsewhere where it is not possible to

examinre it properþ on the premises due to oonstraints of time or technology,

' . 4q Offider¡nay also retain material which would not otherwise be seizable, but whi. ch is "inextricably linked" (such
informationlrcld on a computer) to other m¿terial they do have grounds to seize..

IT IS A SEPARATE OI'I'ENCE TO OBSTRUCT AIY OÍ'I'ICER IN EXERCISING THEIR STATUTORY
POIVERS.

B¡GHTS OFTHE OCCTTPTER
o The occupier has the riglrt to demand the production ofthe ofEcers credentials.
o AII information relating to manufacturing proccss or trade secrets will be treated as confidential.
o Nó item may be seized which is zubject to legal privilege unless it is inextricably linked to material seized under

'seiZe and sift' powers. No item will be retained if a copy of a photograph will suffice.
o Tho percon who has custody of control of the goods immediately prior to seizure will be provided on requ€st a list or

description of the property within a reasonable time.
¡ If goods or documents a¡e seized the Officer shall inform the person from whom they were ssized. That porson or a

rqrresentative will be allowed supervised access to the property to examine it, photograph of photocopy it, unless
the Officer in charge has reasonable grounds for believing that this would prejudice the investigation of any offenge.

o Compensation may be payable in appropriate cases for damage caused in entering or searchilg premises. In certain
circumstances compensation may also be paid for losses incurred by virtue of seizure, loss, damage or deterioration
of goods. Any claim should be made in writing and sent to the address below:

o L.B. Enfield Trading Standards Service,
o P.O.Box 57, Silver Sreet, Enfield, ENI 3)G{
¡ If you have any compl'aint conceming the conduct of Officers on this visit then details of the Enfield Council Public

Complaints Procedwe a¡e available. Please contact the Group Manager, Environmental Services at the address
above or telephorc 020-83i9 1167 .

POLICE AND CRIMINAL EVIDENCE ACT 1984 CODES OF PRACTICE
A copy of the 'Code of Practice for the searching of Premises'
Code B, is available for you to consult at the offices of the Trading Standards Service and in main public libraries. It is also
available for you to view online at www.opsi.gov.uk. This notice is a surnmary only of the provisions of the Code wbich
should be consulted if you require further details.
TRANSLATIONSYou can obtain a free translation of this notice by sending a copy of it to the above address aud stating
which language you would like it ranslating into.

Page 160



cr^ 2r

#
ConXcanies House

Current Appointments Report for:
ENFIELD FOOD STORE ËIMITED

09960522

Created 
= 

22101 12016 1 0 :1 5:28

Companies House is a registry of corporate information. We carry oul basic checks to make sure that documents'have
been fully compleled and signed, but we do not have the statutory power or capabil¡ty to verify the accuracy of the
information that corporate entities send to us. We accept all ¡nformation that such entities deliver to us in good faith and
place it on the public record. The fact that the ¡nformation has been placed on the publ¡c record should not be taken to
indicate that Companies House has verified or validated it ¡n any way.

Page 161



Gompany Register lnformation

Company Number:

Company Name:

Registered Office:

09960522 Date of lncorpo¡ation:20rc1'201|6
ENFIELD FOOD STORE LIMITED

UNIT 5

25-27 THEBURROUGHS

LONDON

UNITED KINGDOM

NW4 4AR

Private l-imited Company

United Kingdom

Active

None Supplied

( 0 outstanding / 0 part satisfieci / 0 satisfied)

Company Type:

Country of Origin:

Status:

Nature Of Business (SlC)

Number of Charges:

Previous Names
No prwious name information has been recorded over the last 20 years.

Key Filing Dates

Account¡ng Reference Date:

Last Accounts Made Up To:

Next Accounté Due:

Last Return Made Up To:

Next Return Due:

Last Bulk Shareholders List:

31/01

(NO ACCOUNTS FTLED)

201a!2A17

17/0212017

Not available

Page 162



Gurrent Appointments

Number of current appo¡nlments: I

DIRECTOR:

Appointed:

Natfonal¡ty:

No. of Appointments

Address:

Counlry/State of Residence:

This Reporl excludes resígnatlons

GOVTEPE, EBRU

2010112016

BRITISH

1

50 PARSONAGE LANE

ENFIELD

ENGLAND

EN2 OAH

ENGLAND

Date of Birth:'. 10411976

3

Page 163



Recent F¡ling History

Documents filed since 2OlO1t2O16

OATE

20to1t20'16

20/01/2016

20/01/2016

FOHM

NEWINC

LATEST SOC

MODEL

ARTICLES

DESCRIPTION

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATIONGENERAI- COMPANY DETAILS &
STATEMENTS OF;OFFICERS, CAPITAL & SHAREHOLDINGS, GUARANTEE,
COMPLIANCEMEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATIONARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

20/0 1 /1 6 STAT EM ENT OF CAP |TAL ;GB P l
MODEL ARTICLES ADOPTED: PRIVATE LIMITED BY sHAREs (AMENDED
PROVTSTONS)

This Report excludes AB(2) Share Allotment documents

Page 164



c ?rA;_

#
Gompanies House

Current Aopointments Reoort for:
NEW HERTFOHO TOOD STOhE LIMITED

09636302

Created 
= 

2810112016 14:40:16

Companies House is a reg¡stry of corporate information. We carry out basic checks to make sure that documents have
been fully completed and signed, but we do not have the statutory power or capability to verify the accuracy of the
information that corporate èntities send lo us. We accept all information that such entities deliver to us in good faith and
place it on the public record. The lact that the lnforination has been placed on the public record should not be taken to
indicate that Companies House has verified or validated it in any way.

Page 165



Company Register Information

Company Number:

Company Name:

Registeied Office:

09636302 Date of lncorpo¡ation:.1210612015

NEW HERTFORD FOOD STORE LIMITED

236 HERTFORD ROAD

ENFIELD

UNITED KINGDOM

EN3 sBL

Pfivate Limited Company

United Kingdom

Active

None Supplied

( 0 outstanding / 0 part satisfied / 0 satisfied)

Company Type:

Country of Origin:

Status:

Nature Of Business (SlC):

Number of Charges:

Previous Names
No previous name ¡nformation has been recorded over the last 20 years.

Key Filing Dates

Account¡ng Refe¡ence Date:

Last Accounts Made Up To:

Next Accounts Due:

Last Return Made Up To:

Next Return Dúe:

Last Bulk Shaieholders List:

30/06

(NO ACCOUNTS FTLED)

't210312017

10/07t2016

Not available

Page 166



Current Appointments

Numbe¡ of current appo¡ntments: 1

DIRECTOR:

Appointed:

National¡ty:

No. of Af pointments:

Address:

Countryistate of Residence:

This Report excludes resignations

GOVTEPE, SEFER MR

1911012015

BRITISH

1

236 HERTFORD ROAD

ENFIELD

UNITED KINGDOM

EN3 sBL

ENGLAND

Date of B¡rth: *110fi973

-i

Page 167



Recent Filing History

Documents f iled since. 1 2/06/201 5

DATE

19t10t2015

19110t2015

'12106t2015

12/A6/2015

12/06/2015

FORi'

APOl

TMOl

NEWINC

LATEST SOC

MODEL

ARTICLES

DESCRIPTION

DIRECTOR APPOINTED MR SEFER GOWEPE

APPOINTMENT TERMINATED, DIRECTOR DENIZ ALTUN

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATIONGENERAL COMPANY DETAÍLS &
STATEMENTS OF;OFFICERS, CAPITAL & SHAREHOLDINGS, GUARANTEE,

COMPLIANCEMEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATIONARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

12/06/15 STATEMENT OF CAPITAL;àBP 10000

MODEL ARTICLES ADOPTED: PRIVATE LIMITED BY SHARES (AMENDED
PROVTSTONS)

Thls Report eicludes 88(2) Share Állotment docúments

4

Page 168



QN4 IL

WITNESS STATEMENT OF VICTOR KTORAKIS

l, Victor Ktorakis of the Licensing Enforcement Team, Business Regulation, London

Borough of Enfield, B Block North, civic centre, silver street, Enfield, EN1 3HX,

believe that the facts of this witness statement are true and understand that it may be

placed before the Court.

The following statement is a true and accurate account of that witnessed by officers

Ellie Green, charlotte Palmer and Victor Ktorakis on 21 December 201s.

I WILL SAY AS FOLLOWS

1. On 21 December 2015, Licensing Eñforcement OfficerS Charlotté Palmer,

Ellie Green and I were visiting premises where intelligence had been received

that the premises were selling illegal tobacco/alcohol. The Officers were

working with a handler (Mr Harris) and dogs from Operation Wagtail.

2. At approximately 10.15 the officers entered Zilan Food Centre (previously

known as Hertford Food centre) 236 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 5BL.

Charlotte Palmer introduced herself to the young Turkish looking male behind

the counter and advised him that they were there to check that there were no

counterfeit or non-duty paid products on the premises. She asked if Mr Altun,

the Premises Licence Holder was there and he said no. She asked if he was

happy for the offices to have a look around and he said yes. Whilst Charlotte

Palmer completed the Part B search notice the other officers and I looked

around. The male behind the counter gave his name as Eren Govtepe.

Charlotte Palmer recognised this surname as being the same and that of a

þrevious premise licence holder of the business Mr Sefer Govtepe who had

had his licence revoked for non-duty paid issues. She asked him if his dad or

uncle had ever owned the premises and he said that his father had owned it.

whilst doing this Mr Altun came from the back of the premises, his hands

covered in dough and approached charlotte Palmer. she asked the man

behind the counter why he had said that Mr Altun was not there when he was.

He did not reply but Mr Altun said that he was making bread and was

F J05 03

Page 169



concerned about the dog searching where he was working. Charlotte Palmer

went with him to the rear of the premises.

3. During the search a male member of staff, who is now known to be Mr Atas

Ergun, walked towards the back of the shop. The dog handler advised the

officers that he saw Mr Ergun pick up a coat from the rear room, and leave

through the rear exit. Victor followed him, but was some way behind. Mr

Ergun then returned to the premises through the front door of the shop, empty

handed.

4. A thorough search was carried out of the premises, including the rear room

which consisted of a bakery, a very small office and a few shelves of stock.

The office needed to be unlocked, which was done by Mr Eren Govtepe.

Victor and Ellie checked the spirits on the shelves within the shop and all

appeared to be UK duty stamped. They also searched behind and under the

counter, but no items of concern were found. Charlotte Palmer and I

requested van keys from Mr Altun and checked that but it was empty.

5. Ellie Green and I then requested to see the CCTV footage of the actions of Mr

Ergun leaving the shop with the item of clothing. Mr Altun did not know how

to do the playback of the ccrv and asked Mr Eren Govtepe to assist. He

tried, but couldn't show all the screens, or get the right date, so between Ellie

Green and myself we made suggestions on how to operate it accordingly, and

I was allowed to take control of the computer mouse and found the

appropriate footage. We viewed Mr Ergun enter the rear roorn, have a

discussion with Mr Altun, and then leave through the rear exit, turn left

outside, then go down the alley next to 232 Hertford Rd/lnternet Café. Then

we saw him re-entering Zilan Several minutes later

6. During the search there were several men repeatedly coming in and out of

the premises and going into an internet services shop. Charlotte Palmer was

aware that on pervious similar operations with HMRC, HMRC had also

checked the internet services shop as there used to be a connection with that

shop and the previous owners of Zilan. All of the coming and going between

the two shops seemed very strange. Charlotte Palmer called Esther Hughes

foradvice at 10:50 and itwas agreed thattheywould amend another Part B

notice and check this premises too.

F J05 03

Page 170



7. There were two plastic carrier bags full of tobacco in the small office towards

the rear of the premises which was a breach of the following licence

condition. 15. All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display

shall be stored in a container clearly marked 'tobacco stock'. This container

shall be kept within the store room or behind the sales counter.

8. There was another box behind the counter for tobacco stock and all of this

should have been together, the contents of the bags could have fit in the box.

Mr Eren Govtepe also confirmed to Ellie Green that he had not received any

training - breach of licence condition 4. All staff shall receive induction and

refresher training (at least every three months) relating to the sale of alcohol

and the times and conditions of the premises licence.

9. Ellie Green noted these on an inspection report which both she and Deniz

Altun signed. A copy was left with him. EVG/Doc/Or. Mr Artun was also

given a copy of the Part B notice which Eren Govtepe had signed

CPXPapers/O1. Officers left at 10:55.

10. All the officers entered Logitech lT Services,232 Heftford Road, Enfield, EN3

5BL at 10:56, which has previously been referred to as the lnternet Cafe.

lnside the shop were three males working there. All males later confirmed

they were not connected by family or business to Mr Altun or Mr Govtepe. We

were advised that Mr Govtepe is their landlord, and he owns a number of

business properties in this parade and the residentialflats above.

1 1. Charlotte Palmer introduced herself to the business owner and advised what

they were doing and why they wanted to look around his shop. He agreed to

let them do so but nothing was found in the main part of the shop.

12. Behind the counter, there was a door in the back right corner, tucked behind

some shelves. The door was locked. All staff at this premises stated that they

did not have a key to this door. At 11:05 The business owner toldlCharlotte

Palmer thpt Zilan used the back of the shop as a storage area. He said that

he was not sure what was in there but that staff at Zilan had a key for the

back room. He went on to say that his landlord was Sefer Govtepe and he

showed us a lease to that effect. He gave Charlotte Palmer amobile number

F Jos 03

Page 171



for Mr Govetepe. Ellie Green returned to 236 Hertford Road to ask for the

keys, no one had them, but everyone said the new owner, Mr Sever Govtepe

had them, but was in Turkey and would not be back untilWednesday.

13. The shop had CCTV so Charlotte Palmer asked the business owner to show

them the footage from 10:15 onwards when I had seen Mr Ergun from Zilan

bring something into the shop. He showed us the footage and Mr Ergun

could be seen handing a red piece of clothing to a male in the shop which

was put behind the counter. Charlotte Palmer found two sets of keys in the

shop but none of these opened the door. I continued to watch the CCTV and

later told Charlotte Palmer that he had also seen Mr Ergun go towards the

door at the back of the shop. Staff in the shop said that he was just getting a

mobile phone, which he had left to charge at the rear of the shop. I said he

was there too long just to be doing that and suspected he had gone into the

room at the back despite saying they didn't have the key. Charlotte Palmer

said Mr Altun was the licence holder but he said that he had sold the

premises back to Mr Govtepe as he couldn't run it anymore (he had

previously told Charlotte Palmer that he was looking to sell it as he couldn't

cope with it and it was harder than he thought) he was just working there now

not in charge. Eren Govtepe came into the internet shop.

14. Charlotte Palmer phoned Esther Hughes at 11'2Q to make sure that they had

the power to force entry as no one would provide a key. She spoke to Heena

at 11:25. Charlotte Palmer advised Heena that she had been told that the

rear area was being used as storage by Zilan and she told Charlotte Paimer

that in that case it fell into the definition of a container and that they could

force entry. Charlotte Palmer phoned Barnet Lock and Safe at 11.32 and

requested a lock smith. She was told that he would be there within an hour

and that they needed a confirmation email. Charlotte Palmer phoned Esther

Hughes at 11:39 and requested that this be sent.

15.4t approximately 11:45 whilst Ellie Green and lwaited at the premises

Charlotte Palmer, Mr Harris and the dog walked up the road to check another

nearby premises. They returned at approximately 12:00 and the lock smith

arrived at 12:05. There were three doors into the storage area, one via the

shop, one leading from a driveway to the side and one leading from an

alleyway at the back of the parade of shops. The unit looked to be

F J05 03

Page 172



approximately 15m long and 5m wide. The locksmith decided to try and open

the side door and as he started Eren Govetepe came outside and stood over

him as he worked. He was less than 2 foot behind the locksmith and the

locksmith turned to charlotte Palmer and asked who he was. charlotte

Palmer asked Mr Govtepe to stand back and advised him that when the door

was open he would not be going in before the officers. He did not move.

This behaviour was intimidating for the locksmith. Charlotte Palmer did not

feel comfortable with this behaviour and as Mr Govtepe continued to stand

right behind the locksmith despite being asked not to she decided to call the

police (101) at 12:10 - 12:18, reference CAD3369. They said they would try

and get someone to attend to prevent a breach of the peace but that they

were very busy. The Locksmith appeared not to be able to open that door so

moved inside to try and open the door that lead from the internet shop. He

was followed by Eren Govtepe, Ellie Green, Mr Harris and the dog. Charlotte

Palmer waited outside for the police.

16. Mr Eren Govtepe continued to stand very close to the locksmith as he worked

and Ellie Green asked him couple of times to give him some space so he

could do his job, but he did not move. Whilst waiting for the door to be

opened, Ellie Green noticed a large silver baseball bat leaning against the

counter. Mr A Aslan advised that it for when they play baseball.

17. whilst waiting for the door to open, Ellie Green asked Mr Eren Govtepe to

move aside and give the locksmith some more space, which he refused to do.

He advised he was going to use the toilet. Ellie Green advised that he should

use the facilities somewhere else where he would normally go, as he would

not have got access to this toilet, given that he had no key, had we not been

unlocking it.

18. when the locksmith managed to open the door, Mr Eren Govtepe said he was

going in first and that there was nothing wrong with that. Ellie Green warned

him again that the officers needed to go in first, and if he did not comply then

he would be obstructing them. Yet again Ellie Green asked Mr Govtepe to

stand back but Mr Govtepe refused, and managed to move towards the door.

Ellie Green told him to stop and put her hand on his arm but he shook her off,

barged past the locksmith, got through the now unlocked door and closed it

F J05 03

Page 173



behind him. Charlotte Palmer was advised of this ând called 999 to update

them and ask for assistance at 12:27 - 12:28.

19. The dog handler pushed the door, and after a minute, the door was able to be

opened and Mr Govtepe was standing in a corridor, near a toilet area. He

said he still needed the toilet, and had just moved the trolley out of the way.

He said that it wasn't against the law to use the toilet. Ellie Green said no, but

it would be better if he used another facility. However, Mr Govtepe just stood

there.

20. The door that had just unlocked could only be opened about a third of the way

due to boxes of fresh vegetables - aubergines, cucumbers etc being stacked

in this area. The door lead into a narrow corridor, to the left and along a short

corridor was the door, which lead to the side alleyway. This was blocked by a

shopping trolley. There was a large walk in fridge and a toilet on the left. A
further door into the main store roorn r¡/âs along thê corridor, and was locked

with a padlock.

21. charlotte Palmer entered the premises at 12:3e and took a photo of Eren

Govtepe in the store area and 1232 ol the broken lock and asked him what

he was doing to which he replied 'l want to use the toilet'. Charlotte Palmer

asked him why he had waited to use the one behind a locked door which no

one claimed to have the key for instead of going somewhere else. He said

there was not a toilet at Zilan. Charlotte Palmer advised him that he would

have a long wait and they weren't opening any more doors until the police

came. she advised him to go and use the one in a nearby pub. He did not

move. 12:33 - 12:39 - charlotte Palmer went back outside and phoned

Esther Hughes to advise her what was going on. whilst the locksmith

examined the padlock to the end room Charlotte Palmer and Ellie Green

waited outside for the Police.

22.Three packets of non-duty paid cigarettes (foreign labelled) were found in

among one of the boxes of aubergines at approximately 12.40. 12:41 - 12:50

Charlotte Palmer Phoned Policé Licensing Officer to see if he could assist or

get us police support but he was unable to do so. After a little while Eren

Govtepe left the internet service shop. Charlotte Palmer and Ellie Green saw

F J05 03

Page 174



him carrying a large screw driver in his hand, as if he was trying to hide it up

his arm. charlotte Palmer follovved him to see where he was going with it and

he went into Zilan, a couple of minutes later Mr Altun was seen holding it and

told Charlotte Palmer that he would force the end door himself. She advised

him that would not be necessary.

23. At 12:55 Ellie Green asked Mr Altun to come and witness the rest of the

search which he did. The door was opened by the locksmith. Mr Altun kept

popping in and out of watching the search and going back to the shop, so that

he could cover the till. The end section was a large store room, no tobacco

was found in this section. Shelves lined the first half of the room from floor to

ceiling, which were full of bottles of wine, beer, and cans of soft drink.

Towards the back of the premises, several cases of beer and boxes of water

and jars of vegetables were piled up. There was a lot of stock everywhere,

and access was very restricted. The store room was covered by CCTV from

Zilan, and coUld be sêêh on thê Scieên close to thè serv¡ñg counter.

24. Although the dog kept indicating that there was something else in the middle

section nothing could be found so Charlotte Palmer completed a notice of

seizure (1527) for the three packets of cigarettes and placed them in

evidence bag N02624089 as cPx/01. Mr Altun signed the form and was

given a copy of it.

25. At approximately 13:24 the dog continued to indicate to Mr Harris that it could

smell something around the toilet area, and this was searched. Mr Harris

said that it could be high up. Charlotte Palmer looked up and saw that there

was a false ceiling with a gap at the end. she pointed at is and said how

about up there and the dog started to bark. I got some ladders from the

storeroom and Mr Harris went up and told them he could see lots of bags. He

took some photos and passed them down to the officers. There were 13

small black carrier bags each containing 10 boxes of cigarettes and 5 50g

pouches of Golden Virginia hand rolling tobacco. These were counted,

photographed and placed in evidence bag N02624075 and R0018927s

respectively as GPX/02 and cPX/03. They were noted down on seizure

notice 1528 by Charlotte Palmer. Mr Altun was present at this time. At 13:41

Ellie Green spoke to Esther Hughes to update her. At 13:44 Ellie Green

Spoke to Gary to update him, he could not assist as he had no vehicle.

F J05 03

Page 175



26. At approximately 14:00 Ellie Green was checking the alcohol in the rear more

carefully and noticed that several beers/lager had no English labelling. Due to

the address on the cans, the products appeared to come mainly from poland,

Bulgaria or the Netherlands. This is in contravention of the food labelling

regulations, therefore a breach of the Food Safety Act 1990.

27 . Ellie Green advised Mr Altun that he must remove all goods from sale, and to

obtain English labelling for the ingredients. Once labels applied to all cans,

approval must be sought from an LBE officer before they can go out on sale.

Mr Altun disappeared for a short time and reappeared with an invoice for the

above beer, dated 21 December2015. la photo of the invoice (VpK/l). Mr

Altun was asked if the invoice was for today, and the only person with a key

was in Turkey until wednesday, then how did the stock get in this room. Mr

Altun replied 'the same way you did'.

28. The officer wanted to seize these goods, and called for backup with a van

from Trading Standards colleagues. Ellie Green also called the locksmith

again as the only way to move the foreign labelled goods was to be through

the rear door, and as no key was available they needed the door to be

unlocked. The following foreign labelled beers/lagers were found:

10 bottles of Desperados Red,5 were placed in two evidence bags:

D40341883 (EVGí) and DA0341882 (EVG2); 24 cans Perta beer in

R00897199 (EVG3); 24 more cans in a case of Perla beer and 6 loose cans

of Perla beer, in R00897188 (EVG4).

29. we then realised that we would not be able to accommodate bagging up at

this point all the cases of beer, so decided to place a sample (4 cans) of each

brand with foreign labelling to an evidence bag, R00897190.(EVGS)

Total items found in store room with only foreign labels

7 cases (NB. 1 case = 24 cans) of Perla

5 cases Debowe

10 cases Desperados

10 cases Zywiec

F J05 03

Page 176



4 cases Tyskie

3 cases Zubr

12 cases Lechs

12 cases Okaxim

30. At approximately 14:20 Charlotte Palmer and Mr Harris left the premises to

continue with other visits, leaving Ellie Green and I to wait for colleagues to

arrive and assist with the alcohol.

31. Ellie Green added info about the alcohol onto seizure notice 1528 which both

she and Mr Altun signed. EVG/DOC/02. Ellie Green and I checked the

alcohol in Zilan as a result of this find and more of the same was found. Ellie

Green completed a Seizure notice 1529 in relation to this with both she and

Deniz Altun signed - EVG/DOC/03.

32. George Moraitis and Kartl Schultz from the Trading Standards team arrived

with the van at approximately 16:00. Ellie Green, George Moraitis and I

returned to Zilan to check the alcohol on their shelves again and the following

beers were noted to have foreign labelling:

26 cans and 5 bottles Zywiec

21 cans and 5 bottles Tyksie

1 can Bucegi

20 cans Zubr

11 cans and 6 bottles Debowe

20 cans Okocim

10 cans Perla

12 cans Desperado

24 cans Worka

5 bottles Desperados Red

The same advice was given about removing goods from shop floor and not

selling until LBE approvalfor English labels.

33. At approximately 14:30 Charlotte Palmer received a call from the police

asking if they were still required. She advised they could ilose the call. At

F J05 03

Page 177



14:39 Charlotte Palmer spoke to me and advised she had told the police they

were no longer needed.

34. Whilst waiting for the locksmith to open the door, Ellie Green and I discussed

our suspicions that more tobacco was hidden, due to Mr E Govtepe's

suspicious behaviour and also the persistence of the dog's investigations in

the toilet area. I checked this area again and noticed that the plywood wall in

the toilet wobbled when pushed. Further examination revealed that there was

a slidin$ door by the toilet door, which made up a partition wall of the toilet.

When the partition was slid out, another partition sheet was found. Victor

managed to slide this out, and there was a big grey safe, seemly under a set

of stairs given the shape of it locked by a padlock.

35. At approximately 16:25, once the rear door was opened, the locksmith was

asked to cut the padlock to the safe. I filmed the opening of the safe by the

locksmith which also shows that when the safe doors were open, a huge

quantity of cigarettes, with foreign labelling was found (vpK^¡D/r). ltook
some a photo (VPK/P|C/27-291and the officers and I started removing the

illegal tobacco into the van at approximately 17:00. As there weren't enough

evidence bags for such a large find the offic'ers used crates from the premises

to transport them.

36. 18:06 - charlotte Palmer, Mr Harris, wesley stevens, pocA otficer for the

Council arrived at the premises and assisted with carrying out crates of

cigarettes to the van.

37. Ellie Green listed the items found on seizure notice 1533 EVG/DOC/O4. Each

pack of cigarettes contained 20 individual cigarettes, and 10 packs were

wrapped in a bigger pack. ln total, 4,563 packs of cigarettes (Marlboro Gold

including one packed Marlboro Red) were seized, and 30 x sOg packets of

Golden Virginia tobacco were seized.

38. At 19:10 Karl schultz, George Moraitis and wesley stevens took the

evidence away in the van. As the there was too much to put in the council

evidence room and the self-storage unit was closed the evidence was stored

in the van overnight in the secure council carpark.

F J05 03

Page 178



39. At 19:15 Charlotte Palmer, Ellie Green and I went back into Zilan and

requested to seize the CCTV hard drive. Charlotte and I were accompanied

by Mr E Govtepe to obtain the recorders as he was still present. The internet

shop had closed at approximately 17.30. The finish time on the Part B noticed

was completed by Ellie Green and a copy given to Mr Altun. Mr Altun, who

was now working on the till, signed the seizure notice, and said they were not

his but the new owner, Mr Sever Govtepe.

40. Unfortunately Ellie Green did not get him to sign it. CPX/Pape¡s102. Ellie

Green added the CCTV seizure to seizure notice 1533 EVGIDOCI04 which

both she and Deniz Altun signed. Ellie Green also took note of Mr Atas

Ergun's details as he had been present in the shop all day and suspiciously

took something into the lnternet Café/Store room earlier that day.

41. At 19:17 all officers left the premises. Officers waited for the locksmith to

return to secure the building. Another locksmith arrived to secure the rear

door, under the watchful eye of Mr E Govtepe. The locksmith arrived a|19.25

and left at 19:55.

42.19:55 - Ellie Green completed another inspection report EVG/DOC/O5, which

Mr Altun signed and then was issued a copy. This report explained that new

keys had been obtained due to us entering the premises by force, as no one

present, not either owner of 232 or 236 Hertford Rd. As no one was able to

give us a key to open these doors, we could not give anyone other ihan the

proved and stated owner the key. Contact times and details were provided on

the report.

43. Charlotte Palmer, Ellie Green and I returned to the civic centre were the

CCTV was bagged and secured in Box 35 and 36 in the evidence store. The

officers left Civic Centre at 20:30.

44. On Tuesday 22nd December, Charlotte Palmer, Karl Schultz and Gerry

Hearne took it to the storage unit and secured it in there. Charlotte Palmer

noted the contents CPX04

45. On Wednesday 23'd December 2015 - Charlotte Palmer noticed that the

powers were wrong so letters were written to Mr Eren Govtepe, Mr Deniz

F J05 03

Page 179



Altun and Mr Aydin Alsan and hand delivered to the premises by Charlotte

Palmer. Mr Aydin Aslan was also asked to sign the Part B notice to confirm

that he had given permission for it to take place. Eren Govtepe had already

signed a Part B allowing the search of'ZIlan. Letters GpXpapers/O3-05

46. I Victor Ktorakis am producing the photographs that I took on 21 December

2015 as VPK/Plc/î-39.

Sig.ned

Dated:

F J05 03

Page 180



i ; " ',,-i ,'-

L.B. ENFIELD TRADING STANDARDS INFORMATION TO THE OCCUPIER
Notice of the powers to search premises and the rights of occupiers Police and Criminal

Evidence Act 1984 Code of Practice

Premises Searched Record

Address of Premises Zilan Food centre, 236 Hertfrod Road, Enfield, EN3 sBL
Type of Premises_Retail

POWER UNDER WHICH SEARCH MADE (TrcK,ùyHrcHAppLrES)
WARRANT (Officers powers are summarised overleaf)

under Act Date

STATUTORY POWER (These powers are summarised overleaf)
Statutory
powers under: Trade Description Act 1968 / Consumer Protection Act 1987

WRITTEN CONSENT (TICK THOSE WHICH APPLY AND OBTAIN A SIGNATURE)
With the written consent of a person entitle d to grant entry (only applicable if not under warrant or statutory powers)

HEREBY CONSENT TO OFFICERS OF THE L.B. ENFIELD TRADING STANDARDS
SEARCHING THE ABOVE NAMED PREMISES. I UNDERSTAND THAT ANYTHING FOUND
MAY BE USED IN COURT PROCEEDINGS.

I HEREBY CONSENT TO THE OFFICER MAKING USE OF EQUIPMENT ON THESE PREMISES, NAMELY
A TILL SCANNER OR OTHER SIMILAR EQUIPMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF CHECKING PRICES ON
THESE PREMISES. I UNDERSTAND THAT ANY INFORMATION PRODUCED MAY BE USED
IN COURT PROCEEEDINGS.

Signature ame (Capitals) @r¡ GonÞe.lze-
Status relative to premises átl ff>
OFFICER IN CHARGE OF SEARCH

Name: Charlotte Palmer

Position : Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer

Date 2ll12/15

Time star_]Q___,.þ rinisrr_Q '_5 )-

OF'FICERS PRESENT AT SEARCH
(Show Name & Organisation)

Charloffe Palmer - LBE

Ellie Green

Victor Ktorakis

Mike Harris

Entry Forced: YES / NO - If yes state reasons:

- caused on or search and circumstances:

to Secure Premises

Extent of Search

Search No:

Page 181



i. t-x / Ëlr, ,€' , \r{ / C /

L.B. ENFIELD TRADING STANDARDS INFORMATION TO THE OCCUPIER
Notice of the powers to search premises and the rights of occupiers Police and Criminal

Ksa.t
Evidence Act 1984 Code of Practice

tT

Premises Searched Record

i¿Type of Premises Retail
I

Address of Premises:

POWER UNDER WHICH SEARCH MADE (TICK WHICH APPLIES)
WARRÂNT (Officers powcrs are summariscd ovcrlcaf)

STATUTORY POWER (These powers are summarised overleaf)

powers under: Trade Description Act 1968 / Consumer Protection Act 1987

WRITTEN CONSENT (TICK THOSE WHICH APPLY AND OBTAIN A SIGNATURE)
With the written consent of a person entitled to grant entry (only applicable if not under wanant or statutory powers)

I HEREBY CONSENT TO OFFICERS OF THE L.B. ENFIELD TRADING STANDARDS
SEARCHING THE ABOVE NAMED PREMISES.I UNDERSTAND THAT ANYTHING FOUND
MAY BE USED IN COURT PROCEEDINGS.

I HEREBY CONSENT TO THE OFFICER MAKING USE OF EQUIPMENT ON THESE PREMISES, NAMELY
A TILL SCANNER OR OTHER SIMILAR EQUIPMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF CHECKING PRICES ON
THESE PREMISES.I UNDERSTAND THAT ANY INFORMATION PRODUCED MAY BE USED

/T

t-t\t TP.^iz AltL¡^

Act Dateunder

Status relative

Name

INGS.2t* tÞ. 8g t\

OFFICER IN CHARGE OF SEARCH

Name: Charlotte Palmer

Position: Licensing Enforcement Oflicer Time Starr_.1þ_ - 5! -rinisrrlS_:Û.

Date 2lll2l15

OFFICERS PRESENT AT SEARCH
(Show Name & Organisation)

Charlotte Palmer

Ellie Green

Victor Ktorakis

Mike Hanis (Operation rWagtail)

Entry Force 4ã"1/No - rf yes state reasons: ÑÓ t/!j,.J.s aua.r*tojÔk

Damage-causedonentryorduringsearchandcircumstances: 5 [OC.k-S CL¡Ít<c nl b-,
s.ryzr=p-ï- Lrr.-,rt Søl.o C-^.,.ac,^.*. tgcj¿ -l^¡-¿'1r..
Arrangements to Secure Premises

Extent of Search

Search Resister No:

Page 182



X l,''O(rr,,'/S lJ\

Mr Eren Govtepe
Zilan Food Centre
236 Hertford Road
Enfield
EN3 sBL

Please reply to:

Tel

Fax

Minicom:

Email:

My Ref:

Your Ref

Date:

ENFIELD
Council

Charlotte Palmer
Licensing Enforcement Officer
Pollution Control, Planning and
Licensing Enforcement Team
Regulatory Services
0208 379 3965
0208 379 2190

charlotte. palmer@enfield. gov. uk
wK1215068091

23'd December 2015

Dear Mr Govtepe,

Zilan Food Gentre, 236 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 sBL
Storage unit at the rear of 232 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 5BL

I write in further to the visit made to the above premises on Monday 21't December
2015.

The statutory power on the 'Notice of the powers to search premises and the rights of
occupiers Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 Code of Practice'should have read
the'Consumer Rights Act 2015'.

Yours sincerely

Charlotte Palmer
Licensing Enforcement Officer

lan Davis

Director - Environment
Enfield Council
Civic Centre, Silver Street
Enfield EN1 3XY

t¡¡É,u
¡I¡ 

-¿,,,lr¡oür
E>U
dgõ

@
B
trPhone:020 8379 1000

Website: www,enfi eld.gov.u k
The Government Standðt

lf you need this document in another language or format call Customer Services on 020 8379 1000, or email enfield.council@enñeld.gqv uk

Page 183



Mr Deniz Altun
Zilan Food Centre
236 Hertford Road
Enfield
EN3 sBL

Please reply to:

Tel

Fax

Minicom:

Email:

My Ref:

Your Rel

Date:

( tr.\ ¡{:lt;-)lì/.ì
ENFIELD

Council

Charlotte Palmer
Licensing Enforcement Officer
Pollution Control, Planning and
Licensing Enforcement Team
Regulatory Services
0208 379 396s
0208 379 2190

charlotte. palmer@enfield.gov. uk
wKt215068091

23'd December 2015

Dear Mr Altun,

Zilan Food Centre, 236 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 SBL
Storage unit at the rear of 232 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 5BL

I write in further to the visit made to the above premises on Monday 21"t December
2015.

The statutory power on the 'Notice of the powers to search premises and the rights of
occupiers Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 Code of Practice'should have read
the 'Consumer Rights Act 2015'.

Yours sincerely

Charlotte Palmer
Licensing Enforcement Officer

lan Davis

Director - Environment
Enfield Council
Civic Centre, Silver Street
Enfield ENI 3XY

Ëy¿,,,¡r¡oü+
ä>t
-ru)(lJtzli¡i

@
B
trPhone:020 8379 1000

Website: www.enfi eld.gov.u k
The Covernm€nl Stândãr

t (,.) lf you need this document in another language or format call Customer Services on 020 8379 1 000, or email enfield.council@enñeld.gov.uk

Page 184



AJQ lDoc (a t

REF: WK/ LICN 1

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

Premises Name -/- Q
Premises Address Zre H.-a/tÊc/d [Ld , E t--J 3 SB c
Time of Visit Start Finish: (

During an inspection of your premises on L I t ., the fottowing was checked

T
E t t ncorrect nsert new deta s be ow)

20..

No
No
No

L

tr
T

I
Yes
Yes
Yes

I
Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of PLH & DPS on licence correct?
Conditions of licence checked?

No. of condition
not in compliance

Evidence/Advice

ry- rokJoCCA Sfcf L< v^f\\j8f- æ ìn l'1^q bo"
/\AcJU._od 'fc) 9C\CC6¡ o/rci Cecu A l-+< S|6ar,
7@rrìQ, locsc-r11d[lr - f)C,Ct1

(: o @>krotp Oç sKo\vi,^q ìr¡
ctâæ ol ( st¿ctÅ

ll

Any other matter(s)that need rr-L¿í

e
a

Ú,"rçL biaßÜKajì cË:t-1^A ucqñcA ,
You are required to have the above matters attended to within ..........days of this notice, Failure to rectify the above
breaches may constitute a criminal offence and result in legal proceedings being brought against you.

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT RECIPIENT OF NOT¡CE
Signature of Officer on visit: 6/c, Signatu

Print Name:

er\i2 Qroe^ hltoq, PL-rl t DoJ
)riP e & Position: \

,L
Email/Tel:
¿\\i 0 ,Qt Q_2^t) rr otc .

t )V
ø4,

illTel:
e - cdQ,\, nrCuì( "Ca .-,

Ema
c t't

Application fo can be downloaded at https://n EW ld.oov. uk/services/business-and-licensino/-

Material such as leave quietly signs, training guidance and refusals book is available to download and print at
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/downloads/download/2316/compliance documents

¡\/I ETF. O PO LI TA N
POLIC E

$/orkhg together fø€ aaftr LoBdon

Page 185



L V& /Dtl, ¡t': .t
NOTICE OF SEIZURE

Name:

Address:

No 1528

Trading Standards
Civic Gentre
Silver Street
Enfield
ENl 3XH

trad ing.standards@enfield.gov.u k
Telephone: 020 8379 8505
Fax: 020 8379 8506

The following items have been seized by the officer named below as they may be required as evidence by
virtue of powers contained within the following legislation:
ns;.dr_...-ac.dä-r,ñää-.Ccn.i.:.o.s--.cna.....r^o....CÕnt .ç:...ft..ç.rrchm......

fict- l-1fJ ¡ Fdcd SaÉørj Arcì: I

ßçe-Lr1Èlt l3o. n otktleep.. cs_rcl 8a.) -c-e¿ /-oå ,....
DAo3r,rE'3
p-Aaårr...5.x.¿.............t9....4.....Ðçá.:?.çßde-........(Pd........kd........zY.ç./ct...*-

.w..È../.ad-..,....(â..pzn..øur:ç!.vA.e...b.qg)

ât.qs .'..Lk Cfi,n > .X . . .la-!.(g .hear
à!.âx.. Z4t-can: .:t: ...6....ccns ßz.n wß((r.?ßos:T!ì)

âr/.€. ).,..*..cÇt'n .>. Debc\^J.a [P9.], Çt Ccns e5:..

k-cr¡n> Z
Uv\,tCç...bQQf 2..

-a bæ/-"..þ-..ccin.>

* .Çans . (F- ç.Çn)

C.a,f:...D,9. hc¿¡-1.-P.. /. . I C....(,.c,:c.:-..D g.TJ¿r.cndo:..,... S... cG6Ë s Zg.r*"i

4.æ.>. a

lL ca aS \r(óLr'^A V

IF YOU BELEIVE THE OFFICER DID NOT HAVE REASONABLE GROUNDS FOR SEIZING
ALL OR SOME OF THE ITEMS LISTED YOU MAY APPEAL AGAINST THE SEIZURE. IF YOU
WISH TO APPEAL PLEASE WRITE/TELEPHONE THE MANAGER OF TRADING STANDARDS
USING THE CONTACT INFORMATION GIVEN ABOVE.

Ii,A QtP-Qn Date: Zl IIZI2:AI)-Authorised Officer:

Positi

Signature:

Received uv' .Mf- Á.1 tt¿ll Z;Ç)f lan
Q-

D rect .4.

,\J

Page 186



NOTICE OF SEIZURE

Name:

Address:

Lv,q /Dac /a3
No -i"529

E

Ao( Trading Standards
Civic Gentre
Silver Street
Enfield
ENI 3XH

tradlng.standards@enfield.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8379 8S0S
Fax: 020 8379 8506

I

they may be required as evidence by

r\rcLr^ad not tc set
The following items have been slÞttf uy the officer named betow as
virtue of powers contained witËin the following legislation:

m@Act tÎÎÇ: IobÇ.l lery,
bW LìSkof sl

LeqJ:E ¿s¿ crh I{¿CN (

Z3Z f(ø-,,tfAç¿ róPl
I

Qc
X -5 >< ..PJ

T. -CEAJ]r
.t s

züb X. cÇ.ß,)_
tl .), . CL(G.cì,{J} K ZÇl Ca/.}Jkrla:* (CCan) D_a S.PA./.cic{..o.... X.... I Z,...CG'.,A ).

.l¡¡ e,",. f,t .cru....X .....2 .+...cÇl\. S. r.... cA L(çds s Þa¿l
mU.-çr..th"agg... .LJJ IS J:KSS

F-[oc/ it ull h .çÀtu.Qç,

tô L

aû Llr3Q
I

cqr

J.

ig Cr {Qpn Date: ZJ llz(Zct S

hnrn
(a^Direct Dial: ç,jz ñffun Positio Busi

HAVE
MAY

STA
INFORMAT

F BYOU IVELE THEE OFF tcE DR NID OT REASO LNAB GE NROU DS FOR ES IZINGoALL R SOM OFE HET EIT LISMS DTE YOU APPEA L NSAGAI T TH SEE tzuRE. F UYO
HWIS APPTO PLEAL EASE WR TE/TELEPHON THE E MANAG RE OF TRADI GN N DAR SD

SIU THNG coNE CTTA Nto NGIVE BOVE.A

Authorised

Signature: .........

Received by

Page 187



NOTICE OF SEIZURE

Name

Address: K / o ,1 3J

Éx¡ 3 r{aL

i V'i':r ,/ l_\C\C 
,/ l1 ¿J

No l_¡33
ENFIEL

Council

Trading Standards
Givic Gentre
Silver Street
Enfield
ENI 3XH

trading.standards@enfield.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8329 8505
Fax: ' 02O 8379 8506

w**,enficld.govuk

/

The following items have been seized by the officer named below as they may be required as evidence byvl of ned within the lowi

Sa
Acl tqg 7o

't

z

o AW?clì Zifcnn Çc¿l
736. ìt-s -qsSÕc-la-1-sc/
Ç

') Pßr c/ il
c..c..o. (\ in tt{\ç

CF
IK- w^a'Lbara ßpC &Oxacl^aj: Qc"trd Ui

't

in*¡ fi: fcJìc-c{ccc
:L La-S

r\JO6Z+aqj

scÀC f-ha" husißpòs to

C}

å(Lrc (urcpnAuthorised Office

Signature

HAV
MAY

STAN
NTAC FORMATION

IF UYO BELEIVE TH oE FtcF ER NOTDID E REASO NABLE G URO DSN FOR SEIZINGLLA SOR EOM OF TH ITEMSE LtsTE YOD U APPEA L GAA N Ts ETH SE tzuRE IF YOU
Hwts ATO PPEAL PLEAS WRE TE/TELEPH ONE THE MANAG oER TF DIRA GN DARDSUS GN ETH co T N t, V NE ABOVE.

Recelved uv, Nl.{ ..knj-¿ Á

Date::lJlø/zOr ] 13:{

ldu¡sad rc SqCr,( CCTVqjs
S

Page 188



-1\z i4

REF: WK/ LICN 1

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

Premises Name
Premises Address

Time of Visit: Start Finish

During an inspection of your premises on ..'.ZI

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of PLH & DPS on licence correct?
Conditions of licence checked?

20..1)......, the following was checked

O E (lt incorrect, insert new details below)

No

Yes
Yes

No. of condition
not in compliance

Evidence/Advice

u q s ,rc) a<K: )(q^C/ SÌ-/.Ér

.Q,lAnv oth

73L
er matter(s)that

u. ot:
E3(.

5/
Cll

t O
ou requ a attended to within .......

breaches may constitute a criminal offence and result in legal proceedings being brought against you

t

the abov e 
'-t

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT REGIPIENT OF NOTICE
sisnature 

"t 
ont""ry'ry, Signature: (i-

Print Name:

É-(l;a Çt
Print Name & Position \O l"/ò

PL¡-
/
Itl,r Øn\z All-ì/^

Email/Tel:
a \t;'Q or

qaÀ/
a.'-r? A\ cn

-uJt(

Email/Tel

Applicatio n forms can be downloaded at https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/business-and-licensinq/

Material such as leave quietly signs, training guidance and refusals book is available to download and print at
http://www.enfield.qov.uk/downloads/download/2316/compliance documents

ENFIEL
Coun,r*À,I€TROPOLIT.A,N

POl.-tG E
l¡l/orklnq togêth€r ftr a õaftr London

Page 189



i'Àl(t iÀrlt\ì

e \

t
i

.
t1

?

.1

I

,
.j

t
4
\

+,.tt.

I

(

,t,i; (,

\,,^'

.Iûqì''; ',,,

.o
E
Àl

ñ0

ì' .!'\ ('r' - ì
r" . :':'?d r-:

-:¡ =4! i .úilttr

Page 190



tL.

Page 191



I

,

d
5

:

11-¡ f-i:ti

ar¡-eüË H

¡

n
r€ Lt(

ì

03'
1i

I-ECH.

r,,,'lrl
I,ECH.

t'
li

/

Page 192



r -í)

P
age 193



38

,tf
T

"f
.F ¡7
l

ì1

íi

riilil

Page 194



Qr"l l3Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 326 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2016 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT (Chair) Derek Levy, Vicki Pite and Peter Fallart 
 
ABSENT  

 
OFFICERS: Ellie Green (Principal Licensing Officer), Charlotte Palmer 

(Licensing Enforcement Officer), Dina Boodhun (Legal 
Services Representative), Jane Creer (Democratic Services) 

  
Also Attending: Mr Musa Aktas (Applicant) 

Mr Mahir Kilic, Licensing Agent, NARTS (on behalf of 
applicant) 

 
380   
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Councillor Levy as Chair welcomed all those present and explained the order 
of the meeting. 
 
381   
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
NOTED that there were no declarations of interest in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 
382   
AKDENIZ SUPERMARKET (ENFIELD) LTD, 463-465 HERTFORD ROAD, 
ENFIELD, EN3 5UT  (REPORT NO. 182)  
 
RECEIVED the application made by Mr Musa Aktas for the premises known 
as and situated at Akdeniz Supermarket (Enfield) Ltd, 463-465 Hertford Road, 
Enfield, EN3 5UT to vary a Premises Licence. 
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introductory statement of Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, 

including the following points: 
a.  This application was for a variation of the premises licence. 
b.  The current licence dated from 14/2/2014 and permitted opening hours 
and sale of alcohol 08:00 to 23:00 daily. 
c.  The application sought 24 hour daily opening and sale of alcohol 08:00 
to 02:00 daily. 
d.  The licence had not been subject to review. 

Page 197 Agenda Item 4



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 327 - 

e.  The application was subject to representation received from the 
Licensing Authority on the grounds of prevention of public nuisance. 
f.  The premises was located in the Enfield Highway Cumulative Impact 
Policy Area. Therefore the Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP) applied to this 
application. The CIP core hours for sale of alcohol Monday to Sunday 
were 08:00 to 00:00. 
g.  This application sought hours that were outside the core hours and was 
therefore subject to the presumption against grant that was implicit in a 
CIP (LB Enfield Licensing Policy s.9.22/23). 
h.  The Licensing Authority considered it appropriate that any part of an 
application outside the CIP should be refused, with the part of application 
within the CIP to be granted. 
i.  Where the CIP applied to an application, it was for the applicant to put 
forward information why the application should be an exception to the 
policy and be granted. 
j.  No written information had been received from the applicant, but she 
had now had sight of a letter and table submitted on 8/1/16 by the 
licensing agent and circulated to all parties. 
k.  The Council’s Licensing Policy was last reviewed in January 2015 with 
specific reference to CIPs and the core hours were extended from 23:00 to 
00:00. 
l.  It was raised by the Chair that the current licence permitted opening 
hours 08:00 to 23:00 daily while the licensing agent’s table showed 24 
hour opening at the supermarket. The licensing agent advised that since 
the licence was granted on 14/2/14, the shop opening hours had been 24 
hours a day. 
 

2. The statement of Charlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement Officer, 
including the following points: 
a.  This application was to extend sale of alcohol from 23:00 to 02:00 daily. 
b.  This area of Hertford Road was one of mixed commercial and 
residential use. The premises was on the corner of Hertford Road and 
East Road, which was a residential cul-de-sac. On the other side, the shop 
adjoined residential dwellings, and there were more residences opposite. 
c.  There had been complaints received from a local resident on 26/10/15 
and 28/10/15 in respect of noise from deliveries and waste collections in 
the early hours of the morning, in breach of licence conditions. The licence 
holder was informed and advised. On 18/11/15 the complainant confirmed 
that the issues had stopped and they were happy for the complaint to be 
closed. 
d.  Licensing Authority officers were concerned that sale of alcohol would 
attract a greater number of customers late at night and lead to disturbance 
in the early hours of the morning at a time when there were lower ambient 
noise levels. 
e.  The premises was within a drinking control zone as well as a CIP area. 
f.  The locality was already an area of concern in respect of anti-social 
behaviour and public nuisance. 

Page 198



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 328 - 

g.  The presumption in cases of applications outside CIP hours was that 
they should be refused. 
h.  There was no documentation to justify granting against the CIP. The 
document provided by the licensing agent pertained to other shops in the 
Akdeniz Supermarket chain. 
i.  Officers recommended alternative licensed hours in line with the CIP ie. 
until 00:00, noting that the CIP applied to alcohol sales and licensable 
activities. 
j.  In response to a query by the Chair, it was confirmed that officers would 
be happy for opening and licensed hours to be the same ie. until 00:00. 
 

3. Charlotte Palmer responded to questions as follows: 
a.  At Members’ request a clarification of a drinking control zone was 
given, that these were designated areas, of which there were a number 
across the borough, with signs to advise customers that they should not 
drink alcohol in the street. In these zones it was an offence to drink alcohol 
after being required by a Police officer or PCSO not to do so. 
b.  In response to the Chair’s query whether there had been any breaches 
of licence conditions, Charlotte Palmer advised that this application came 
about following her conversations with the licence holder and an officer 
visit further to the complaints received. There were already conditions on 
the licence regarding times for deliveries and refuse disposal. In the 
discussions, she confirmed that the conditions applied to all goods. There 
had been a difference of opinion in respect of the legislation. Following the 
discussions, a transfer and vary DPS application was submitted and 
granted. The premises seemed to be complying with conditions now. The 
noise nuisance had stopped and so officers had taken no further action. 
 

4. The statement of Mr Mahir Kilic, licensing agent, on behalf of the applicant, 
including the following points: 
a.  He thanked officers for printing copies of the letter and table submitted 
on 8/1/16. 
b.  The applicant sought to extend licensed hours from the current 08:00 – 
23:00 to 08:00 – 02:00 Monday to Sunday. 
c.  At the time the application was submitted, no further conditions were 
proposed as those already in place were considered sufficient to promote 
the licensing objectives, but the applicant was willing to consider any 
recommendations from the relevant authorities. The current 14 conditions 
on the licence were set out on page 8/9 of the agenda pack. He invited all 
responsible authorities to propose conditions in line with this application. 
He was pleased to note that the Police service had not made any 
suggestions and therefore considered the conditions were sufficient. 
d.  At around the time the application was made, the Council had received 
the complaint regarding noise from deliveries. The complaint was brought 
to the attention of the premises’ management on 13/11/15 and advice was 
sought from Charlotte Palmer on what should be done. Suppliers were 
advised to make deliveries from 08:00 and onwards. There had been 
issues with a particular supplier and they were addressed. The 

Page 199



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 329 - 

complainant was happy that the noise issue was addressed sufficiently. 
This showed the good management skills of Mr Aktas and the way he 
would deal with any issues that may come up. 
e.  The additional circulated letter and table set out other Akdeniz 
supermarkets in neighbouring boroughs. Mr Aktas had been a licensee 
since 1991 and was very experienced. All the premises he was affiliated 
with had 24 hour opening; only one sold alcohol 24 hours. The minimum 
licensed hours in other shops in Hackney was to 00:00 in the week and 
01:00 Friday and Saturday. 
f.  Akdeniz Enfield had been open since February 2014 when the licence 
was granted, with opening 24 hours a day and alcohol sales only between 
08:00 – 23:00. 
g.  Mr Aktas wanted to be able to offer alcohol in part of the hours he was 
already trading. 
h.  Mr Aktas understood the CIP and that it was for the applicant to prove 
that the premises will not contribute to crime and disorder or other issues. 
i.  Mr Aktas was a current personal licence holder. 
j.  Mr Aktas was happy to propose an extension of licensed hours from 
23:00 to 02:00 and that there would be at least two personal licence 
holders present at the shop. 
k.  The CIP was designated to prevent people drinking on the street and to 
prevent anti-social behaviour. The Akdeniz chain already had other 
premises in high crime areas, such as Hackney, and had later licensed 
hours there. The management could deal with anti-social behaviour in the 
hours they were seeking to sell alcohol. 
l.  The applicant was happy to offer other conditions. If shop staff saw 
anyone going outside and opening a can or bottle of alcohol and 
consuming it instantly they would be happy to refuse to sell to those 
individuals if they visited the premises again. 
m.  The Chair asked for re-iteration of what the applicant was now offering. 
The agent advised that the applicant was happy to have a condition to 
refuse to sell alcohol to any individual who was not complying with the 
drinking control zone policy in that street. 
n. The agent advised that other than that he could not think of any other 
appropriate conditions. This applicant had 25 years’ experience in this 
sector: he should be considered an exceptional applicant. 
 

5. The agent and applicant responded to questions as follows: 
a.  The Chair observed that conditions had been offered at the hearing, but 
questioned why they were not put into the written application (while 
acknowledging that applicants were entitled to supplement their application 
at the hearing). The agent advised that this had not been believed 
necessary, but he wanted to highlight that Mr Aktas already has six 
personal licence holders at the premises. 
b.  Councillor Fallart referred to the CIP policy and asked for more 
information as to why this premises should be exempted from the 
presumption against granting. The agent stated that the CIP was 
introduced to discourage anti-social behaviour. This was clarified by the 

Page 200



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 330 - 

Licensing Enforcement Officer in that the drinking control zone was to 
prevent consumption of alcohol in the street, but the CIP was an actual 
policy with a 00:00 cut off time for sale of alcohol, and the two were 
separate. The agent stated that he believed this applicant to be in an 
exceptional position. He had demonstrated that he could run licensed 
premises in other boroughs, and he would do the same in Enfield. He had 
the management skills and the staff to be able to do that. The premises 
would not cause problems for the local residents. The Police were satisfied 
with the information provided and did not believe that the shop would 
cause any anti-social behaviour or crime and disorder in the area. 
c.  Councillor Pite asked for clarification of the agent’s conclusions 
regarding the Police’s satisfaction, as her assumption was that this 
consent was in presumption of compliance with the CIP hours. The agent 
advised that regardless whether there was a CIP or not, the Police were 
invited to make comments, and they would make objections to any 
applications where they were not satisfied that premises would be run 
within the law. The Police knew who the licensee was in this case, and 
they would have run checks to ascertain he was a fit and proper person.  
d.  The Chair emphasised that in a CIP hearing, the burden of evidence 
was on the applicant to make a case, and nothing could be assumed from 
the fact that the Police had not objected. He would not consider giving 
weight either way to the Police lack of objection and would not consider 
postponing this hearing to invite the Police. The reason for this hearing 
was that the Licensing Authority had objected and their representation 
related to prevention of public nuisance and not to crime and disorder. He 
asked to hear about steps which would be taken to prevent public 
nuisance. In respect of noise issues, the agent referred to the information 
given on page 24 regarding the noise complaints from the local resident. 
These were raised first with the applicant on 13/11/15 and the complainant 
confirmed the issues had stopped on 18/11/15. The complainant was 
happy that the necessary steps had been taken. This had been the only 
complaint since Mr Aktas had been involved with the premises. The agent 
stated that he had already addressed why this application should be an 
exemption to the CIP. The applicant was an experienced licensee and he 
had a proven track record with his other businesses. Taking account of his 
experience and the additional conditions proposed earlier, it was 
considered that the exemption should be applied. 
e.  Councillor Pite raised that the other Akdeniz supermarkets listed in the 
table bore little resemblance to this premises in this part of Hertford Road 
which was largely residential, and that some of their licensed hours ended 
at 23:00 and 00:00 and she still required more information about why this 
application requested a 02:00 terminal hour. The agent advised that no 
local residents had made representations against this application, 
including the complainant from 2015. This was proof that Mr Aktas could 
manage the premises well and not cause noise or nuisance. Mr Aktas had 
already spoken with all suppliers and ensured there were no deliveries 
before 07:00. He believed that sale of alcohol would not cause noise or 
nuisance and there was no evidence that there would be any issue. 

Page 201



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 331 - 

Akdeniz supermarkets had been granted all the licensed hours they had 
applied for without restriction from any other councils and had no previous 
refusal to any applied for hours. 
f.  The Chair confirmed that the LSC considered each application on its 
individual merits. He raised that the noise nuisance complaint had arisen 
from the regular trading at the premises and asked about additional steps 
proposed to prevent noise and public nuisance given that sale of alcohol 
later may attract a different type of customer and change the nature of the 
business, which would change the potential impact on local residents. The 
agent clarified that there was no evidence and this was speculation about 
what may occur. This premises had been operating 24 hours a day for 
non-licensable activities and there had only been one occasion when a 
noise complaint was received and this was addressed as soon as it was 
brought to the management’s attention. This should convince the panel 
that if any issue arose in the future it would be dealt with appropriately. 
g.  In response to the Chair’s further query whether it was acknowledged 
that selling alcohol beyond 00:00 would change the nature of the business, 
the applicant advised that from 23:00 the premises did not get local people 
shopping, but did get people driving there by car. If this application was 
granted, the shop takings would increase. Generally the shop did not serve 
local people after 00:00. 
h.  Members raised that this point was quite concerning. The noise from 
the delivery lorry in the early hours had led to a complaint as the ambient 
noise level was much lower in the area at that time and it was a concern if 
customers from other areas would be driving to the shop with the related 
noise from car doors etc during normal sleeping periods. The agent 
advised that the complaint regarding the delivery lorry was in the side road 
where it disturbed a neighbour, but vehicles usually parked at the front of 
the premises. There had been no complaints regarding customers parking 
outside the premises to do their shopping. 
i.  The Chair asked further about steps for the prevention of public 
nuisance, and that it was the responsibility of the applicant to justify any 
exemption to the CIP. The agent re-iterated that if any issues arose, the 
applicant would deal with that issue immediately to prevent it occurring 
again, but that there were no issues which needed to be addressed 
specifically. 
j.  The Chair pressed further regarding appropriate additional steps and 
demonstration of full understanding of the CIP and addressing that 
existence of the policy was sufficient for refusal. The agent advised that he 
had already stated a number of things including that Mr Aktas had 25 
years’ experience; the premises had six personal licence holders; a 
condition had been offered whereby two personal licence holders would be 
present during all licensed hours; and the shop already had 18 CCTV 
cameras. He did not believe the premises would contribute to crime and 
disorder or to noise and nuisance in the area. The premises was 
exceptional because the licence holder was already so experienced and 
had good staff and management and adhered to all rules. 

Page 202



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 332 - 

k.  Councillor Pite raised the reason for CIP areas and drinking control 
zones in the borough which were preventative measures for the protection 
of residents due to concern about risks, and she still did not consider that 
the applicant had addressed those concerns. The agent advised that all 
local residents had been invited to make comments and none had made 
an objection. He was satisfied that they would not be disturbed. There was 
a review mechanism if the residents or responsible authorities needed to 
invoke it in future. Mr Aktas would work with the local residents and if they 
were ever disturbed he would address the issue immediately. 
l.  The Chair asked why sale of alcohol was needed to 02:00 seven days a 
week. The applicant advised that people came into the shop when they 
were passing by and stopped to do their shopping. As they were shopping 
for groceries and then were told outside licensed hours that they could not 
purchase alcohol, the problem was they would leave all their shopping and 
go to other premises that were licensed 24 hours. 
m.  The Chair asked about the cost of making sure there were two 
personal licence holders on the premises during all licensed hours. The 
applicant advised that those staff were already working at the premises so 
there would be no additional cost. 
n.  In response to Charlotte Palmer’s query whether any of the other 
Akdeniz supermarkets were in CIP areas in other boroughs, this 
information was not available, but it was believed that the Stoke Newington 
store was just outside a CIP area and Hackney Well Street and Islington 
Seven Sisters Road could be. It was not known if any of the other stores 
had been granted licensed hours outside the CIP core hours, or when the 
other boroughs’ policies came into effect and whether that was after those 
licences were already in place. It was confirmed that none of the other 
Akdeniz supermarket licences had been reviewed for any reason. 
o.  In response to Charlotte Palmer’s further questions, it was confirmed 
that Mr Aktas had been running the Hertford Road premises since 15/3/14. 
He had also been around other shops, but for about one year had purely 
dedicated himself to this shop. His partner had been named on the licence 
before and it was transferred to Mr Aktas’ name in 2015. 
p.  The Chair raised that information given had been contradictory 
regarding where the shop’s customers would come from ie. locally or from 
out of the area. The agent clarified that from 00:00 the customers were not 
usually local people, but were Turkish speaking individuals who came to 
London to do grocery shopping and to buy the ethnic products that Mr 
Aktas sold. 
q.  In response to the Chair’s point that this could mean additional risk to 
surrounding residents, the agent advised that the profile of these 
customers was generally family members aged between 25 to 40 years 
who lived outside London or ran businesses outside London and were not 
able to buy ethnic foods where they lived. The application was to enable 
Mr Aktas to serve his existing clientele who lived outside London but did 
their shopping at Hertford Road as it was easily reachable from the M25 
and this is where they liked to do their shopping. The clientele was not 
street kids. 

Page 203



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 333 - 

r.  The Chair asked further about the risk in the CIP. Referring to the earlier 
offer to refuse sales to those seen drinking alcohol outside he asked how 
that would take effect and the possibility this could create antagonism. The 
agent advised that if any individual was not acting in an orderly manner 
outside the premises, staff would warn them and ask them to leave and to 
not consume alcohol. If they refused and later came back to buy from the 
shop, staff would refuse to serve them. 
s.  Members highlighted policy s.8.4 which related to licensed premises 
situated in or immediately adjacent to residential areas and avoidance of 
disturbance to local residents, and, given that this premises was adjacent 
to a residential area and East Road was a cul-de-sac with limited, if any, 
turning area, whether the applicant had any concerns. The agent advised 
that it needed to be understood that this premises already operated 24 
hours a day. In response to more queries further to the suggestion that 
selling alcohol would lead to an increase in late night customers, the agent 
advised that a grant would not necessarily mean there would be an 
increase in customers as there were already shoppers coming to the 
premises at those times and Mr Aktas just wanted to sell alcohol in those 
hours. 
 

6. The summary statement of Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, 
including the following points: 
a.  Members’ attention was drawn to the policy and guidance sections of 
the officer report, in particular to para 6.12: that the sub-committee was 
best placed to make decisions about appropriate opening hours in their 
area based on their local knowledge and in consultation with responsible 
authorities. 
b.  The fact that the premises was located in the Enfield Highway CIP area 
was emphasized. 
c.  It was for the LSC to decide whether the applicant had demonstrated to 
its satisfaction that this application should be an exception to the CIP, 
otherwise the presumption was against grant outside CIP core hours. 
d.  Having heard all of the representations, the LSC must take such steps 
as it considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

7. The closing statement of Charlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement Officer, 
including the following points: 
a.  The key issue was the proximity of the premises to local residents, and 
the location of the premises within a CIP area. 
b.  There had been previous noise complaints from a local resident. 
c.  The Licensing Authority deemed it appropriate that licensed hours 
should end at 00:00 in line with the CIP. 
 

8. The closing statement of Mr Mahir Kilic, licensing agent, on behalf of the 
applicant, including the following points: 
a.  He drew members’ attention to s.8.7.1 of the Council’s licensing policy 
that supermarkets may apply to sell alcohol off supplies at times when they 

Page 204



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 334 - 

were open as a retail outlet for shopping and each application would be 
considered on its merits. 
b.  He considered that this application should be granted, with the 
conditions that the applicant had proposed. 
 

RESOLVED that 
 
1. In accordance with the principles of Section 100(a) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting 
for this item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 

 
The Panel retired, with the legal representative and committee 
administrator, to consider the application further and then the meeting 
reconvened in public. 
 

2. The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved that the application be granted 
in part as follows: 
Hours the premises are open to the public and supply of alcohol (off 
supplies) from 08:00 to 00:00 daily. 
Conditions 1 to 14 on the current licence, which are not disputed. 

 
3. The Chairman made the following statement: 
 
“Having carefully considered the written submissions, and listened attentively 
to the oral representations made by both parties at the hearing, the Licensing 
Sub-Committee (LSC) resolved that the appropriate steps required for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives would be to grant the application in part, 
to the extent that the opening hours permitted under the licence, and hours for 
licensable activity – namely the supply of alcohol for off sales – be varied from 
08:00-23:00 to 08:00-00:00. In so doing, this would bring the licence into 
conformity with the current cumulative impact policy core hours. 
 
The LSC was not sufficiently persuaded by the arguments advanced to 
support the application for alcohol sales to be extended to 02:00. Whilst the 
opening hours of the business for sales of non-licensable goods are not 
necessarily for the sub-committee to determine, the sub-committee was 
nevertheless concerned to hear through evidence from the applicant’s 
representative that Mr Aktas had actually been operating the premises licence 
with 24 hour opening to the public for the best part of two years, when the 
licence itself permitted terminal opening hours of 23:00 daily. The LSC notes 
paragraph 9.28 of the Council’s licensing policy statement sets out the 
following: ‘… The consideration of hours of operation will include the context 
of each application within each of the licensing objectives. For example, the 
hours at which noise may occur and the extent to which that may affect local 
residents’ sleep and relaxation, will be a consideration because late night 

Page 205



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 335 - 

premises may have an impact on the local environment and can cause public 
nuisance.’ 
 
That said, the focus of our deliberations centred on whether the applicant was 
able to demonstrate circumstances as to why the CIP should not apply to 
these premises by way of the application to vary the hours. The LSC 
considered the statutory Guidance, specifically paragraph 13.30, where we 
took into account whether the applicant’s representations rebutted the 
presumption to refuse the application by the applicant demonstrating that 
there would be no negative cumulative impact on any of the licensing 
objectives, in particular the prevention of public nuisance. 
 
We were concerned that the written application itself offered absolutely no 
additional steps intended to be taken to promote the licensing objectives. We 
were further concerned that the applicant had asserted that the current 
conditions were sufficient, despite the fact that there was evidence of noise 
nuisance associated with the business by way of late night deliveries of 
existing supplies. We were satisfied that this did represent a failure to comply 
with current conditions.  
 
Furthermore, rather than pro-actively taking additional steps, the applicant 
explicitly sought to offload that responsibility on to the licensing authority 
inviting it to make suggestions that Mr Aktas would be willing to accept. The 
LSC viewed this as a failure to properly demonstrate understanding of the 
policy or comprehend the nature of CIP related hearings, where the onus falls 
upon the applicant to make the case to demonstrate that there would be no 
negative impact on the CIP of the area. 
 
During the hearing, the applicant did offer the possibility of additional 
conditions to the effect that there would always be two premises licence 
holders on the premises at all times; and that were troublesome customers to 
be attracted, the premises licence holder would refuse sales to them on a 
subsequent visit, but gave no indication as to how such a condition would be 
managed or implemented in practice. This was the extent of the additional 
steps offered to promote the licensing objectives, and the LSC did not 
consider this to be appropriate, or sufficient to rebut the presumption against 
the refusal to grant the variation in full. 
 
By definition, the existence of the Enfield Highway Cumulative Impact Policy 
acknowledges that the location is already an area of concern in relation to 
public nuisance and alcohol-related crime and disorder.  
 
Under repeated questioning, the applicant (through his representative) did not 
appear to acknowledge or fully appreciate that extending the hours under 
which alcohol may be sold, would materially change the nature of the 
business. In fact, the evidence we heard was contradictory. We were first told 
that most of the additional business would be from local residents doing late 
night shopping, during which they would be able or might choose to purchase 

Page 206



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 336 - 

alcoholic products. Then, we were told that the extension of hours would 
attract customers from outside of the area to come and do their shopping in 
an ethnically based supermarket. 
 
When questioned on this, the applicant was unable to demonstrate what 
additional measures might be put in place to mitigate inevitable noise 
nuisance generated by largely car-borne customers coming into an area late 
at night, given the location is largely residential, and in particular with a narrow 
cul-de-sac immediately beside the premises, in which vehicular parking and 
turning is impossible. When questioned similarly on whether the availability of 
alcohol into the early hours might otherwise change the nature of the clientele, 
and aggravate potential noise nuisance, the applicant offered no additional 
steps to mitigate this possibility as a means of PREVENTING crime and 
disorder, or additional public nuisance. 
 
The main thrust of, and major reliance within the applicant’s submissions, was 
that the existing conditions were sufficient to warrant the extension of hours. 
The LSC was not persuaded on this point alone. To support this assertion, we 
were then told that Mr Aktas (as with other members of his team) has an 
experience of some 25 years standing, and operates a chain of supermarkets, 
many of which have operating hours beyond those on the current licence and 
those being sought. The LSC did not doubt the fact of his experience in 
setting up supermarkets which are licensed, but confined its questioning and 
deliberations to the fact that the current application pertains to location which 
is governed by a cumulative impact policy. 
 
Under analysis, the evidence we saw confirmed that one store out of the 
Enfield borough (Well Street, Hackney) has Sun-Thu licensed hours the same 
as the Enfield CIP; and that another (Station Road, Wood Green) had Sun-
Thu hours in keeping with the current licence. 
 
We were then asked to consider that length of experience of successfully 
running and managing licensed premises within a 24 hours opening hour 
environment in such locations as Stoke Newington High Street, Hoe Street in 
Walthamstow, Seven Sisters Road in the Holloway/Finsbury Park area was 
sufficient in itself to inform the self-belief that they can do the same at 463-465 
Hertford Road in Enfield Highway for the hours as applied for. 
 
The LSC noted the information presented on the other licensed premises and 
determined that such locations were not comparable and in any event the 
LSC was concerned with the premises within the Enfield Highway CIP. 
 
Each application must be considered on its own merits, and the LSC 
decisions are to be given weight in accordance with guidance and policy, one 
of which points states (Sec 8.4) “that stricter licensing conditions with regard 
to licensing HOURS may be required for licensed premises situated in or 
immediately adjacent to residential areas to ensure that disturbance to local 
residents is avoided …”. This will particularly apply in circumstances where, 

Page 207



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 337 - 

having regard to the location, size and nature of the licensed premises, it is 
likely that disturbance will be caused to residents in the vicinity of the 
premises by concentration of people leaving, particularly during normal night-
time sleeping periods. It is accepted that applicants’ operating schedules may 
adequately provide for such circumstances and the Council will not seek to 
impose stricter conditions unless relevant representations are received and a 
hearing takes place. 
 
This policy point carries significant weight, as it did in this case; but is 
enhanced in the context of Cumulative Impact Policy that is incorporated 
within the Council’s Licensing Policy as a whole, which requires premises 
licence holders to give specific recognition to this point [9.28]. The 
consideration of hours of operation will include the context of each application 
within each of the licensing objectives. For example, the hours at which noise 
may occur and the extent to which that may affect local residents’ sleep and 
relaxation, will be a consideration because late night premises may have an 
impact on the local environment and can cause public nuisance. In both oral 
and written submissions, the applicant failed to satisfy the sub-committee that 
appropriate measures were in place to mitigate the impact on neighbours of 
extended hours for the sale of alcohol. 
 
The LSC convened under the rebuttable presumption that the application to 
vary the hours of this licence should be refused on the basis that the hours 
applied for exceed those specified in the Council’s Licensing policy via the 
Cumulative Impact Policy.  
 
In counter questioning the applicant equally acknowledged that the licensing 
objectives do work on the principle of prevention, and that he understood the 
nature of the CIP is predicated by the location being a concern for crime and 
nuisance. 
 
The LSC noted the applicant’s evidence, argument, and lack of pro-active 
additional steps to strengthen the licence to promote the licensing objectives 
and determined that the applicant was unable to demonstrate that a grant of 
the variation, in full, of the licence would not add to the cumulative impact in 
the area. 
 
As the core hours of the CIP had been amended between the granting of the 
extant licence and the hearing of this application, the sub-committee has 
granted those parts of the application that are within the CIP core hours to 
accord with the limit in the CIP core hours, whereas those parts of the 
application to vary hours that are outside the CIP core hours are to be 
refused.” 
 
383   
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
 

Page 208



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 3.2.2016 

 

- 338 - 

RECEIVED the minutes of the meetings held on Wednesday 2 December and 
Wednesday 16 December 2015. 
 
AGREED that the minutes of the meetings held on Wednesday 2 December 
and Wednesday 16 December 2015 be confirmed and signed as a correct 
record. 
 
 
 

Page 209



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 NEW HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE LIMITED, 236 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5BL   (REPORT NO. 189)
	LSC Report - Part 2
	LSC Report - Part 3
	LSC Report - Part 4
	LSC Report - Part 5

	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

